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Directors’ Report

The Board of Directors of UBL Fund Managers Limited is pleased to present to you the reports of its UBL Liquidity
Plus Fund (ULPF), UBL Money Market Fund (UMMF), UBL Government Securities Fund (UGSF), UBL Growth and
Income Fund (UGIF), UBL Stock Advantage Fund (USF), UBL Income Opportunity Fund (UIOF) UBL Gold Fund
(UGF), UBL Asset Allocation Fund (UAAF) and UBL Capital Protected Fund -IIl (UCPF-III), UBL Dedicated Equity
Fund (UDEF), UBL Financial Stock Fund (UFSF), UBL Active Principal Preservation Plan | (UAPPP-I), UBL Active
Principal Preservation Plan Il (UAPPP-II) and UBL Conservative Allocation Plan (UCONAP) for the period ended
June 30, 2018.

Economy Review - FY18

The Fiscal Year 2018 remained yet another eventful year for Pakistan as the country posted a real GDP growth rate
of 5.8% highest in thirteen years. The main highlights in support of this strong momentum were low inflation and
strong growth in private sector credit off-take (17%YoY) amid low interest rate environment. However, rising industrial
expansion, growing aggregate demand and increased government spending resulted in external and fiscal deficits
beyond projection.

The Headline Inflation for FY18 remained moderate, averaging to 3.9%YoY against 4.2% in FY17 largely due to low
food inflation. Consequently, the CPlI inflation stood well within the SBP’s full year inflation target of 6.0%. However,
towards the end of the fiscal year, core inflation jumped to 7.1% reflecting a build-up of inflationary pressures amid
heating economy. Change in international oil prices outlook, growing aggregate demand and lagged-impact of PKR
devaluation are expected to remain prime drivers for inflation for the upcoming fiscal year.

The SBP continued pre-emptive measures to allay concerns of overheating of economy. As per its latest MPC
meeting, SBP highlighted that a strong fiscal growth in 2HFY18, growing inflationary pressures due to recent PKR
devaluation and higher international oil prices has prompted need for near term price stability measures. As a result,
the committee decided to increase policy rate by 100bps to 7.5% in Jul-18. We expect monetary tightening to
continue further in coming months.

The current account position continued to deteriorate reaching a deficit of USD 18bn in FY18 (43%YoY). The
widening deficit was mainly on account of high trade deficit (+17%). Despite positive growth in exports (13%YoY),
external account position continues to remain challenging for the authorities warranting additional policy measures.
Balance of payment imbalances created by a large trade deficit, debt servicing and low realization of foreign direct
investments, eventually led to pressure on foreign exchange reserves. As a result, country’s foreign reserves fell from
USD21bn to USD16bn a decline of 23%. This ultimately led to pressure on rupee and resulted in depreciation of
~20% since last year. We expect the recent corrective policy measures by central bank to discourage imports and
provide relief to exports, thus lead to improvement in overall external account position going forward.

On the fiscal side, higher government spending amidst low tax collection augmented fiscal deficit to a new high in
recent years (~7%) than previously anticipated (4.1%). In a bid to increase tax-base, the government introduced tax
amnesty scheme to encourage documentation of the economy and improve reserve position. However, response to
this scheme has been below expectations and the next government will have to initiate some austerity measures
including cut in its development spending in order to contain its deficit.
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During FY18, yields on short and long term tenor witnessed changes aligned with SBP’s monetary policy tightening.
Yield on 3M, 6M and 12M T-Bills increased by 79bps, 90bps and 116bps, respectively. Similarly, yield on 3-year, 5-
year and 10-year bonds increased 180bps, 171bps and 86bps, respectively.

In light of recent elections, prospect of a stable government will bode well for the country’s economy. In a bid to
counter current economic challenges we expect a bundle of austerity measures including but not limited to re-entry
into IMF’s program, financial support from China and other friendly nations, issuance of Eurobonds or investment
bonds for expatriates as well as extensive reforms on domestic front. Corrective measures by the newly formed Govt
will lower GDP growth in FY19 this will aid in stabilizing economy over medium term (GDP growth: +4.5-5%).

Debt Market Review — FY18

The International Crude Oil prices exhibited an upward trend for the fiscal year. The prices increased from USD 45-
per barrel increasing as much as ~70% closing at a new high of USD ~80 per barrel. Increasing oil prices, higher
commodity prices (with exception of sugar) along with lagged impact of PKR devaluation (+16%) aided in increasing
inflation rate to 4.4% for 4QFY18. Core measures of inflation witnessed an upward trajectory where NFNE which is
somewhat sticky in nature increased to 7.1% by end of FY18. Taking cues from this trend we expect SBP to continue
its current monetary tightening policy.

In twelve PIB auctions for FY18 conducted during the year, the government raised PKR~102bn (PKR ~894bn in
FY17) against target of PKR 330bn. Consequently, outstanding amount for the PIBs in the market increased to PKR
29.47tmn. Participation in the auctions was largely skewed towards three and five year paper in line with interest rate
hikes. Cut off yields in June auction trimmed to 7.5%, 8.5% and 8.7% for three, five and ten year PIB instruments
respectively. In July’18 PIB Auction the government accepted PKR ~6.9bn.

The vyield curve based on government securities of various maturities has shifted upwards in line with the ongoing
increasing discounts rates. Yield on 3M, 6M and 12M T-Bills increased by 79bps, 90bps and 116bps, respectively.
Similarly, yield on 3-year, 5-year and 10-year bonds increased 180bps, 171bps and 86bps, respectively. The spread
between annualized yields of 1-year T-bills (7.20% p.a.) and 10-year PIBs (9.03% p.a.) stood at 1.83% as of 30 June
2018.

Stock Market Review for FY18

In the aftermath of distressing events in FY18, the KSE-100 index posted a cumulative loss of 10% after a prolonged
period of 8-years. Market's decline was largely driven by a series of tensed political events, burgeoning concerns on
macro-economic front along with continued sell-off by foreign investors (USD289mn). With growing uncertainties,
market participants remained cautious, keeping average market-traded volumes depressed (84mn).

The benchmark index commenced the year with high hopes but soon suffered foreign outflows post MSCI inclusion.
A series of setbacks augmented uncertainties during 1HFY18, keeping the equity market in a jittery position and
pushing the index to a low of 37,919 points. The primary highlights among these were disqualification of sitting PM
followed by barring of Finance Minister to run office; leaving little room to focus on economy. This was followed by a
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21-day protest by TLP against the government pushing the regime into isolation. Without any proper economic
manager in place, the country stood open to increasing hazards on the macroeconomic fronts.

With political tensions, concerns on external account started to unearth as support from low oil prices started to fade
away. In the 3QFY18, some positive triggers like appointment of Finance Minister, smooth senate elections,
announcement of tax amnesty scheme along with introduction of essential policy action prompted interest by market
participants, leading to inflow of USD 31mn.

However, the concerns on macroeconomic front remained strong, requiring further use of policy actions. The full year
FY18 current account deficit augmented to ~USD18bn (+43%Y0oY) further weighing down investor sentiment.
Moreover, fiscal deficit came in much higher at ~7%. Mushrooming twin-deficit financing requirements weakened
foreign reserves position. SBP’s reserves were down to ~USD10bn at end of FY18, further deteriorating investor
confidence.

On the international front, US Fed continued on its monetary tightening policy by 25bps to 2% during FY18. We
expect this stance to continue in CY18. International oil prices mounted to a 4-year high of USD80/bbl amid better co-
operation between member OPEC and Non-OPEC countries. Overall, commodity prices also rallied upwards with
growing demands from importing countries. Escalation of ongoing trade-war is expected to push oil prices downbill.
This will be favorable for a high energy importing country like Pakistan. Moreover, a stable government will also
resume work on the multi-billion CPEC project.

Going forward, remedial measures taken by central bank combined with austerity by newly formed Govt will enable
corrective measures and stabilize economy over medium term. Moreover, subsiding political tensions, steep discount
(~24% from its peak) along with a high earnings-yield offering (~12%) is expected to strengthen investor sentiment
and bring investor’s interest back in the local equity market.

Future Outlook

After a successful general elections process, a climate of political-stability is expected to reign in the country. The
newly elected PTI government will face economic challenges in the months to follow, necessitating fresh loans from
international financial institutions, including IMF, issuance of Eurobonds or Sukuk in international markets targeting
expatriates, as well as possible financial support from China for sustaining foreign reserves position. We believe new
PTI Govt to opt for effective and immediate reforms on fiscal side. This may involve cutting development
expenditures, subsidies for power and agriculture and divesting in PSEs.

Taking cues from its recent bailout package for Argentina, we expect a similar support-program amounting in double-
digits for Pakistan. Moreover, IMF will also work with the new government to smooth future debt repayments and
push for endeavors to expand exports base and to make them more competitive.

Lagged impact of PKR devaluation, higher oil prices along with excessive demand will push inflation upwards
requiring further use of price stability measures. We expect monetary tightening to continue, potentially pulling policy-
rate upwards to 8.0-8.5%. On international front, political climate in US Mid-Term elections in Nov'18 and ongoing
trade-war is expected to have medium term implications for oil price.
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We expect the corrective policy course to bring about a slowdown in the economy for FY19. We believe these
corrective measures will be important for stabilizing economy over medium term. Furthermore, improved security,
better energy situation along with a stable regime will stand pivotal in bringing overall GDP growth to sustainable
5.0% level.

Fund Performance and Announcements

UBL LIQUIDITY PLUS FUND (ULPF)

The Fund earned total income of PKR 600.753 million for the year ended June 30, 2018 which mainly includes
markup / interest income on bank balances, Government Securities. After accounting for the expenses of PKR
92.137 million, the Fund managed to earn a net income of PKR 508.616 million. The net assets of the Fund were
PKR 14,454.210 million as at June 30, 2018 representing the net asset value of PKR 106.2344 per unit.

Subsequent to year ended, on July 02, 2018, The Board of Directors of the Management Company approved a final
distribution of Rs.5.5510 per unit on the face value of Rs.100 each (i.e.5.55%).

JCR-VIS Credit Rating Company Limited (JCR-VIS) has reaffirmed AA (f) rating to the Fund.

UBL MONEY MARKET FUND (UMMF)

The Fund earned total income of PKR 71.376 million for the year ended June 30, 2018 which mainly includes markup
/ interest income on bank balances, placements and Government Securities. After accounting for the expenses of
PKR 14.806 million, the Fund managed to earn a net income of PKR 56.570 million. The net assets of the Fund
were PKR 1,615.672 million as at June 30, 2018 representing the net asset value of PKR 105.6073 per unit.

Subsequent to year ended, on July 02, 2018, The Board of Directors of the Management Company approved a final
distribution of Rs.5.1412 per unit on the face value of Rs.100 each (i.e.5.14%).

JCR-VIS Credit Rating Company Limited (JCR-VIS) has reaffirmed AA (f) rating to the Fund.

UBL GOVERNMENT SECURITIES FUND (UGSF)

The Fund earned total income of PKR 166.420 million for the year ended June 30, 2018 which mainly includes
markup / interest income on bank balances, term deposit receipts, Government Securities and. After accounting for
the expenses of PKR 43.089 million, the Fund managed to earn a net income of PKR 123.331 million. The net assets
of the Fund were PKR 1,877.040 million as at June 30, 2018 representing the net asset value of PKR 110.5634 per
unit.

Subsequent to year ended, on July 02, 2018, The Board of Directors of the Management Company approved a final
distribution of Rs.4.9688 per unit on the face value of Rs.100 each (i.e. 4.97%).

JCR-VIS Credit Rating Company Limited (JCR-VIS) has upgraded rating to A+ (f).
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UBL GROWTH & INCOME FUND (UGIF)

The Fund earned total income of PKR 220.563 million for the year ended June 30, 2018 which mainly includes
markup / interest income on bank balances, Government Securities, Corporate Sukuks. After accounting for the
expenses of PKR 73.515 million, the Fund managed to earn a net income of PKR 147.048 million. The net assets of
the Fund were PKR 1,301.602 million as at June 30, 2018 representing the net asset value of PKR 89.3150 per unit.

Subsequent to year ended, on July 02, 2018, The Board of Directors of the Management Company approved a final
distribution of Rs.4.4223 per unit on the face value of Rs.100 each (i.e. 4.42%).

JCR-VIS Credit Rating Company Limited (JCR-VIS) has upgraded the Fund stability rating at A(f).

UBL INCOME OPPORTUNITY FUND (UIOF)

The Fund earned total income of PKR 23.052 million for the year ended June 30, 2018, which mainly includes
markup / interest income on bank balances, placements, government securities, corporate bonds / sukuks and
investment in margin trading system. After accounting for the expenses of PKR 6.765 million, the Fund managed to
earn a net income of PKR 16.287 million. The net assets of he Fund were PKR 557.268 million as at June 30, 2018
representing the net asset value of PKR 114.7192 per unit.

Subsequent to year ended, on July 02, 2018, The Board of Directors of the Management Company approved a final
distribution of Rs.4.7439 per unit on the face value of Rs.100 each (i.e. 4.74%).

JCR-VIS Credit Rating Company Limited (JCR-VIS) has rated the fund at A - (f) during the year.

UBL GOLD FUND (UGF)

The fund has been revoked on August 02, 2017.

UBL STOCK ADVANTAGE FUND (USF)

The Fund incurred a total loss of PKR 826.813 million for the year ended 30 June, 2018 (including an unrealized loss
of PKR 411.101 million on re-measurement of investments) as compared to total income of PKR 1,808.776 million
(including an unrealized gain of PKR 480.654 million on re-measurement of investments). The loss of the fund is
mainly due to capital loss on sale of securities amounting to PKR 485.069 million (2017: capital gain amounting to
PKR 982.841 million), dividend income amounting to PKR 295.419 million (2017: PKR 229.480 million). Total
expenses amounted to PKR 216.453 million. The net assets of the Fund were PKR 6,891.411 million as at June 30,
2018 representing the net asset value of PKR 68.51 per unit.

The Fund is not yet rated.

Directors Report - For the year ended June 30, 2018



UBL ASSET ALLOCATION FUND (UAAF)

The Fund earned a total income of PKR 8.219 million for the year ended 30 June 2018 (including an unrealized loss
of PKR 15.207 million and impairment loss of PKR 10.071 million on revaluation of investments). The earnings of the
Fund mainly include capital loss from sale of securities amounting to PKR 114.043 million, income from Government
Securities, bank balances,/ Corporate TFC's, Term Deposits Receipts amounting to PKR 88.594 and dividend
income of PKR 58.947 million. After accounting for expenses of PKR 47.915 million, the Fund managed a net loss of
PKR 39.696 million. The net assets of the Fund were PKR 2,249.249 million as at June 30, 2018 representing the
net asset value of PKR 134.5792 per unit.

UBL CAPITAL PROTECTED FUND IIl (UCPF Iif)

The Fund earned a total income of PKR 10.804 million for the period ended 30 June 2018. The earnings of the Fund
represent income from bank balances, term deposits receipts and dividends. After accounting for expenses of PKR
8.841 million, the Fund managed to earn a net income of PKR 1.963 million. The net assets of the Fund were PKR
412.821 million as at June 30, 2018 representing the net asset value of PKR 100.6508 per unit.

Subsequent to year ended, on July 02, 2018, The Board of Directors of the Management Company approved a final
distribution of Rs.0.4900 per unit on the face value of Rs.100 each (i.e. 0.49%).

UBL FINANCIAL SECTOR FUND (UFSF)

The Fund earned a total income of PKR 1.532 million for the period ended 30 June 2018. The earnings of the Fund
represent income from bank balances and  dividends. After accounting for expenses of PKR 1.651 million, the
Fund managed to earn a net loss of PKR 0.119 million. The net assets of the Fund were PKR 372.153 million as at
June 30, 2018 representing the net asset value of PKR 91.2211 per unit.

UBL DEDICATED EQUITY FUND (UDEF)

The Fund earned a total income of PKR 1.091 million for the period ended 30 June 2018. The earnings of the Fund
represent income from bank balances, term deposits receipts and dividends. After accounting for expenses of PKR
0.447 million, the Fund managed to earn a net income of PKR 0.644 million. The net assets of the Fund were PKR
45.810 million as at June 30, 2018 representing the net asset value of PKR 98.1306 per unit.

UBL CONSERVATIVE ALLOCATION PLAN (UCONAP)

The Fund earned a total income of PKR 36.156 million for the period from 28 September 2017 to 29 June 2018. The
earnings of the Fund represent income from bank balances and capital gains from sale of investments. After
accounting for expenses of PKR 2.527 million, the Fund managed to earn a net income of PKR 33.629 million. The
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net assets of the Fund were PKR 26.10 million as at June 29, 2018 representing the net asset value of PKR
100.0975 per unit

Subsequent to June 29, 2018 all units of UBL Conservative Allocation Plan have been redeemed by unit holders of
the Fund.

UBL ACTIVE PRINCIPAL PRESERVATION PLAN | (UAPPP-I)

The Fund earned a total income of PKR 1.790 million for the period from 28 February 2018 to 30 June 2018. The
earnings of the Fund represent income from bank balances and capital gains from sale of investments. After
accounting for expenses of PKR 0.28 million, the Fund managed to earn a net income of PKR 1.510 million. The net
assets of the Fund were PKR 173.165 million as at June 30, 2018 representing the net asset value of PKR 100.8796
per unit

UBL ACTIVE PRINCIPAL PRESERVATION PLAN Il (UAPPP-II)

The Fund earned a total income of PKR 2.265 million for the period from 31 May 2018 to 30 June 2018. The earnings
of the Fund represent income from bank balances, term deposits receipts and capital gains from sale of investments.
After accounting for expenses of PKR 0.221 million, the Fund managed to earn a net income of PKR 2.044 million.
The net assets of the Fund were PKR 324.118 million as at June 30, 2018 representing the net asset value of PKR
100.6329 per unit

Subsequent to year ended, on July 02, 2018, The Board of Directors of the Management Company approved a final
distribution of Rs.0.1258 per unit on the face value of Rs.100 each (i.e. 0.13%).

Strategy, review and Outlook of Funds

For Strategy, Review and Outlook of funds, kindly review the respective section of the Fund Manager’s report on
Annual Report.

Code of Corporate Governance

The Management Company is committed to high standards of corporate governance and the Board of Directors of
the Management Company is accountable to the unit holders for good corporate governance. Management is
continuing to comply with the provisions of best practices set out in the code of corporate governance particularly
with regard to independence of non-executive directors. The Funds remains committed to conduct business in line
with listing regulations of Pakistan Stock Exchange.
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The following specific statements are being given to comply with the requirements of the Code of Corporate
Governance:

o Financial Statements present fairly the statement of affairs, the results of operations, cash flows and the
changes in unit holder's fund;

e Proper books of accounts have been maintained by the Funds;

o Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in the preparation of the financial statements and
accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgments;

e Relevant International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, provision of the Non-Banking
Finance Companies (Establishment & Regulation) Rules, 2003, Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified
Entities Regulations, 2008, requirements of the respective Trust Deeds and directives issued by the Securities &
Exchange Commission of Pakistan have been followed in the preparation of the financial statements;

o The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and monitored;
o There are no significant doubts upon the Funds ability to continue as going concern;

o There has been no material departure from the best practices of corporate governance, as detailed in the listing
regulations;

e Performance table of Funds is given in Annual report;

e The statement as to the value of investments of provident fund is not applicable on the Funds but applies to the
Management Company, hence the no disclosure is made in the Directors’ Report of the Funds;

o Outstanding statutory payments on account of taxes, duties, levies and charges, if any have been fully disclosed
in the financial statements;

¢ Risk framework and Internal Control System :

UBL Fund Managers Limited has in place an approved Risk Management Policy that provides the framework to
manage risks associated with its activities. It is designed to identify, assess, monitor and manage risk emanating
from across the entity.

UBL Fund Managers Limited follows Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) which is a process, ongoing and flowing
through an entity effected by people at every level of an organization applied in strategy setting applied across the
enterprise, at every level and unit, and includes taking an entity-level portfolio view of risk designed to identify
potential events that, if they occur, will affect the entity and to manage risk within its risk appetite.
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UBL Fund Managers Limited has total seven directors:

a) Male: Six Directors;
b) Female: One Director

The composition of board is as follows:
a) Independent Directors: Two Directors
b) Executive Directors: One Director
c) Non-Executive Directors: Four Directors

The UBL Fund Managers Board’s primary responsibility is to supervise affairs of the Company and provide direction
to its management. The management is responsible to keep the Board informed regarding Company affairs and
effectively implement directions and guidelines given by the BOD.

The Board, in exercise of effective governance and internal control system, strives to balance the spectrum of
stakeholders of the Company, including its shareholders, unit holders, customers, employees, regulator and the
communities in which it operates. In all actions taken by the Board, the Directors exercise independent business
judgment in what they reasonably believe to be in the best interests of the Company.

According to best corporate governance practices, the Board of directors of UBL Fund Managers Limited has
established several Board Committees to augment Risk Management , Internal Control system and good corporate

governance throughout the entity. These Board Committees facilitate the Board and the Management on issues
related to their particular area of competence.

The Board has the following committees:

a. Audit Committee

i. Ms. Naz Khan (Chair-Independent);

i Mr. Zia ljaz;

iii. Mirza Muhammad Sadeed Hassan Barlas;
iv. Mr. Sharjeel Shahid.

b. HR and Remuneration Committee

i. Mr. Azhar Hameed (Chairman-Independent);

ii. Ms. Naz Khan;

ii. Syed Furrukh Zaeem;

iv. Mr. Zia ljaz;

V. Mr. Yasir Qadri.

c. Risk Management Committee

i. Mirza Muhammad Sadeed Hassan Barlas (Chairman);
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ii. Mr. Yasir Qadri;

iii. Mr. Azhar Hameed;
iv. Syed Furrukh Zaeem;
V. Mr. Sharjeel Shahid.

o The details as required by the code of corporate governance regarding the pattern of holding are given in their
respective financial statements The name wise detail of associated companies /undertakings, directors and key

executives and other connected person / related parties are hereunder:

UBL LIQUIDITY PLUS FUND
Name Closing units
Yasir Qadri 141,584
United Bank Limited 113,898
Ammar Valika 88,176
Umair Ahmed 8.475
Syed Furrukh Zaeem 64
UBL Fund Managers Ltd. 6,496,019
UBL active principal preservation plan | 680,188
UBL Active Principal Preservation Plan || 987,865
Naiyar Zamani Gohar 1,348,260
Interloop limited 23,696,557
UBL MONEY MARKET FUND
Name Closing units
United Bank Limited 111,361
UBL Fund Managers Ltd. Employees Provident Fund 35,851
Ubl Fund Managers Itd. Employees Gratuity Fund 80,476
Syed Furrukh Zaeem 87
Ubl Fund Managers Limited 6,026,963
UBL Active Principal Preservation Plan | 684,201
UBL Active Principal Preservation Plan || 806,075
UBL GOVERNMENT SECURITIES FUND
Name Closing units
Amin Kamruddin Gulamani 963
Hafeezullah Ishaq 9,632
Naiyar Zamani Gohar 3,986,921
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UBL GROWTH & INCOME FUND

Name Closing units
Yasir Qadri 2
Amin Kamruddin Gulamani 1,259
Gul Ahmed Energy Ltd. 2,246,484
Ispahani Foods 1,582,852
National Management Foundation 2,092,048

UBL INCOME OPPORTUNITY FUND

Name Closing units
Yasir Qadri 126,496
Greenstar Social Marketing Pakistan (G) Itd. 2,438,172

UBL STOCK ADVANTAGE FUND (USF)

Name Closing units
Zeeshan Quddus 21,450
Yasir Qadri 87,482
Mirza Muhammad Sadeed Hassan Barlas 22,538
Amin Kamruddin Gulamani 2,665
Ammar Valika 85,986
UBL Fund Managers Limited — Employees Gratuity 60,301
Fund
UBL Fund Managers Limited — Employees Provident 8,524
Fund
UBL Fund Managers Limited 3,731,614
7,632,649
Sindh General Provident Investment Fund

UBL ASSET ALLOCATION FUND

Name Closing units
Amin Kamruddin Gulamani 10,395
Syed Furrukh Zaeem 40,033
Umair Ahmed 5,839

Directors Report - For the year ended June 30, 2018




UBL CAPITAL PROTECTED FUND lll

Name Closing units
UBL-Employees Provident Fund Trust 1,523,256
UBL Employees Gratuity Fund Trust 182,791
Fateh Khan Akhtar 501,327
Fakhar un Nisa Akhtar 501,341
UBL FINANCIAL SECTOR FUND
Name Closing units
Ammar Valika 10,434
Mr. Yasir Qadri 3,254
UBL Fund Managers Ltd. 1,481,882
Hafeezullah Ishaq 670,132
UBL DEDICATED EQUITY FUND
Name Closing units
UBL Active Principal Preservation Plan | 286,760
UBL Active Principal Preservation Plan Il 180,065

UBL Active Principal Preservation Plan |

Name Closing units
Rehana Bashir 244,733
Bai Virbaiji Soparivala Parsi High School 290,321

UBL Active Principal Preservation Plan Il

Name Closing units
Multiline Enterprises 622,862

o There have been no trades in the units of the Funds carried out by the Directors, CEO, COO, CFO , Head of
Internal Audit & Company Secretary except as disclosed below and in the notes to the accounts;

UBL LIQUIDITY PLUS FUND
. . Beginning Units Units Bonus . .
Name Designation Units issued redeemed Units Closing Units
Syed Furrukh Zaeem Director 64 - - - 64
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Yasir Qadri Chief Executive
Officer - 160,802 19,218 - 141,584
. Chief Financial
Umair Ahmed Officer - 8,475 - - 8,475
Ammar Valika Head of Sales 43,920 169,743 125,487 - 88,176
UBL MONEY MARKET FUND
N Beginning Units Units Bonus . .
Name Designation Units issued redeemed Units Closing Units
Syed Furrukh Zaeem Director 87 - - 87
UBL GROWTH & INCOME FUND
. . Beginning Units Units Bonus . .
Name Designation Units issued redeemed Units Closing Units
. . Chief Executive
Yasir Qadri Officer i 5 3 i 9
Ammar Valika Head of Sales 47,956 3 47,959 - -
, Chief Financial
Umair Ahmed Officer 26,490 26,490 : :
Amin Gulamani Head of HR 1,259 - - 1,259
UBL STOCK ADVANTAGE FUND
Name Desianation Beginning Units Units Bonus
g Units issued redeemed Units Closing Units
Chief Business
Zeeshan Quddus Development
Officer - 21,450 - 21,450
Ammar Valika Head of Sales 78,810 93,162 85,986 85,986
Yasir Qadri Chief Executive
Officer 277,505 331,228 521,251 87,482
Amin Gulamani Head of HR 2,668 114 117 2,665
Mirza Muhammad
Sadeed Hassan Director
Barlas 75,020 52,482 22,538
UBL ASSET ALLOCATION FUND
N Beginning . Units Bonus Closing
Name Designation Units Units issued redeemed Units Units
Syed Furrukh Director 40,032 : : 40,032
Zaeem
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Umair Ahmed | CPief Financial i 8832 2.993 i 5839

Officer
Amin
Kamruddin Head of HR 4,079 6,316 - - 10,395
Gulamani

UBL GOVERNMENT SECURITIES FUND

Name Desianation Beginning Units Units Bonus Closing
9 Units issued redeemed Units Units
Amin
Kamruddin Head of HR 971 64 72 - 963
Gulamani
UBL INCOME OPPORTUNITY FUND
L Beginning Units Units Bonus . .
Name Designation Units issued redeemed Units Closing Units
Yasir Qadri Chief Executive
Officer - 224,090 97,592 - 126,496

UBL FINANCIAL SECTOR FUND (UFSF)

. . Beginning Units Units Bonus . .
Name Designation Units issued redeemed Units Closing Units
Yasir Qadri Chief Executive
Officer - 3,254 - - 3,254
. Chief Financial
Umair Ahmed Officer : 19,997 19,097 :
Ammar Valika
Head of Sales : 20,868 10,434 : 10,434
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (BOD)

During the year, seven meetings of the Board of Directors of the Management Company were held. The details of
the attendance are as under:

Members AUZ%USt September 25, | October 27, | December | February | April 26, | May 02, m::ttizl s
; 2017 2017 06,2017 | 16,2018 2018 2018 9
2017 attended

Tarig Kirmani ** v v N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 2
Azhar hamid * N/A N/A v v v v v 5
Yasir Qadri v v v v v v v 7
Naz Khan * N/A N/A v 4 v \4 v 5
Shabbir Hussain Hashmi v v N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
*% 2
Sharjeel Shahid * N/A N/A v v x v x 3
Zia |jaz v v v v X 4 "X 5
Syed Furrukh Zaeem v v v \4 v \4 v 7
Mirza Muhammad v v v v ox o v
Sadeed Hassan Barlas 6
Fawaz Taj Siddiqui **** v v v v v N/A N/A 5
Umair Ahmed v v v v v v v 7
S.M. Aly Osman **** N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A v v 2

* Elected at EOGM held on September 29, 2017

** Independent Directors have completed three consecutive term

*** Mr. Zulfigar Alavi resigned on August 07, 2017.

**** Mr. Fawaz Taj siddiqui resigned and appointment of Mr. S.M. Aly Osman effective from April 2, 2018 as Company Secretary
BOARD AUDIT COMMITTEE (BAC)
During the year ended June 30, 2018 five (5) BAC meetings held. The details of attendance are as under:

Members 22-Aug-17 12-Sep-17 26-Oct-17 15-Feb-18 | 25-Apr-18

Naz Khan * N/A N/A v v v

Shabbir Hussain Hashmi ** v v N/A N/A N/A

Sharjeel Shahid * N/A N/A v v v

Syed Furrukh Zaeem * v v N/A N/A N/A

Zia ljaz v X v X v

Mirza Muhammad Sadeed Hassan Barlas v v X v

Umair Ahmed v v v v

Fawaz Siddiqui *** v v v N/A

S.M. Aly Osman *** N/A N/A N/A N/A v

* Board has reconstituted the committee effective from October 13, 2017
e
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** Independent Director has completed three consecutive term

*** Mr. Fawaz Taj Siddiqui resigned and appointment of Mr. S.M. Aly Osman effective from April 2, 2018 as Head of Internal Audit

HUMAN RESOURCE COMPENSATION COMMITTEE (HRCC)

During the year ended June 30, 2018 four (4) HRCC meetings held. Below are the attendance of Board of Directors:

Name 21-Aug-17 22-Sept-17 7-Feb-18 2-May-18
Tarig Kirmani v v X %
Shabbir Hussain Hashmi v v x x
Zia ljaz v v v v
Yasir Qadri v v v v
Amin Gulamani v v v v
Azhar Hamid X X v v
Naz Khan X X v v
Syed Furrukh Zaeem X X v v

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
During the year ended June 30, 2018 four (4) BRCC meetings held. Below is the attendance of Board of
Directors:

Members Aug 22, 2017 Sept 22, 2017 Feb 15, 2018 April 25,2018
Sadeed Barlas * v v % v
Tarig Kirmani **** v v - -
Furrukh Zaeem v v v v
Yasir Qadri v v v v
Azhar hamid ***** - - v v
Sharjeel Shahid ***** - - % v
Hadi Hassan Mukhi *** - - _ v
S.M. Aly Osman ** v v v _

* Mr. Sadeed Barlas was elected as the New Chairman BRCC on 22nd August 2017.

**S.M. Aly Osman was redesignated as the Head of Internal Audit as of 1st March 2018.

**% Mr. Hadi Hassan Mukhi was redesignated as the Head of Risk Management and Compliance as of 1st March 2018.
**** Independent Directors have completed three consecutive term.

**x** Elected at EOGM held on September 29, 2017

As required by the Code, five directors on the Board have completed the Director Training Program (DTP).
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All the directors are well conversant with the relevant laws applicable to the Fund and the Management Company, its
policies and procedures and provisions of memorandum and articles of association and are aware of their duties and

responsibilities.

Auditors
The present auditors as per table below retire on conclusion of the audit for the year ended June 30,
2018:
. Status of appointment for
SR. Name of Fund Name of auditors as of June the year ending June 30,
No 30, 2018 2019
M/s Deloitte Yousuf Adil & L .
1. UBL Stock Advantage Fund Co., Chartered Accountants Eligible for re-appointment
. EY Ford Rhodes Chartered s .
2. UBL Income Opportunity Fund Accountants Eligible for re-appointment
Not eligible for re-appointment,
. M/s KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co., | for being statutory auditors of
3 UBL Asset Allocation Fund Chartered Accountants the fund for consecutive five
years.
M/s KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co., - .
4, UBL Money Market Fund Chartered Accountants Eligible for re-appointment
5. United Growth & Income Fund EY Ford Rhodes Chartered Eligible for re-appointment
Accountants
s M/s BDO Ebrahim & Co., - .
6. UBL Government Securities Fund Chartered Accountants Eligible for re-appointment
. M/s BDO Ebrahim & Co., - .
7. UBL Liquidity Plus Fund Chartered Accountants Eligible for re-appointment
. M/s BDO Ebrahim & Co., - .
8. UBL Capital Protected Fund-Ill Chartered Accountants Eligible for re-appointment
9. UBL Dedicated Equity Funds EY Ford Rhodes Chartered Eligible for re-appointment
Accountants
10. UBL Financial Planning Fund EY Ford Rhodes Chartered Eligible for re-appointment
Accountants
. . M/s BDO Ebrahim & Co., L .
1. UBL Financial Sector Fund Chartered Accountants Eligible for re-appointment

The auditors, where being eligible, offered themselves for reappointment and where the change in the external
auditors is required because of the completion of the maximum time allowed under the NBFC Regulations, the new
auditors have consented to be appointed as the external auditors of the firm. The Audit Committee of the Board has
recommended their appointment as external auditors for the year ending June 30, 201
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August October . Total
wabers | | Sonberts | Tp | Docamber | Fariy | A | M2 | esting
2017 2017 ! ' attended
Tarig Kirmani ** v v N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 2
Azhar hamid * N/A N/A v v v v v 5
Yasir Qadri v v v v v v v 7
Naz Khan * N/A N/A v v v v v 5
Shabbir Hussain Hashmi % v N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
*k 2
Sharjeel Shahid * N/A N/A v v X v X 3
Zia ljaz v v v v X . . x 5
Syed Furrukh Zaeem v v v v v v v 7
Mirza Muhammad v v v v - o v
Sadeed Hassan Barlas 6
Fawaz Taj Siddiqui **** v v v v v N/A N/A 5
Umair Ahmed d v v ol d o v 7
S.M. Aly Osman *** N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A v v 2
* Elected at EOGM held on September 29, 2017
** Independent Directors have completed three consecutive term
*** Mr. Zulfiqar Alavi resigned on August 07, 2017.
**** Mr. Fawaz Taj siddiqui resigned and appointment of Mr. S.M. Aly Osman effective from April 2, 2018 as Company Secretary
(Gt DEFE23Tos
!ujg);}@uc,MJ&/}E-L%)}’;‘JU?Iégé:(jbf:‘ﬁﬁufch:um;é:Jl/J!
Members 22-Aug-17 12-Sep-17 26-Oct-17 15-Feb-18 25-Apr-18
Naz Khan * N/A N/A v v v
Shabbir Hussain Hashmi ** v v N/A N/A N/A
Sharjeel Shahid * N/A N/A v v v
Syed Furrukh Zaeem * v v N/A N/A N/A
Zia ljaz v X X v
Mirza Muhammad Sadeed Hassan Barlas v v X v
Umair Ahmed v v v v
Fawaz Siddiqui *** v v v N/A
S.M. Aly Osman *** N/A N/A N/A N/A v

* Board has reconstituted the committee effective from October 13, 2017

** Independent Director has completed three consecutive term

*** Mr. Fawaz Taj Siddiqui resigned and appointment of Mr. S.M. Aly Osman effective from April 2, 2018 as Head of Internal Audit
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e 3B AL AT T (A £ 5 TE Imd Jis i 752018230

Name 21-Aug-17 22-Sept-17 7-Feb-18 2-May-18
Tariq Kirmani v v X %
Shabbir Hussain Hashmi v v % X
Zia ljaz v i v v
Yasir Qadri b v v v
Amin Gulamani v v v v
Azhar Hamid X X v v
Naz Khan X x v v
Syed Furrukh Zaeem X X v v

e L3t 58 AL A A5 e (A £ 55 T umd Jisst 752018230

Members Aug 22, 2017 Sept 22, 2017 Feb 15, 2018 April 25,2018
Sadeed Barlas * v v X v
Tarig Kirmani **** v v - -
Furrukh Zaeem v v v v
Yasir Qadri v v v v
Azhar hamid ***** - - v v
Sharjeel Shahid ***** - - X v
Hadi Hassan Mukhi *** - - - v
S.M. Aly Osman ** v v v -

* Mr. Sadeed Barlas was elected as the New Chairman BRCC on 22nd August 2017.

** S.M. Aly Osman was redesignated as the Head of Internal Audit as of 1st March 2018.
*** Mr. Hadi Hassan Mukhi was redesignated as the Head of Risk Management and Compliance as of 1st March 2018.
**** Independent Directors have completed three consecutive term.
**%** Elected at EOGM held on September 29, 2017
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SR. Name of Fund Name of auditors as of June 30, 2018 Status of a_ppomtment for the
No year ending June 30, 2019

1. UBL Stock Advantage Fund M/s Deloitte Yousuf Adil & Co., Chartered Eligible for re-appointment
Accountants

2. UBL Income Opportunity Fund EY Ford Rhodes Chartered Accountants Eligible for re-appointment

Not eligible for re-appointment,

3 UBL Asset Allocation Fund M/s KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co., Chartered | for being statutory au.dltor.s of

Accountants the fund for consecutive five
years.

4, UBL Money Market Fund M/s KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co., Chartered Eligible for re-appointment
Accountants

5. United Growth & Income Fund EY Ford Rhodes Chartered Accountants | Eligible for re-appointment

6. UBL Government Securities Fund M/s BDO Ebrahim & Co., Chartered Eligible for re-appointment
Accountants

7. UBL Liquidity Plus Fund M/s BDO Ebrahim & Co., Chartered Eligible for re-appointment
Accountants

8. UBL Capital Protected Fund-li M/s BDO Ebrahim & Co., Chartered Eligible for re-appointment
Accountants

9. UBL Dedicated Equity Funds EY Ford Rhodes Chartered Accountants | Eligible for re-appointment

10. UBL Financial Planning Fund EY Ford Rhodes Chartered Accountants Eligible for re-appointment

1. UBL Financial Sector Fund M/s BDO Ebrahim & Co., Chartered Eligible for re-appointment

Accountants
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ULPF

UBL Liquidity Plus Fund

INVESTMENT OBJECTIVE
ULPF is an open-end Money Market Fund, investing in a diversified portfolio of low risk assets. The Fund
seeks to provide attractive daily returns while maintaining comparatively high liquidity.

Management Company UBL Fund Managers Limited

Trustee Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
99-B, Block-B, S.M.C.H.S., Main Shahra-e-Faisal,
Karachi. Tel: (9221) 111-111-500

Distribution Company United Bank Limited

(for detail of others, please visit our website: www.ublfunds.com.pk)

Auditor BDO Ebrahim & Co., Chartered Accountants

Bankers United Bank Limited

Bank Alfalah Limited

MCB- Global

Faysal Bank Limited

Samba Bank

Allied Bank Limited

Habib Bank Limited

Sindh Bank Limited

Zarai Taraqiati Bank Limited
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited
Askari Bank Limited
National Bank Of Pakistan
Meezan Bank Limited

Management Co.Rating AMI (JCR-VIS)

Fund Rating AA(f) JCR-VIS)




Fund Manager’s Report — UBL Liquidity Plus Fund (ULPF)

i) Description of the Collective Investment Scheme category and type
Money Market / Open-end

ii) Statement of Collective Investment Scheme’s investment objective
ULPF is an open-end Money Market Fund, investing in a diversified portfolio of low risk assets. The
Fund seeks to provide attractive daily returns while maintaining comparatively high liquidity.

iii) Explanation as to whether the Collective Investment Scheme achieved its stated objective
The Collective Investment Scheme achieved its stated objective.

iv) Statement of benchmark(s) relevant to the Collective Investment Scheme
70% Average of 3M PKRYV rates + 30% 3M average deposit rate of three 3 AA rated scheduled Banks
as selected by MUFAP

v) Comparison of the Collective Investment Scheme’s performance during the period compared

with the said benchmarks

Monthly Yield Jul'l7 Aug'l7 Sep'l7 Oct'l7 Nov'l7 Dec'l7 Jan'l8 Feb'l8 Mar'l8 Apr'l8 May'l8 Jun'l8 FYTD

ULPF 5.52% 5.27% 5.34% 5.47% 5.29% 5.77% 5.64% 5.51% 5.74% 5.76% 5.11% 5.74% 5.51%
Benchmark 5.19% 5.17% 5.17% 5.16% 5.19% 5.22% 5.22% 5.38% 5.48% 5.54% 5.63% 4.71% 5.26%
vi) Description of the strategies and policies employed during the period under review in relation to

the Collective Investment Scheme’s performance

ULPF yielded a return of 5.51% p.a. during FY18 outperforming its benchmark by 25bps. The net
assets of the fund stood at PKR 14,454mn at the end of FY18. At the end of Jun’18 major exposure
was maintained in cash to take advantage of attractive rates on offer. The Asset allocation was made
as such to ensure high liquidity is kept intact. The weighted average maturity of the fund was 3 days at
the end of FY18.

vii) Disclosure of the Collective Investment Scheme’s asset allocation as at the date of the report
and particulars of significant changes in asset allocation since the last report (if applicable)

Asset Allocation (% of Total Assets) Jun-17 Jun-18

Placements with Banks 0% 11%
Placements with DFls 0% 0%
Placements with NBFCs 0% 0%
Reverse Repo 0% 0%
T-Bills 0% 0%
PIBs 0% 0%
Cash 98% 89%
Others 2% 0%
Leverage Nil Nil

FMR — ULPF



X)

viii)

Analysis of the Collective Investment Scheme’s performance

FY'18 Return: 5.51%
Standard Deviation (12m trailing): 0.07%
Sharpe Ratio (12m trailing): (9.30)

Changes in total NAV and NAV per unit since the last review period or since commencement (in
case of newly established Collective Investment Schemes)

Net Asset Value NAV per unit
30-Jun-18 ‘ 30-Jun-17 Change 30-Jun-18 ‘ 30-Jun-17 Change
Rupees (000) % Rupees %
14,454,210\ 4,082,243 254.08 106.2344\ 100.6834 5.51

Disclosure on the markets that the Collective investment Scheme has invested in including
- review of the market(s) invested in and performance during the period

Xi)

FMR — ULPF

Debt Market Review — FY18

The International Crude Qil prices exhibited an upward trend for the fiscal year. The prices increased
from USD 45-per barrel increasing as much as ~70% closing at a new high of USD ~80 per barrel.
Increasing oil prices, higher commodity prices (with exception of sugar) along with lagged impact of
PKR devaluation (+16%) aided in increasing inflation rate to 4.4% for 4QFY18. Core measures of
inflation witnessed an upward trajectory where NFNE which is somewnhat sticky in nature increased to
7.1% by end of FY18. Taking cues from this trend we expect SBP to continue its current monetary
tightening policy.

In twelve PIB auctions for FY18 conducted during the year, the government raised PKR~102bn (PKR
~894bn in FY17) against target of PKR 330bn. Consequently, outstanding amount for the PIBs in the
market increased to PKR 29.47trn. Participation in the auctions was largely skewed towards three and
five year paper in line with interest rate hikes. Cut off yields in June auction trimmed to 7.5%, 8.5% and
8.7% for three, five and ten year PIB instruments respectively. In July’18 PIB Auction the government
accepted PKR ~6.9bn.

The yield curve based on government securities of various maturities has shifted upwards in line with
the ongoing increasing discounts rates. Yield on 3M, 6M and 12M T-Bills increased by 79bps, 90bps
and 116bps, respectively. Similarly, yield on 3-year, 5-year and 10-year bonds increased 180bps,
171bps and 86bps, respectively. The spread between annualized yields of 1-year T-bills (7.20% p.a.)
and 10-year PIBs (9.03% p.a.) stood at 1.83% as of 30 June 2018.

Disclosure on distribution (if any), comprising:-
- particulars of income distribution or other forms of distribution made and proposed during the
period; and



- statement of effects on the NAV before and after distribution is made

Final distribution for the year ended June 30, 2018 was made subsequent to year end, on July 02, 2018.
Below are the details of such distribution

Distribution Per unit

Declared on Bonus ‘ Cash Per Unit | Cum NAV Ex NAV
Rupees (0000 | s Rupees ---------------

July 02, 2018 - 755,457 5.5510 106.2344 100.6834

Xii) Description and explanation of any significant changes in the state of affairs of the Collective
Investment Scheme during the period and up till the date of the manager’s report, not otherwise
disclosed in the financial statements

There were no significant changes in the state of affairs during the year under review.

xiii) Breakdown of unit holdings by size

. Number of Investors
Range of Units

ULPF
0.0001 - 9,999.9999 4,936
10,000.0000 - 49,999.9999 293
50,000.0000 - 99,999.9999 47
100,000.0000 - 499,999.9999 52
500,000.0000 & Above 31
Total 5,359

Xiv) Disclosure on unit split (if any), comprising:-
There were no unit splits during the period.

xv) Disclosures of circumstances that materially affect any interests of unit holders
Investment are subject to market risk.

Xvi) Disclosure if the Asset Management Company or its delegate, if any, receives any soft
commission (i.e. goods and services) from its broker(s) or dealer(s) by virtue of transactions
conducted by the Collective Investment Scheme.

No soft commissions are received by the AMC from its brokers or dealers by virtue of transactions
conducted by the Collective Investment Scheme.

FMR — ULPF



PERFORMANCE TABLE

UBL Liquidity Plus Fund

2018

NET ASSETS AS AT 30 JUNE - Rupees in '000 14,454,210
NET ASSETS VALUE PER UNIT AT 30 JUNE - Rupees
Class C units - Offer 106.2344

- Redemption 106.2344
RETURN OF THE FUND - %
Total Return of the Fund 5.51
Capital Growth (per unit) 5.51
Date of Income Distribution -
Income Distribution -
AVERAGE ANNUAL RETURN - %
One Year 5.51
Second Year 5.87
Third Year 5.75
Forth Year 6.45
Fifth Year 6.76
Since Inseption 8.55
OFFER / REPURCHASE DURING THE YEAR- Rupees
Highest price per unit - Class C units - Offer 106.2344
Highest price per unit - Class C units - Redemption 106.2344
Lowest price per unit - Class C units - Offer 100.7136
Lowest price per unit - Class C units - Redemption 100.7136
PORTFOLIO COMPOSITION - %
Percentage of Net Assets as at 30 June
PORTFOLIO COMPOSITION BY CATEGORY - %
Bank Balances 89
Placement with Banks 11
Government securities -
Other -
PORTFOLIO COMPOSITION BY MARKET - %
Debt market 100.00

Note:

2017

4,082,243

100.6834
100.6834

6.22
0.17
19-Jun-17
6.08

6.22
5.88
6.76
7.07
7.45
8.91

106.5799
106.5799

100.5240
100.5240

98.00

2.00

100.00

- The IPO of the Fund was held on 19-20 June 2009 and the Fund commenced its operations from 21 June 2009.

DISCLAIMER

2016

2,501,908

100.5229
100.5229

5.53
0.06
27-Jun-16
5.50

5.53
7.03
7.36
7.75
8.47
9.20

105.678
105.678

100.2671
100.2671

75.00

21.00
4.00

100.00

Past performance is not necessarily indicative of future performance and unit prices and investment returns may go down, as well as up.



CENTRAL DEPOSITORY COMPANY
OF PAXISTAN LIMITED

Head Office:

CDBC House, 99-B, Block ‘B,
S.M.C.H.S,, Main Shahra-e-Faisal,
Karachi - 74400, Pakistan.

Tel: {92-21) 111-111-500

Fax: (92-21) 34326020« 23

URL: www.cdcpakistan.com
Email: info@cdcpak.com

TRUSTEE REPORT TO THE UNIT HOLDERS
UBL LIQUIDITY PLUS FUND

Report of the Trustee pursuant to Regulation 41(h) and clause 9 of Schedule V of the Non-
Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008

We Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited, being the Trustee of UBL Liquidity Plus
Fund {the Fund) are of the opinion that UBL Fund Managers Limited being the Management
Company of the Fund has in all material respects managed the Fund during the year ended June
30, 2018 in accordance with the provisions of the following:

(i) Limitations imposed on the investment powers of the Management Company under the
constitutive documents of the Fund:

(ii) The pricing, issuance and redemption of units are carried out in accordance with the
requirements of the constitutive documents of the Fund; and

{11} The Non-Banking Finance Companies {Establishment and Regulations) Rules, 2003, the
Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 and the
constitutive documents of the Fund.

G

Aftab Abmed Piwan
Chief Executive Officer
Centiral Depository Company of Pakistan Limited

Karachi: September 13, 2018
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH LISTED COMPANIES (CODE OF CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2817 BY UBL FUND MANAGERS LIMITED

NAME OF FUND: UBL LIQUIDITY PLUS FUND
YEAR ENDING: JUNE 30, 2018

The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) through its letter dated April 18, 2018 to
Mutual Funds Association of Pakistan (MUFAP) has exempted the open-end collective investment schemes
from the requirements of the Code of Corporate Governance. However, the Board of Directors of UBL Fund
Managers Limited (the Management Company) of UBL Liquidity Plus Fund (the Fund), for the purpose of
establishing a framework of good governance whereby a Fund is managed by best practice of Corporate
governance, has voluntarily opted to comply with the relevant provisions of the Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations 2017 (The Code).
The Management Company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:
1. The total number of directors are seven as per the following:
a. Male: Six Directors;
b. Female: One Director.

2, The composition of the Board is as follows:

Category Name
. Mr. Azhar Hamid
Independent Directors Ms. Naz Khan
Executive Directors Mr. Yasir Qadri

Mirza Muhammad Sadeed Hassan Barlas
Mr, Sharjeel Shahid

Mr. Zia ljaz

Syed Furrukh Zaeem

Non - Executive Directors

3. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than five listed
companies, including this company.

4, The Management Company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps

have been taken to disseminate it throughout the company along with its supporting policies and
procedures.

5. The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant
policies of the Management Company. A complete record of particulars of significant policies along
with the dates on which they were approved or amended has been maintained, The Management
Company has placed the Whistle Blowing Policy, Proxy Policy and the Principles of the Code of
Conduct (Statement of Ethics and Business Practice) on its website.

6. The Board of directors have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors
in accordance with the Act and these Regulations.

7. The Board has a formal and effective mechanism in place for an annual evaluation of the Board’s own
performance.

UBL FUND MANAGERS LIMITED

§, +92 21111 825 262
& info@ublfunds.com

@ 4% Floor, STSM Building, Beaumont Road, Civil Lines, Karachi. www.ublfunds.com
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8. The Chairman of the Board is an Independent director. All the powers of the Board have been duly
exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been taken by Board as empowered by the relevant
provisions of the Act and these Regulations.

9. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director
elected by the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of Act and the
Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting of Board.

10. Following directors and executive have acquired the prescribed Director Training Progrem (DTP)
certification:

Directors
Mirza Muhammad Sadeed Hassan Barlas

Mr. Yasir Qadri

Mr. Zia ljaz

Ms, Naz Khan

Syed Furrukh Zaeem

Executive
f. S.M. Aly Osman

11. The Board has approved appointment of CFO, Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit,
including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and complied with relevant
requirements of the Regulations.

12. CFO and CEO duly endorsed the financial statements before approval of the Board.

13. The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below. The Board Audit Committee
and the Board Human Resource & Compensation Committee are chaired by separate Independent
directors:

a. Board Audit Committee

i. Ms, Naz Khan (Chair);

ii. Mirza Muhammad Sadeed Hassan Barlas;
iii. Mr. Sharjeel Shahid;
iv. Mr. Zia ljaz.

o a0 TP

b. Board Human Resource & Compensation Committee
i. Mr, Azhar Hamid (Chairman);
ii. Mr. Yasir Qadri;
iii. Mr. Zia [jaz
iv. Ms. Naz Khan;
v. Syed Furrukh Zaeem.
c. Board Risk & Compliance Committee
i. Mirza Muhammad Sadeed Hassan Barlas (Chairman);
ii. Mr. Azhar Hamid;
iii. Mr. Sharjeel Shahid;
iv. Mr. Yasir Qadri;
v. Syed Furrukh Zaeem.

UBL FUND MANAGERS LIMITED
R +22 21111825 2462
& info@ublfunds.com

Q@ 4" Floor, STSM Building, Beaumont Read, Civil Lines, Karachi, www.ublfunds com
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14, The Terms of Reference of the aforesaid Committees have been formed, documented and advised to
the Committee for compliance.

15. The frequency of meetings of the Committee were as per following:
a. Board Audit Committee : Quarterly Meeting
b. Board Human Resource & Compensation Committee: Quarterly Meeting
¢. Board Risk & Compliance Committee: Quarterly Meeting

16. The Board has set up an independent and effective internal audit function and the audit personnel are

suitably qualified and experienced for the purpose and are conversant with the policies and procedures
of the Management Company.

17. The statutory auditors of the Fund have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating
under the quality control review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP)
and registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they or any of the partners of the firm,
their spouses and minor children do not hold units of the Fund and that the firm and all its partners are
in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as
adopted by the ICAP,

18. The Board Audit Committee recommends to the Board of directors the appointment of external
auditors, their removal, audit fees, the provision of any service permissible to be rendered to the
company by the external auditors in addition to audit of its financial statements,

19. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other
services except in accordance with the Act, these regulations or any other regulatory requirement and
the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard,

20. We, confirm that any other significant requirements of the Regulations have been complied with.

Karachi.
Dated: Angust 28, 2018

UBL. FUKND MANAGERS LIMITED

o +92 21111825 262

&= info@ublfunds.com

@ 4™ Floor, STSM Building, Beaumont Road, Clvit Lines, Karachi www.Lblfunds.com
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REVIEW REPORT TO THE UNITHOLDERS OF UBL LIQUIDITY PLUS FUND
ON THE STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE CONTAINED IN LISTED COMPANIES (CODE OF CORPORATE
GOVERNAMNCE) REGULATIONS, 2017 AS ADOPTED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF UBL FUND
MANAGERS LIMITED

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017 (the Regulations) as adopted by the Board of Directors
(the Board) of UBL Fund Managers Limited, the Management Company of UBL Ligquidity Plus Fund
(the Fund) for the year ended June 30, 2018 in accordance with the requirements of regulation 40
of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the
Management Company of the Fund. Our responsibility is to review whether the 5Statement of
Compliance reflects the status of the Fund's compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and
report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations.
A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Management Company's personnel and review of
various documents prepared by the Management Company to comply with the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the
accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit
approach, We are not required to consider whether the Board’s statement on internal control
covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls,
the Management Company's corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Management Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon
recommendation of the Audit Committee, place before the Board for their review and approval, its
related party transactions and also ensure compliance with the requirements of section 208 of the
Companies Act, 2017. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to
the extent of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board upon recommendation of
the Audit Committee. We have not carried out procedures to assess and determine the Fund's
process for identification of related parties and that whether the related party transactions were
undertaken at arm's length price or not,

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the
Statement of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Fund's compliance, in all material
respects, with the requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Fund for the year
ended June 30, 2018,

Page - 1

BDO Ebrahim & Co. Chartered Accountants
06 Dhialim f T, , o Pakistai eegistened partnerslilp fiom, b maomber of B00 liabatiia blodial Limiied, & UK eampmny Diailed by guaranise,
it v ik padt af thae lsternational BOO neworb ol indegondant embm Him



IBDO

We draw attention to the following paragraph as detailed in the Statement of Compliance;

“The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) through its letter dated April 18,
2018 to Mutual Funds Assaciation of Pakistan (MUFAP) has exempted the open-end collective
Investment schemes from the requirements of the Code of Corporate Governance. However, the
Board of Directors of UBL Fund Managers Limited (the Management Company) of UBL Liquidity Plus
Fund (the Fund), for the purpose of establishing a framework of good governance whereby a Fund
Is managed by best practice of Corporate governance, has voluntarily apted to comply with the
relevant provisions of the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations 2017
(The Code)."

Accordingly, our opinion is in relation to Statement of Compliance contained in Listec Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017 as adopted by the Board of Directors of the

Management Company. : &
K\\ - .
KARACHI

DATED: AUGUST 28, 2018 CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
# Engagement Partner: Zulfikar Ali Causer
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE UNITHOLDERS
Report on the audit of the financial statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of UBL Liquidity Plus Fund (“the Fund”), which comprise
the statement of assets and liabilities as at June 30, 2018, and the income statement, statement of
comprehensive income, statement of cash flows and statement of movement in unit holders’ fund
for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Fund as at June 30, 2018, and its financial performance and its cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with approved accounting standards as applicable in
Pakistan.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable
in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Fund in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Pakistan (the Code), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matter

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance
in our audit of the financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Following are the Key audit matters:

How the matter was addressed in our

S.NO

Key audit matter(s)

audit

1.

Amendment to the NBFC Regulations,
2008

The Securities and Exchange Commission of
Pakistan through its SRO 756(1)/2017 dated
August 3, 2017 made certain amendments
in the Non-Banking Finance Companies and
Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 (the
Regulations).

Our audit procedures included:

o We reviewed the processes and
controls implemented by the Fund
relating to the production and review
of system generated reports and
manual workings for the purpose of
calculations of element of income or
loss and bifurcation of amount paid on
redemption of units into “capital
value” and “income already paid on
units redeemed”.

Page - 1
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S.NO

Key audit matter(s)

How the matter was addressed in our
audit

The said notification included a definition
and explanation relating to "element of
income” and excluded the element of
income from the expression "accounting
income” as described in Regulation 63 of
the Regulations (amount distributable to
unit holders) of the NBFC Regulations.

Previously, an equalization account called
the ‘element of income / (loss) and capital
gains / (losses) included in prices of units
issued less those in units redeemed’ was
created, in order to prevent the dilution of
per unit income and distribution of income
already paid out on redemption.

As per the revised methodology mentioned
in the notification referred above, element
of income is a transaction of capital nature
and the receipt and payment of element of
income is taken to unitholders’ fund.
Furthermore, the amendments also require
certain additional disclosures with respect
to ‘Income Statement' and ‘Statement of
Movement in Unit Holders' Fund’, whereas
disclosure with respect to 'Distribution
Statement’ has been deleted in the said
amendments.

Due to the significance of impact on
financial results of the Fund including
substantial changes in disclosures of the
Fund’s financial statements as a result of
above mentioned amendments, we have
considered the application of amendments
as a key audit matter. (Refer Note 4.12 to
the financial statements of the Fund )

= We evaluated the accuracy of system
generated reports and manual workings
produced by the Fund to ensure that
the data is consistent with source
documents and the said workings are in
compliance with all the statutory
provisions relating to element of
income or loss.

* We assessed the appropriateness of the
recognition, measurement and
presentation of “element of income /
loss” in accordance with the amended
provisions of the NBFC Regulations. We
also considered the guidelines issued by
MUFAP in respect of the accounting for
element of income / loss as per the
revised Regulations and assessed its
implementation by the Fund.

° We evaluated the adequacy of
disclosures regarding the change in
accounting policy with respect to
element of income / loss along with
the adequacy of additional disclosures
with respect to ‘Income Statement’ and
‘Statement of Movement in Unit
Holders' Fund' in accordance with the
requirements of the relevant financial
reporting standards and the guidance
issued by MUFAP in relation thereto.

Information other than the financial statements and auditor’s report thereon

The Management Company is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the annual report but does not include the financial

statements and our auditor’s re
cover the other information and we do not ex

port thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not
press any form of assurance conclusion thereon. In

connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other

information and, in doing so, consider whether t

he other information is materially inconsistent with

the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
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material misstatement of this other information; we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Management Company and its Board of Directors

The Management Company (“UBL Fund Managers Limited”) of the Fund is responsible for the
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with the requirements
of the Trust Deed, the Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulation) Rules, 2003
(NBFC Rules), the Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 (the
NBFC Regulations) and approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan and for such
internal control as the Management Company determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management Company is responsible for assessing the
Fund’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Management Company either
intends to liquidate the Fund or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Management Company is responsible for overseeing the Fund’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting

from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Fund’s internal control.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management Company.
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o Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management Company’s use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Fund’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Fund to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Board of Directors of the Management Company regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Board of Directors of the Management Company with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors of the Management Company, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of
the current year and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion the financial statements have been

prepared in accordance with the relevant provisions of the Trust Deed, NBFC Rules and NBFC
Regulations.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Zulfikar Ali
Causer.

KARACHI KK Q\M_

DATE 2 § AUG 2018 49, BDO EBRAHIM & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
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UBL LIQUIDITY PLUS FUND
STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

AS AT JUNE 30, 2018
2018 2017
Note = -—-—- (Rupees in '000) --—---—-—-

ASSETS

Bank balances 5 12,991,421 4,179,845

Placements and Term Deposit Receipts 6 1,580,000 -

Investments 7 - -

Mark-up / interest receivable 8 18,914 21,443

Deposits, prepayments and other receivable 9 15,770 54,397

Advance tax 10 2,482 1,944
TOTAL ASSETS 14,608,587 4,257,629
LIABILITIES

Payable to UBL Fund Managers Limited - Management Company 11 10,922 2,676

Payable to Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee 12 1,185 320

Payable to Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan 13 7,080 2,490

Accrued expenses and other liabilities 14 135,190 169,900
TOTAL LIABILITIES 154,377 175,386
NET ASSETS 14,454,210 4,082,243
UNIT HOLDERS' FUND (AS PER STATEMENT ATTACHED) 14,454,210 4,082,243
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 15

----------- (Number of units)----------
NUMBER OF UNITS IN ISSUE 16 136,059,656 40,545,329
----------------- (Rupees)----------------
NET ASSETS VALUE PER UNIT 106.2344 100.6834
The annexed notes from 1 to 34 form an integral part of these financial statements.
For UBL Fund Managers Limited
(Management Company)
SD SD SD

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER DIRECTOR



UBL LIQUIDITY PLUS FUND
INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

INCOME
Financial income 17
Capital loss on sale of investments - net
Other income

Total income

EXPENSES
Remuneration of UBL Fund Managers Limited - Management Company 11.1
Sindh Sales Tax on Management Company's remuneration 11.2
Remuneration of Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee 12.1
Annual fee of Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan 13.1
Bank charges
Auditors' remuneration 18
Brokerage and settlement expenses
Allocated expenses 19
Fees and subscription charges
Listing fee
Legal and professional charges
Printing expenses
Other expenses
Total operating expenses
Net income from operating activities
Element of loss and capital losses included
in prices of units issued less those in units redeemed - net
Reversal of provision for Workers' Welfare Fund 14.2
Provision for Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund 14.2
Net income for the year before taxation
Taxation 20
Net income for the year after taxation

Allocation of net income for the year
Income already paid on units redeemed
Net income for the year available for distribution

Relating to capital gains
Excluding capital gains

Earnings per unit 21

The annexed notes from 1 to 34 form an integral part of these financial statements.

For UBL Fund Managers Limited
(Management Company)

SD SD
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

2018

2017

------- (Rupees in '000) ----—---

603,476 209,706
(3,398) (933)
675 221
600,753 208,994
48,597 25,693
6,318 3,340
8,567 3,661
7,081 2,490
845 196
738 688
729 231
8,596 3,320
266 272
27 50
152 352
21 22
21 11
81,958 40,326
518,795 168,668
. (113,073)
- 28,386
10,179 (3,642)
508,616 80,339
508,616 80,339
(254,922)
253,694
253,694
253,694
SD
DIRECTOR




UBL LIQUIDITY PLUS FUND
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

2018 2017

Net income for the year after taxation 508,616 80,339

Other comprehensive income
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to income statement - -
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to income statement - -

Total comprehensive income for the year 508,616 80,339

The annexed notes from 1 to 34 form an integral part of these financial statements.

For UBL Fund Managers Limited
(Management Company)

SD SD SD

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER DIRECTOR



UBL LIQUIDITY PLUS FUND
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income for the year before taxation

Adjustments for:
Financial income
Capital loss on sale of investments - net
Element of loss and capital losses included in the prices
of units issued less those in units redeemed - net
Provision for Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund
Reversal of Provision for Workers' Welfare Fund

Cash used in operations before working capital changes

Working capital changes

Decrease / (increase) in assets
Investments - net
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables
Advance tax

(Decrease) / increase in liabilities
Payable to UBL Fund Managers Limited - Management Company
Payable to Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee
Annual fee payable to Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Profit received on bank balances and investments
Net cash generated from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from issuance of units
Payment against redemption of units
Dividend paid
Net cash generated from financing activities
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents during the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Bank balances
Term Deposit Receipts

The annexed notes from 1 to 34 form an integral part of these financial statements.

For UBL Fund Managers Limited
(Management Company)

SD SD
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

2018

2017

------- (Rupees in '000) -------

508,616 80,339
(604,151) (209,927)
3,398 933
- 113,073
10,179 3,642
- (28,386)
(590,574) (120,665)
(81,958) (40,326)
(3,398) 597,278
38,627 (51,358)
(538) @)
34,691 545913
8,246 (3,465)
865 ©)
4,590 (1,430)
(44,889) 86,601
(31,188) 81,704
606,680 230,255
528,225 817,546
37,438,819 14,425,004
(27,575.468)||  (12,964,252)
- (73,829)
9,863,351 1,386,923
10,391,576 2,204,469
4,179,845 1,975,376
14,571,421 4,179,845
12,991,421 4,179,845
1,580,000 -
14,571,421 4,179,845
SD
DIRECTOR




UBL LIQUIDITY PLUS FUND

STATEMENT OF MOVEMENT IN UNIT HOLDERS' FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Note

Net assets at the beginning of the year
Issuance 0of 359,901,975 units (2017: 140,673,252 units)
Capital value of units
Element of income during the year
Due to net income earned
Total proceeds on issuance of units

Redemption of 264,387,648 units (2017: 125,016,859 units)
Capital value of units
Element of income during the year
Due to net income earned
Total payments on redemption of units

Element of loss and capital losses included in the prices

of units issued less those in units redeemed - net

Total comprehensive income for the year

Distribution during the year 32
Net income for the year less distribution

Net assets at the end of the year

Undistributed income brought forward comprises of:
Realised gain

Unrealised gain / (loss)

Total undistributed income brought forward

Income available for distribution:
Relating to capital gains
Excluding capital gains

Distribution during the year: Nil
(2017: Rs. 6.08 per unit declared on June 19, 2017) 32
Undistributed income carried forward

Undistributed income carried forward comprises of:
Realised gain

Unrealised gain
Total undistributed income carried forward

Net assets value per unit at the beginning of the year

Net assets value per unit at the end of the year

The annexed notes from 1 to 34 form an integral part of these financial statements.

SD

2018 2017
Capital Um?lstrlbuted Total Total
value income
(Rupees in '000)
4,002,156 80,087 4,082,243 2,501,908
36,236,154 - 36,236,154 -
1,202,665 - 1,202,665 -
37,438,819 37,438,819 14,425,004
(26,619,448) - (26,619,448) -
(701,098) (254,922) (956,020) -
(27,320,546) (254,922) (27,575,468) (12,964,252)
- - - 113,073
- 508,616 508,616 80,339
- - - (73,829)
- 508,616 508,616 6,510
14,120,429 333,781 14,454,210 4,082,243
80,087 80,087 75,020
- - (1,443)
80,087 80,087 73,577
253,694 253,694 80,339
253,694 253,694 80,339
- - (73,829)
333,781 333,781 80,087
333,781 333,781 80,087
333,781 333,781 80,087
(Rupees) (Rupees)
100.6834 100.5229
106.2344 100.6834
For UBL Fund Managers Limited
(Management Company)
SD SD
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER DIRECTOR

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER




UBL LIQUIDITY PLUS FUND
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

1

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

2.1

LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

UBL Liquidity Plus Fund (the Fund) was established under the Non-Banking Finance Companies
(Establishment and Regulation) Rules, 2003 (the NBFC Rules) as an open-ended mutual fund. It
was constituted under the Trust Deed dated May 07, 2009 between UBL Fund Managers Limited
(a wholly owned subsidiary company of United Bank Limited) as the Management Company, a
company incorporated under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now Companies Act) and
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (CDC) as the Trustee. The Trust Deed has also
been approved by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP). The registered
office of the Management Company is situated at 4th floor, STSM Building, Beaumont Road,
Civil Lines, Karachi.

The Management Company of the Fund is registered with the SECP as a Non-Banking Finance
Company under the NBFC Rules.

The Fund is a money market scheme and units of the Fund are listed on the Pakistan Stock
Exchange. Units are offered for public subscription on a continuous basis. The units are
transferable and can also be redeemed by surrendering them to the Fund at the option of the unit
holder. The Fund is categorised as an open-ended money market scheme in accordance with
Circular No. 7 of 2009 issued by the SECP and it commences its operations on June 21, 2009.

The principal activity of the Fund is to seek and provide attractive daily returns while maintaining
comparatively high liquidity by investing in diversified portfolio of low risk assets.

Title to the assets of the Fund are held in the name of the CDC as the Trustee of the Fund.
JCR-VIS Credit Rating Company has assigned an asset manager quality rating of '"AM1' (stable
outlook) to the Management Company as on December 29, 2017 and a stability rating of "AA (f)"
to the Fund as on December 29, 2017.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan.
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2.3

2.4

The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017, provisions of and directives issued under the
Companies Act, 2017 along with part VIIIA of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984; and
Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulations) Rules, 2003 (the NBFC
Rules), Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 (the NBFC
Regulations) and requirements of the Trust Deed. Where provisions of and directives issued under
the Companies Act, 2017, part VIIIA of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984, the NBFC
Rules, the NBFC Regulations and requirements of the Trust Deed differ from the IFRS Standards,
the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, part VIIIA of the repealed
Companies Ordinance, 1984, the NBFC Rules, the NBFC Regulations and requirements of the
Trust Deed have been followed.

Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except
investments that are stated at fair values. These financial statements have been prepared by
following accrual basis of accounting except for cash flows information.

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees, which is the Fund's functional and
presentation currency.

Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards, as
applicable in Pakistan, requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of
which form the basis of making the judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

Judgments made by management in the application of approved accounting standards, as
applicable in Pakistan, that have significant effect on the financial statements and estimates with a
significant risk of material judgment in the next year are as follows:
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Classification and valuation of investments

For details please refer notes 4.2 and 22 to these financial statements.

Impairment of investment

A financial asset is assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any objective
evidence that it is impaired. This objective evidence of impairment of fixed income securities is
determined in accordance with provisioning criteria for non performing exposures as per the

requirements of Circular No. 33 of 2012 dated October 24, 2012.

Element of income / (loss) and capital gains / (losses) included in the prices of units issued
less those in units redeemed - net

For details please refer note 4.12 to these financial statements.

Provision for taxation

For details please refer notes 4.9 and 19 to these financial statements.
Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund

For details please refer note 14.2 to these financial statements.

Other assets

Judgment is involved in assessing the realisability of other assets balances.

NEW STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS TO PUBLISHED
APPROVED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

Amendments that are effective in current year and are relevant to the Fund

The Fund has adopted the amendments to the following approved accounting standards as
applicable in Pakistan which became effective during the year from the dates mentioned below
against the respective standards:
Effective date
(annual periods
beginning on or

after)
IFRS 7 Statement of Cash Flows - Amendments resulting from the
disclosure initiative January 01, 2017
IFRS 12 Income Taxes - Amendments regarding the recognition of

deferred tax assets for unrealised losses January 01, 2017
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Effective date
(annual periods
beginning on or

after)

Other than the amendments to standards mentioned above, there are certain annual improvements
made to IFRS that became effective during the year:

Annual Improvements to IFRSs (2014 — 2016) Cycle:

IFRS 12

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

Amendments not yet effective

January 01, 2017

The following amendments with respect to the approved accounting standards as applicable in
Pakistan would be effective from the dates mentioned below against the respective standard:

Conceptual framework for Financial reporting 2018-Original Issue

IFRS 2

IFRS 4

IFRS 7

IFRS 9

IFRS 9

IFRS 9

Share-based Payment - Amendments to clarify the
classification and measurement of share-based payment
transactions

Insurance Contracts - Amendments regarding the interaction of
IFRS 4 and IFRS 9

Financial Instruments : Disclosures - Additional hedge
accounting disclosures (and consequential amendments)
resulting from the introduction of the hedge accounting chapter
in [IFRS 9

Financial Instruments - Reissue to incorporate a hedge
accounting chapter and permit the early application of the
requirements for presenting in other comprehensive income the
'own credit' gains or losses on financial liabilities designated
under the fair value option without early applying the other
requirements of [FRS 9

Financial Instruments - Finalised version, incorporating
requirements for classification and measurement, impairment,
general hedge accounting and derecognition.

Financial Instruments - Amendments regarding prepayment
features with negative compensation and modifications of
financial liabilities

March 2018

January 01, 2018

January 01, 2018

Applies when
IFRS 9 is applied

January 01, 2018

January 01, 2018

January 01, 2019



IFRS 10

IAS 19

IAS 28

IAS 28

IAS 39

IAS 40

Consolidated Financial Statements - Amendments regarding
the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture

Employee benefits - Amendments regarding plan amendments,
curtailments or settlements

Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures - Amendments
regarding the sale or contribution of assets between an investor
and its associate or joint venture

Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures - Amendments
regarding long-term interests in associates and joint ventures

Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurements-
Amendments to permit an entity to elect to continue to apply
the hedge accounting requirements in IAS 39 for a fair value
hedge of the interest rate exposure of a portion of a portfolio of
financial assets or financial liabilities when IFRS 9 is applied,
and to extend the fair value option to certain contracts that meet
the 'own use' scope exception

Investment Property - Amendments to clarify transfers or
property to, or from, investment property

Effective date
(annual periods
beginning on or

after)

Deferred
indefinitely

January 01, 2019

Deferred
indefinitely

January 01, 2019

Applies when
IFRS 9 is applied

January 01, 2018

The Annual Improvements to IFRSs that are effective from the dates mentioned below against
respective standards:

Annual Improvements to [FRSs (2014 — 2016) Cycle:

IFRS 1

IAS 28

First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting
Standards
Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

Annual Improvements to [FRSs (2015 —2017) Cycle:

IFRS 3
IFRS 11
IAS 12
IAS 23

Business Combinations
Joint Arrangements
Income Taxes
Borrowing Costs

January 01, 2018

January 01, 2018

January 01, 2019
January 01, 2019
January 01, 2019
January 01, 2019
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4.1

4.2

4.2.1

Standards or interpretations not yet effective

The following new standards have been issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(IASB), which have been adopted locally by the Securities and Exchange Commission of
Pakistan effective from the dates mentioned below against the respective standard:

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments July 01, 2018
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers July 01, 2018
IFRS 16 Leases January 1, 2019

The following new standards and interpretations have been issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB), which have not been adopted locally by the Securities and
Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP):

IFRS 1  First Time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards
IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

The effects of IFRS 15 - Revenues from Contracts with Customers and IFRS 9 - Financial
Instruments are still being assessed, as these new standards may have a significant effect on the
Fund®s future financial statements.

The Fund expects that the adoption of the other amendments and interpretations of the standards
will not have any material impact and therefore will not affect the Fund's financial statements in
the period of initial application.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set
out below. These accounting policies have been consistently applied unless otherwise stated.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise balances with banks and short-term highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less. Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the
statement of assets and liabilities at nominal values.

Financial assets

Classification

The Fund classifies its financial assets in the following categories: loans and receivables, at fair
value through profit or loss and available for sale. The classification depends on the purpose for

which the financial assets were acquired. The management determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition and re-evaluates this classification on regular basis.
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4.2.2

4.2.3

4.2.4

Investments are categorised as follows:
Loans and receivables

These are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets that are acquired principally for the purpose of generating profit from short-term
fluctuations in prices are classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss category.

Available for sale

Available for sale financial assets are those non-derivative financial assets that are designated as
available for sale or are not classified as (a) loans and receivables, (b) held to maturity
investments or (c) financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. These are intended to be
held for an indefinite period of time which may be sold in response to the needs for liquidity or
change in price.

Regular way contracts

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date - the date on
which the Fund commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs except for financial
assets carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through
profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value and transaction costs are expensed in the income
statement.

Subsequent measurement

Financial assets 'at fair value through profit or loss' and 'available for sale'

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets 'at fair value through profit or loss' and
investments classified as 'available for sale' are valued as follows:

Basis of valuation of Government securities

The investment of the Fund in Government securities is valued on the basis of rates announced by
the Financial Markets Association of Pakistan.
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4.2.5

4.2.6

4.3

Net gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value and on sale of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss are taken to the 'income statement'.

Net gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of available for sale financial assets are
recognised in unit holders' fund through other comprehensive income until these are derecognised
or impaired. At this time, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in unit holders' fund
is shown in the income statement.

Loans and receivables

Subsequent to initial recognition financial assets classified as loans and receivables are carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Gains or losses on these instruments are also recognised in the income statement when the
financial assets carried at amortised cost are derecognised or impaired.

Impairment

The Fund assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that the financial
assets or a group of financial assets are impaired. The carrying value of the Fund's assets are
reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of such assets is estimated. An impairment loss is
recognised whenever the carrying value of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.

The amount of provision for certain debt securities is determined based on the provisioning
criteria specified by the SECP.

For certain other financial assets, a provision for impairment is established when there is
objective evidence that the Fund will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the
original terms. The provision against those amounts is made as per the provisioning policy duly
formulated and approved by the Board of Directors of the Management Company in accordance
with the requirements of the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have
expired or have been transferred and the Fund has transferred substantially all risks and rewards
of ownership.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are recognised at the time when the Fund becomes a party to the

contractual provisions of the instrument. These are initially recognised at fair value and
subsequently stated at amortised cost.
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4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expired.

Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement
of assets and liabilities when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Derivatives

Derivative instruments are initially recognised at fair value and subsequent to initial measurement
each derivative instrument is remeasured to its fair value and the resultant gain or loss is
recognised in the income statement.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Fund has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount of obligation can be made.
Provisions are regularly reviewed and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Collaterals

Cash collaterals provided by the Fund are identified in the statement of assets and liabilities as
margin and are not included as a component of cash and cash equivalents. For collaterals other
than cash, if the party to whom the collaterals are provided has a right by contract or custom to
sell or re-pledge the collaterals, the Fund classifies that collaterals in the statement of assets and
liabilities separately from other assets and identifies the assets as pledged collaterals. Where the
party to whom the collaterals are provided does not have the right to sell or re-pledge, a
disclosure of the collaterals provided is made in the notes to the financial statements.

Securities under repurchase / resale agreements

Transactions of purchase under resale (reverse-repo) of marketable and Government securities,
are entered into at contracted rates for specified periods of time. Securities purchased with a
corresponding commitment to resell at a specified future date (reverse-repos) are not recognised
in the statement of assets and liabilities. Amounts paid under these agreements are included in
receivable in respect of reverse repurchase transactions. The difference between purchase and
resale price is treated as income from reverse repurchase transactions and accrued over the life of
the reverse-repo agreement on a time proportionate basis.
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4.10

4.11

Transactions of sale under repurchase (repo) of marketable and Government securities are entered
into at contracted rates for specified periods of time. Securities sold with a simultaneous
commitment to repurchase at a specified future date (repos) continue to be recognised in the
statement of assets and liabilities and are measured in accordance with accounting policies for
investment securities.

The counterparty liabilities for amounts received under these transactions are recorded as
liabilities. The difference between sale and repurchase price is treated as borrowing charges and
accrued over the life of the repo agreement on a time proportionate basis.

Taxation

The income of the Fund is exempt from income tax under clause 99 of Part I of the Second
Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 subject to the condition that not less than ninety
percent of its accounting income for the year, as reduced by capital gains, whether realised or
unrealised, is distributed to the unit holders.

The Fund is also exempt from the provisions of Section 113 (minimum tax) under clause 11A of
Part IV of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

The Fund provides for deferred taxation using the balance sheet liability method on all major
temporary differences between the amounts used for financial reporting purposes and the amounts
used for taxation purposes. In addition, the Fund also records deferred tax asset on unutilised tax
losses to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.
However, the Fund has not recognised any amount in respect of deferred tax in these financial
statements as the Fund intends to continue availing the tax exemption in future years by
distributing at least ninety percent of its accounting income for the year as reduced by capital
gains, whether realised or unrealised, to its unit holders.

Proposed distributions

Distributions declared subsequent to the year end reporting date are considered as non-adjusting
events and are recognised in the financial statements in the year in which such distributions are
declared.

Issuance and redemption of units

Units are allocated at the offer price prevalent on the day on which funds for purchase of units are
realised. The offer price represents the net asset value per unit at the end of the preceding day.
Issue of units is also recorded on realisation of funds.

Units redeemed are recorded at the redemption price, applicable to units for which the Fund
receives redemption applications during business hours of that day. The redemption price
represents the net asset value per unit at the end of the preceding day. Redemption of units is
recorded on acceptance of application for redemption.
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Element of income / (loss) and capital gains / (losses) included in prices of units issued less
those in units redeemed

The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan through its SRO 756(1)/2017 dated August
3, 2017 has made certain amendments in the NBFC Regulations. The notification includes a
definition and explanation relating to "element of income" and excludes the element of income
from the expression "accounting income" as described in Regulation 63 (amount distributable to
unit holders) of the NBFC Regulations. As per the notification, element of income represents the
difference between net assets value per unit on the issuance or redemption date, as the case may
be, of units and the net assets value per unit at the beginning of the relevant accounting period.
Further, the revised regulations also specify that element of income is a transaction of capital
nature and the receipt and payment of element of income shall be taken to unit holders' fund.
However, to maintain the same ex-dividend net asset value of all units outstanding on the
accounting date, net element of income contributed on issue of units lying in unit holders fund
will be refunded on units in the same proportion as dividend bears to accounting income available
for distribution. Furthermore, the revised regulations also require certain additional disclosures
with respect to 'Income Statement' and 'Statement of Movement in Unit Holders' Fund', whereas
disclosure with respect to 'Distribution Statement' has been deleted in the revised regulations.

Previously, an equalisation account called the 'element of income / (loss) and capital gains /
(losses) included in prices of units issued less those in units redeemed' was created, in order to
prevent the dilution of per unit income and distribution of income already paid out on redemption.
The net element of income / (loss) and capital gains / (losses) relating to units issued and
redeemed during the accounting period which pertained to unrealised appreciation / (diminution)
held in the Unit Holder's Fund was recorded in a separate account and any amount remaining in
this reserve account at the end of the accounting period (whether gain or loss) was included in the
amount available for distribution to the unitholders. The remaining portion of the net element of
income / (loss) and capital gains / (losses) relating to units issued and redeemed during an
accounting period was recognised in the Income Statement.

As required by IAS 8: 'Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors', a
change in accounting policy requires retrospective application as if that policy had always been
applied. However, since there are practical impediments attached to retrospective application of
change in accounting policy and retrospective restatement, therefore, the Management Company
has applied the above changes in accounting policy, including the additional disclosures
requirements in the 'Income Statement' and 'Statement of Movement in Unit Holders' Fund',
prospectively from July 1, 2017. Further, MUFAP has clarified that the amendment is applicable
for accounting period beginning on July 01, 2017. Accordingly, corresponding figures have not
been restated. The ,,Distribution Statement™ for the comparative period has not been presented as
it has been deleted as a result of the amendments made in the NBFC Regulations vide the
aforementioned SRO issued by the SECP.
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4.14

4.15

4.16

Had the element of income been recognised as per the previous accounting policy, the income /
loss of the Fund would have been higher by Rs 246.450 million. However, the change in
accounting policy does not have any impact on the 'Cash flow Statement', the 'met assets
attributable to the unit holders' and 'net asset value per unit' as shown in the 'Statement of Assets
and Liabilities' and 'Statement of Movement in Unit Holders' Fund'. The change has resulted in
inclusion of certain additional disclosures / new presentation requirements in the 'Income
Statement' and 'Statement of Movement in Unit Holders' Fund which have been incorporated in
these financial statements.

Net asset value per unit

The Net Asset Value (NAV) per unit, as disclosed in the statement of assets and liabilities, is
calculated by dividing the net assets of the Fund by the number of units in issue at the year end.

Revenue recognition

- Gains / (losses) arising on sale of investments is accounted for in the year in which it
arises.

- Unrealised (loss) / gain on revaluation of investments classified as financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss is included in the income statement in the year in which
it arises.

- Unrealised (loss) / gain on revaluation of investments classified as ,,available-for-sale*is
included in the equity through other comprehensive income in the year in which it
arises.

- Income on reverse repurchase lending arrangements, certificates of investment,
placements, Government securities and investments in debt securities is recognised at
rate of return implicit in the instrument / arrangement on a time proportionate basis.

- Profit on bank balances and term deposits is recorded on accrual basis.

Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the date of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at the year end exchange rates are recognised in the income
statement.

Transactions with related parties / connected persons

Transactions with related parties / connected persons are based at arm's length at normal
commercial rates on the same terms and conditions as applicable to third party transactions.

Remuneration to the Management Company and the Trustee is determined in accordance with the
provisions of NBFC Regulations and the Trust Deed respectively.
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2018 2017

Note ~  -——- (Rupees in '000) -------
BANK BALANCES
Cash at bank
In current accounts 4 4
In saving accounts 5.1 12,991,417 4,179,841
12,991,421 4,179,845

Profit rates on these savings accounts range between 3.75% to 6.60% per annum (June 30, 2017:
3.75% to 6.2% per annum). This includes an amount held by a related party (United Bank
Limited) amounting to Rs. 32.157 million (June 30, 2017: Rs. 156.665 million) on which return is
earned at 4.00% (June 30, 2017: 4.00%) per annum.

PLACEMENTS AND TERM DEPOSIT RECEIPTS (TDRs)

Opening balance - -
Acquired during the year 14,416,000 940,000

Matured during the year 6.1 &6.2 (12,836,000) (940,000)
Closing balance 6.3 1,580,000 -

Term Deposit Receipts having face value of Rs. 4,646 million carrying interest rate ranging from
6.29% to 7.60% were acquired and matured during the year.

Letter of Placements having face value of Rs. 9,770 million carrying interest rates ranging from
6.25% to 6.75% were acquired and matured during the year.

This TDR carries interest at the rate of 7.35% per annum and will mature on July 20, 2018.

As per Regulation 55(5) of the Regulations, exposure of a collective investment scheme to any
single entity shall not exceed an amount equal to ten per cent of total net assets of the collective
investment scheme. The Fund has made investments in following entities in excess of ten percent
of its net assets:

Amount Percentage of
( Rupees in '000) Net Assets
Entity

Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited 1,580,000 10.93%
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INVESTMENTS

Investments in Government Securities designated at fair value through profit or loss

At the beginning Acquired during Sold/ matured At the end of the Market value as Market value as Percentage of

Name of security of the year the year during year year at June 30,2018 at June 30,2017 investment
Note — 0 No.ofholdings ————— — (Rupees in '000) ————-

Pakis tan Inves tment Bonds
PIB-3 Years - 10,000 10,000 - - - 0%
PIB-5 Years - 9,000 9,000

Market Treasury

Bills *
T bills 3 months - 401,070 401,070 - - - 0%
T bills 6 months - 18,150 18,150 - - - 0%

438,220 438,220 - - - 0%

* These T-bills have nominal value of Rs 100,000 each.

2018 2017
------- (Rupees in '000) -------

MARK-UP / INTEREST RECEIVABLE

Markup / interest receivable on:

Saving accounts 15,414 21,443
Term deposit receipts 3,500 -
18,914 21,443

DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLE

Deposit for CDS Account 100 100
Prepaid rating fees 239 239
Other receivables 36 -
Receivable against issuance of units 15,395 54,058
15,770 54,397
ADVANCE TAX

The income of the Fund is exempt from tax under clause 99 of Part I of the Second Schedule of
the Income Tax Ordinance 2001 (ITO 2001). Further, the Fund is exempt under clause 47(B) of
Part IV of Second Schedule of ITO 2001 from withholding of tax under section 150, 151 and 233
of ITO 2001. The Federal Board of Revenue through a circular “C.No.1 (43) DG (WHT)/ 2008-
Vol.II- 66417-R” dated May 12, 2015, made it mandatory to obtain exemption certificates under
section 159(1) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 from Commissioner Inland Revenue (CIR).
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12.1

During the year, prior to receiving tax exemption certificate(s) from CIR various withholding
agents have deducted advance tax under section 151 of ITO 2001. The management is confident
that the same shall be refunded after filing Income Tax Return for Tax Year 2018.

2018 2017
Note - (Rupees in '000) -------

PAYABLE TO UBL FUND MANAGERS LIMITED
- MANAGEMENT COMPANY

Remuneration payable (including Sindh Sales

tax) 11.1 7,952 2,048

Conversion charges payable 96 66

Allocated expense payable 19 2,874 562

10,922 2,676

As per NBFC Regulations, the Management Company is entitled to remuneration of an amount
not exceeding 1% of average annual net assets of the Fund. The Management Company has
charged remuneration at the rate of 7.5% of the gross earnings of the Fund calculated on a daily
basis subject to minimum of 0.25% and maximum of 1% of the average daily net assets from
November 19, 2017. Previously the Management Company was charging remuneration at the rate
of 10% of gross earnings of the fund, calculated on a daily basis subject to a minimum of 0.5%
and maximum of 1% of the average daily net assets of the Fund.

The Provincial Government of Sindh has levied Sindh Sales Tax at the rate of 13% on the
remuneration of the Management Company through the Sindh Sales Tax on Services Act, 2011.
PAYABLE TO CENTRAL DEPOSITORY COMPANY

OF PAKISTAN LIMITED - TRUSTEE

Trustee fee payable (including 12.1 &
Sindh Sales tax) 12.2 1,185 320

The Trustee is entitled to a monthly remuneration for the services rendered to the Fund under the
provisions of the Trust Deed and Offering Document as per the tariff structure specified therein,
based on the daily net asset value of the Fund. The remuneration is paid to the Trustee monthly
in arrears.



As per the Trust Deed and Offering Document, the tariff structure applicable to the Fund in
respect of the Trustee fee during the year ended June 30, 2018 is as follows:

Up to Rs. 1,000 million 0.15% p.a. of NAV

Rs. 1,000 million to Rs. 10,000 million Rs. 1.5 million plus 0.075% p.a. of NAV exceeding
Rs. 1,000 million

Exceeding Rs. 10,000 million Rs. 8.25 million plus 0.06% p.a. of NAV exceeding
Rs. 10,000 million

12.2  The Provincial Government of Sindh has levied Sindh Sales Tax at the rate of 13% on the Trustee
fee through the Sindh Sales Tax on Services Act, 2011.

2018 2017
Note - (Rupees in '000) -------
13 PAYABLE TO THE SECURITIES AND
EXCHANGE COMMISSION OF PAKISTAN
Annual fee payable 13.1 7,080 2,490

13.1  Under the provisions of NBFC Regulations, a collective investment scheme classified as money
market scheme is required to pay as annual fee to the SECP, an amount equal to 0.075% of the
average annual net assets of the Fund.

14 ACCRUED EXPENSES AND

OTHER LIABILITIES

Auditors' remuneration payable 469 456
Brokerage expense payable 219 32
Payable against legal charges 11 -

Capital gains tax payable 15,999 6,716
Zakat deducted at source payable 715 872
Payable against redemption of units 48,565 93,136
Withholding tax payable - 9,632
Provision for indirect duties and taxes 14.1 55,390 55,390
Sindh sales tax payable - 24
Provision for Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund 14.2 13,822 3,642

135,190 169,900
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14.2

As per the requirements of the Finance Act 2013, Federal Excise Duty (FED) at the rate of 16%
on the remuneration of the Management Company was applied with effect from June 13, 2013.
The Management Company is of the view that since the remuneration is already subject to the
provincial sales tax, further levy of FED results in double taxation, which does not appear to be
the spirit of the law. The matter was collectively taken up by the Management Company jointly
with other Asset Management Companies and Trustees of respective Collective Investment
Schemes (CISs), through a Constitutional Petition filed in the Honorable High Court of Sindh
(SHC) during September 2013. In this respect, the SHC had issued a stay order against the
recovery of FED due to which the Fund has not made any payments for FED upto June 30, 2016.

On June 30, 2016, the Honorable Sindh High Court of Pakistan had passed a Judgment that after
18th amendment in the Constitution of Pakistan, the Provinces alone have the legislative power to
levy a tax on rendering or providing services, therefore, chargeability and collection of FED after
July 01, 2011 is ultra vires to the Constitution of Pakistan. On September 23, 2016, the Federal
Board of Revenue (FBR) filed an appeal in the Supreme Court of Pakistan (SCP) against above
judgement, which is pending adjudication. Management Company, as a matter of abundant
caution, has maintained full provision for FED aggregating to Rs. 55.390 million until the matter
is resolved. Had the provision not been made, the net asset value per unit of the Fund as at June
30, 2018 would have been higher by Re. 0.4071 per unit (June 30, 2017: Rs. 1.3661 per unit).

Through Finance Act, 2016, FED on services rendered by Non-Banking Financial Institutions
(NBFlIs) including Asset Management Companies, which are already subject to provincial sales
tax, has been withdrawn. Therefore provision for FED has not been recorded.

The Finance Act, 2008 introduced an amendment to the Workers' Welfare Fund Ordinance, 1971
(WWF Ordinance) as a result of which it was construed that all Collective Investment Schemes /
Mutual Funds (CISs) whose income exceeded Rs. 500,000 in a tax year were brought within the
scope of the WWF Ordinance, thus rendering them liable to pay contribution to WWF at the rate
of two percent of their accounting or taxable income, whichever was higher.

The amendments introduced in the WWF Ordinance were challenged in various High Courts of
Pakistan. The Honorable Lahore High Court (LHC) and the Honorable High Court of Sindh
(SHC) arrived at different conclusions in respect of the validity of the amendments made through
the Finance Act in relation to the WWEF. Both the decisions of the LHC and the SHC were
challenged in the Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan (SCP). On November 10, 2016 the SCP
passed a judgment declaring the insertion of amendments introduced through Finance Act, 2008
pertaining to WWF as unlawful for the reason that the WWF is not in the nature of tax and
therefore, could not be introduced through money bill under the Constitution. Subsequently, the
Federal Board of Revenue (FBR) has filed a review petition in the SCP against the said judgment,
which is pending adjudication.
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Further, as a consequence of the 18th amendment to the Constitution, levy for the WWF was also
introduced by the Government of Sindh through the Sindh Workers Welfare Fund (SWWF) Act
2014. SWWF Act 2014, enacted on May 21, 2015, requires every Industrial Establishment
located in the province of Sindh and having total income of Rs.500,000 or more in any year of
account commencing on or after the date of closing of account on or after December 31, 2013, to
pay two percent of so much of its total income declared to SWWF. The said Act includes any
concern engaged in the Banking or Financial Institution in the definition of “Industrial
Undertaking” but does not define Financial Institution. The Management Company, based on an
opinion obtained by the Mutual Funds Association of Pakistan (MUFAP), believes that Mutual
Funds are not liable to pay Sindh WWF under the said law, for the reason that the Mutual Funds
are not financial institutions and rather an investment vehicle. However, the Sindh Revenue
Board has not accepted the said position of MUFAP and as a result, MUFAP has taken up this
matter with the Sindh Finance Ministry for resolution.

In view of the above developments regarding the applicability of Federal and Sindh WWF on
Mutual Funds, the MUFAP obtained a legal opinion on these matters and based on such legal
advice (which also stated that even if a review petition is filed by any party, such petition can only
be based on very limited grounds and the chances of any major change in the SCP judgement are
very limited, has recommended to all its members on January 12, 2017 the following:

1) The provision against the WWF held by the Mutual Funds till June 30, 2015 should be
reversed on January 12, 2017; and

i1) Provision against Sindh WWF, on prudent basis, should be made from the date of
enactment of the Sindh WWF Act, 2014 (i.e. May 21, 2015) with effect from January
12, 2017.

The above decisions were communicated to SECP and the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited on
January 12, 2017. In response to the aforementioned letter SECP vide its letter dated February 1,
2017 advised MUFAP that the adjustments relating to the above should be made prospectively
and adequate disclosure shall be made in the financial statements of Mutual Funds. Accordingly,
the Fund has recorded these adjustments in its books of account on January 12, 2017.

Had the provision against SWWF not been made, the net assets value per unit would have been
higher by Re. 0.1016 per unit.

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

There were no contingencies and commitments outstanding as at June 30, 2018 and June 30,
2017.



2018 2017
------- (Rupees in '000) ----—--

16 NUMBER OF UNITS IN ISSUE

Total units in issue at the beginning of the year 40,545,329 24,888,936
Add: Units issued 359,901,975 140,673,252
Less: Units redeemed (264,387,648) (125,016,859)
Total units in issue at the end of the year 136,059,656 40,545,329

17 FINANCIAL INCOME

Markup / interest income on:

Bank balances 281,275 126,505
Placements and term deposit receipts 72,300 6,510
Market Treasury Bills 249,901 76,691

603,476 209,706

18 AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

Annual audit fee 348 336

Fee for review of half yearly financial statements 163 157

Fee for review of compliance with the requirements of the

Code of Corporate Governance 43 42

Fee for other certifications / services 43 42

Out of pocket expenses and sales tax 141 111
738 688

19 ALLOCATED EXPENSES

As per regulation 60(3)(s) of NBFC Regulations, fee and expenses pertaining to registrar services,
accounting, operation and valuation services related to a Collective Investment Scheme (CIS) are
chargeable to the scheme, maximum up to 0.1% of the average annual net assets or the actual cost
whichever is lower. Accordingly the Management Company has charged 0.1% of the average
annual net assets being the lower.
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TAXATION

The Fund's income is exempt from Income Tax as per clause (99) of Part I of the Second
Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 subject to the condition that not less than 90% of
the accounting income for the year as reduced by capital gains whether realised or unrealised is
distributed to the unit holders in cash. The Fund is also exempt from the provisions of section 113
(minimum tax) under clause 11A of Part IV of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001. The Management Company intends to distribute by way of cash dividend at
least 90% of the aforementioned net accounting income earned by the fund to the unit holders,
Accordingly, no provision for current and deferred tax has been made in these financial
statements.

EARNINGS PER UNIT

Earnings per unit based on cumulative weighted average units for the period has not been
disclosed as in the opinion of the Management Company the determination of the same is not
practicable.

TOTAL EXPENSE RATIO

As per Directive 23 of 2016 dated July 20, 2016 issued by Securities and Exchange Commission
of Pakistan, the Total Expense Ratio of the Fund is 0.98% as on June 30, 2018 which includes
0.26% representing Government Levy, Worker*s Welfare Fund and SECP fee.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

As at June 30, 2018, the financial assets carried on the statement of assets and liabilities are
categorised either as 'Loans and receivables' or 'at fair value through profit or loss'. The financial
liabilities carried on the statement of assets and liabilities are categorised as other financial
liabilities i.e. liabilities other than 'at fair value through profit or loss'.

As atJune 30,2018

" © T
Particulars Loans and Fn'lancml assets "at
. fair value through Total
receivables
profit or loss'
Rupees in '000
Financial assets
Bank balances 12,991,421 - 12,991,421
Term deposit receipt 1,580,000 - 1,580,000
Mark-up / interest receivable 18,914 - 18,914
Deposits and other receivable 15,495 - 15,495
14,605,830 - 14,605,830

Particulars

As at June 30,2018

Financial liabilities
'at fair value

Other financial

Total

through profit or liabilities
loss'
Rupees in '000
Financial liabilities
Payable to UBL Fund Managers Limited - Management Company - 10,007 10,007
Payable to the Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee - 1,049 1,049
Accrued expenses and other liabilities - 49,264 49,264

60,320 60,320




As at June 30,2017

Financial assets 'at

Particulars Loal.ls and fair value through Total
receivables
profit or loss'
Rupees in '000
Financial assets
Bank balances 4,179,845 4,179,845
Investments - -
Mark-up / interest receivable 21,443 21,443
Deposits and other receivable 54,158 54,158
4,255,446 4,255,446
As at June 30,2017
Particulars Finfmcla.l liabilities Other financial
at fair value e erele Total
liabilities
through profit or
Rupees in '000
Financial liabilities
Payable to UBL Fund Managers Limited - Management Company 2,440 2,440
Payable to the Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee 320 320
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 93,624 93,624
96,384 96,384

24 TOP TEN BROKERS / DEALERS BY PERCENTAGE OF THE COMMISSION
CHARGE
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Bright Capital (Private) Limited

Currency Market Associates (Private) Limited

Invest Capital Markets Limited

Paramount Capital (Private) Limited
Invest One Markets Limited

Elixir Securities Pakistan (Private) Limited
C&M Management (Private) Limited

Next Capital Limited

Pearl Securities Limited

Summit Capital (Private) Limited

Bright Capital (Private) Limited

Vector Capital (Private) Limited

Elixir Securities Pakistan (Private) Limited
Invest Capital Markets Limited

EFG Hermes Pakistan Limited

Summit Capital (Private) Limited

BMA Capital Management Limited

Invest One Markets Limited

JS Global Capital Limited

Pearl Securities Limited

June 30, 2018
(Percentage)

37.2%
20.1%
15.9%
6.9%
5.1%
4.6%
2.4%
2.3%
2.1%
1.4%

98.0%

June 30, 2017
(Percentage)

24.3%
20.6%
20.5%
17.2%
5.6%
3.7%
3.0%
2.8%
1.8%
0.5%

99.9%




25 BRIEF PARTICULARS OF THE INVESTMENT COMMITTEE AND THE FUND
MANAGER

Details of the members of the Investment Committee of the Fund are as follows:

S.No. |Name Designation Expe;:::sce m Qualification
1 Yasir Qadri Chief Executive Officer 22.1 MBA
2 Farhan Bashir Khan Head of Research 11.6 MBA
3 Usama Bin Razi Fund Manager 14.7 MBA
4 Syed Suleman Akhtar Chief Investment Officer 16.85 MBA, CFA
5 Hadi Hassan Mukhi Acting Head of Risk & Compliance * 18 B.Com

* Head of Risk - non voting observer

Usama Bin Razi is the Fund Manager of the Fund. He is also the Fund Manager of UBL Growth
and Income Fund, UBL Asset Allocation Fund, UBL Government Securities Fund, UBL
Retirement Savings Fund, UBL Capital Protected Fund III, Al-Ameen Islamic Aggressive Income
Fund and Al-Ameen Islamic Asset Allocation Fund.

26 PATTERN OF UNIT HOLDING

June 30,2018
Category . . .
Number of unit holders | Number of units held | Percentage of units held
Individuals 5,251 19,287,342 14.18%
Associated Companies and Key Executives 9 8,516,269 6.26%
Insurance Companies 3 665,412 0.49%
Retirement Funds 23 2,652,184 1.95%
Public Limited Companies 32 90,151,270 66.26%
Others 41 14,787,179 10.87%
5,359 136,059,656 100.00%
June 30,2017
Category . . .
Number of unit holders | Number of units held | Percentage of units held
Individuals 4,255 12,460,175 30.73%
Associated Companies and Directors 6 1,234,433 3.04%
Insurance Companies 1 100,451 0.25%
Retirement Funds 26 3,719,963 9.17%
Public Limited Companies 20 11,333,340 27.95%
Others 20 11,696,967 28.85%

4,328 40,545,329 100.00%
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TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES / CONNECTED PERSONS

Connected persons / related parties comprise of United Bank Limited (Holding Company of
Management Company), UBL Fund Managers Limited (Management Company), Al-Ameen
Islamic Financial Services (Private) Limited (Subsidiary of the Management Company), entities
under common management or directorships, Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
(Trustee) and the Directors and Officers of Management Company.

Remuneration to the Management Company and the Trustee is determined in accordance with the
provisions of NBFC Rules, 2003, NBFC Regulations, 2008 and the Trust Deed respectively.

Other transactions with the related parties / connected persons have been carried out at agreed /
commercial terms.

Details of transaction with the related parties and balances with them at the year end are as
follows:

Funds under Other
Manag Associ * d Trustee Common Directors z.md Connected
Company Companies Management Key Executives persons /.related
parties
(Rupees in '000)
Transactions during the year
ended June 30,2018
Profit on savings accounts - 9,410 - - -
Bank charges - 92 - - - -
Units issued 1,247,580 15,300 - 3,850,631 35,676 4,262,620
Units redeemed 577,163 27,039 - 3,706,334 15,234 1,623,552
Purchase of securities - 4,495,025 - 800,267 -
Sale of securities - 346,633 - 1,470,171 -
Remuneration (including Sindh sales tax) 54,915 - 8,567 - -
Allocated expenses 8,596 - - - -
Listing fee - - - - - 25
Custody fee - - 8 - -
Transactions during the year
ended June 30,2017
Profit on savings accounts - 15,038 - - -
Bank charges - 61 - - - -
Units issued 119,000 113,813 - - 18,532 2,001,282
Units redeemed 120,379 5,070 - - 16,491 1,001,088
Divided paid - 1,330 - - 15 7,783
Purchase of securities - 3,824,876 - 587,484 -
Sale of securities - 2,548,766 - 2,424,600 -
Remuneration (including sales tax) 29,033 - 3,661 - -
Allocated expenses 3,320 - - - -
Custody fee - - 6 - -
Balances held as at June 30,2018
Units held (in Units '000) 6,496 114 - 1,668 238 25,045
Units held (in Rupees '000) 690,099 12,111 - 177,199 25,284 2,660,641
Bank balances - 32,158 - - - -
Deposits - - 100 - -
Remuneration payable 7,935 - 1,185 - -
Other payables 113 - - - -
Allocated expense payable 2,874 - - - -
Profit receivable - 221 - - -
Balances held as at June 30, 2017
Units held (in Units '000) - 1,190 - - 44 9,961
Units held (in Rupees '000) - 119,813 - - 4,430 1,002,907
Bank balances - 156,665 - - - -
Deposits - - 100 - -
Remuneration payable 2,048 - 320 - -
Other payables 66 - - - -
Allocated expense payable 562 - - - -

Profit receivable - 78 - - -
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29.1

ATTENDANCE AT THE MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
MANAGEMENT COMPANY

During the year, seven meetings of the Board of Directors of the Management Company were
held. The details of the attendance are as under:

Particulars August 23, |5 pt,:;' ber| october 27, | December | February | Aprii2s, | May 02, m:::ii'gs
2017 2017 06, 2017 16, 2018 2018 2018
2017 attended
Name of Directors:
Tariq Kirmani ** v v N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 2
Azhar Hamid * N/A N/A v v v v v 5
Yasir Qadri v v v v v v v 7
Naz Khan * N/A N/A v v v v v 5
Shabbir Hussain Hashmi ** v v N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 2
Sharjeel Shahid * N/A N/A v v x v x 3
Zia ljaz v v v v x v x 5
Syed Furrukh Zaeem v v v v v v v 7
Mirza Muhammad Sadeed Hassan Barlas ** v v v v x v v 6
Name of Key Executives
Fawaz Taj Siddiqui **** v v v v v N/A N/A 5
Umair Ahmed v v v v v v v 7
S.M. Aly Osman **%*%* N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A v v 2

* Elected at EOGM held on September 29, 2017

** Independent Director's have completed three consecutive term

**% Mr. Zulfigar Alaviresigned on August 07, 2017.

***% Mr. Fawaz Taj Siddiqui resigned and appointment of Mr. SM. Aly Osman effective from April 2, 2018 as Company Secretary

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Fund“s objective in managing risks is the creation and protection of Unit holders* value. Risk
is inherent in the Fund*s activities, but it is managed through monitoring and controlling activities
which are primarily set up to be performed based on limits established by the Management
Company, the Fund's constitutive documents and the regulations and the directives issued by the
SECP. These limits reflect the business strategy and market environment of the Fund as well as
the level of the risk that the Fund is willing to accept. The Board of Directors of the Management
Company supervises the overall risk management approach within the Fund. The Fund is exposed
to market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk arising from the financial instruments it holds.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or the future cash flows of a financial instrument may
fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices.

The Management Company manages the market risk through diversification of the investment
portfolio and by following the internal guidelines established by the Investment Committee and
the regulations laid down by the SECP. Market risk comprises of three types of risk: currency
risk, interest rate risk and price risk.
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Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Fund does not have any financial
instruments in foreign currencies and hence is not exposed to such risk.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate as a result of changes in market interest rates. As of June 30, 2018, the Fund is exposed
to such risk on its balances held with bank, investments in Placements, and Government
securities. The Investment Committee of the Fund reviews the portfolio of the Fund on a regular
basis to ensure that the risk is managed within the acceptable limits.

Sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

The Fund is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk for balances in certain savings accounts and
term deposit receipts, the interest rates on which range between 3.75% to 6.60% per annum and
7.35% per annum respectively.

In case of 100 basis points increase / decrease in interest rates on June 30, 2018, with all other
variables held constant, the net income for the year and the net assets would have been higher /
lower by Rs. 145.714 million (2017: Rs. 41.798 million).

Sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

Presently, the Fund does not hold any fixed rate instrument and is not exposed to fair value
interest rate risk.

Yield / interest rate sensitivity position for on balance sheet financial instruments is based on the
earlier of contractual repricing or maturity date and for off-balance sheet instruments is based on
the settlement date.

June 30,2018
Exposed to interest rate risk
. PR More than Not exposed to
Particulars P].Tectlve vield/ Total Upto three three months More than interel:: rate
interest rate .
months and upto one one year risk
year
% e (Rupees in '000)———-———-———

On-balance sheet financial instruments
Financial assets

Bank balances 3.75-6.60 12,991,421 12,991,417 - - 4

Termdeposit receipts 6.29 - 7.60 1,580,000 1,580,000 -

Mark-up / interest receivable 18,914 - - - 18,914

Deposits and other receivable 15,495 - - - 15,495
Sub total 14,605,830 14,571,417 - - 34413
Financial liabilities

Payable to UBL Fund Managers Limited - Management Company 10,007 - 10,007

Payable to the Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee 1,049 - 1,049

Accrued expenses and other liabilities 49,264 - 49,264
Sub total 60,320 - - - 60,320
On-balance sheet gap (a) 14,545,510 14,571,417 - - (25,907)
Off-balance sheet financial instrument - - - -
Off-balance sheet gap (b) - - - -
Total interest rate sensitivity gap (a) + (b) 14,545,510 14,571,417 - (25,907)

Cumulative interest rate sensitivity gap 14,571,417
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June 30,2017
Exposed to interest rate risk

More than Not exposed to

Total Upto three three months More than interest rate

months and upto one one year risk

year

Yo S —— —(Rupees in '000) —

Particulars Effective yield/
interest rate

On-balance sheet financial instruments

Financial assets

Bank balances 3.75t0 6.2 4,179,845 4,179,841 - - 4

Mark-up / interest receivable 21,443 - - 21,443

Deposits and other receivable 54,158 - - 54,158
Sub total 4,255,446 4,179,841 - - 75,605
Financial liabilities

Payable to UBL Fund Managers Limited - Management Company 2,440 - - - 2,440

Payable to the Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee 320 - - 320

Accrued expenses and other liabilities 93.624 - - 93.624
Sub total 96.384 - - 96.384
On-balance sheet gap (a) 2.159.062 4,179,841 (20.779)

OfF- sheet fi ins =
Off-balance sheet gap (b) - - -
Total interest rate sensitivity gap (a) + (b) Z.150.062 3,179,841 - = (20,779)
Cumulative interest rate sensitivity gap 3,179,841 - =

Price risk

Price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency
risk) whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument
or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market. The Fund is
not exposed to the risk as its constitutive documents prohibit it from investing in equity securities.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Fund will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations arising
from its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset, or that
such obligations will have to be settled in a manner disadvantageous to the Fund.

The Fund is exposed to non-payment of redemptions request on a regular basis. Units are
redeemable at the holder”s option based on the Fund“s net asset value per unit at the time of
redemption calculated in accordance with the Fund*s constitutive document and guidelines laid
down by the SECP.

Management of liquidity risk

The Fund's policy is to manage this risk by investing majority of its assets in investments that are
traded in an active market and can be readily disposed of.

The Fund can borrow, with the prior approval of the trustee, for meeting redemption requests.
The maximum amount available to the Fund from borrowings is limited to the extent of 15% of
total assets at the time of borrowing with repayment within 90 days of such borrowings. No such
borrowings were made during the year.

In order to manage the Fund's overall liquidity, the Fund also has the option to withhold daily
redemption requests in excess of ten percent of the units in issue and such requests would be
treated as redemption requests qualifying for being processed on the next business day. Such
procedure would continue until the outstanding redemption requests come down to a level below
ten percent of the units then in issue. Further the
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Fund also has the ability to suspend redemptions of units with the approval of Board of Directors
of the Management Company in extraordinary circumstances. An interval of six working days
between the receipt of a redemption request and issuance of against it to the holder provides a
cushion in the repayment of on-demand redemption of units. However, during the year no such
option was exercised or considered necessary.

The following table analyses the Fund's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based
on the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts in
the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

June 30,2018

More than three
Upto three months | months and upto Over one year Total
one year

Particulars

B Rupees in ‘000 ——-—-————o

Financial liabilities

Payable to UBL Fund Managers Limited - Management Company 10,007 - - 10,007
Payable to the Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee 1,049 - - 1,049
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 49,264 - - 49,264
Total liabilities 60,320 - - 60,320

June 30,2017

More than three
Upto three months | months and upto Over one year Total
one year

Particulars

B e Rupees in ‘000 ———-—-——-——-eme

Financial liabilities

Payable to UBL Fund Managers Limited - Management Company 2,440 - - 2,440
Payable to the Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee 320 - - 320
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 93,624 - - 93,624
Total liabilities 96,384 - - 96,384
. .
Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss to
the Fund by failing to discharge its obligation. The Fund“s policy is to enter into financial
contracts with reputable counter parties in accordance with the internal guidelines, offering
document and regulatory requirements.

Management of credit risk

The Fund's policy is to enter into financial contracts in accordance with the investment guidelines
approved by the Investment Committee, its Trust Deed and the requirements of the NBFC Rules,
the NBFC Regulations and guidelines given by the SECP from time to time.

The maximum exposure to credit risk before any credit enhancement as at June 30, 2018 is the
carrying amount of the financial assets. None of these assets are 'impaired' nor 'past due but not
impaired'. Investment in Government securities, however, are not exposed to credit risk as they
are guaranteed by the Government of Pakistan.



29.3.1 The analysis below summarises the credit rating quality of the Fund's financial assets as at June

30, 2018:

Balances with banks by rating category

Balances held by Latest available
Name of the bank Rating agency the Fund as at June |published rating as
30,2018 atJuly 16,2018

Rupees in '000

Allied Bank Limited PACRA 134 AAA
Askari Bank Limited PACRA 6 AA+
Bank Alfalah Limited PACRA 11,974 AA+
Faysal Bank Limited PACRA 150 AA

Habib Bank Limited JCR-VIS 12,934,983 AAA
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited PACRA 104 AA+
Meezan Bank Limited JCR-VIS 26 AA+
United Bank Limited JCR-VIS 32,158 AAA
Sindh Bank Limited JCR-VIS 1,302 AA

Samba Bank Limited JCR-VIS 6,241 AA

MCB Bank Limited PACRA 2,940 AAA
Zarai Taraqiati Bank Limited PACRA 83 AAA
National Bank of Pakistan PACRA 1,320 AAA

12,991,421

29.3.2 The analysis below summarizes the credit quality of the Fund*s credit exposure:

30

2018 2017
Rating by rating category ~  —emmeeee (Percentage) -------—-
AAA 46.00 27.00
AA-to AA+ 54.00 73.00
100.00 100.00

Concentration on credit risk

Concentration of risk arises when a number of financial instruments or contracts are entered into
the same counterparty, or where a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business
activities, or activities in the same geographic region, or have similar economic features that
would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in
economic, political or other conditions.

The Fund's major asset balances are held with one bank. The management believes that these
banks are reputed institutions.

UNIT HOLDERS' FUND RISK MANAGEMENT

The unit holders' fund is represented by the net assets attributable to unit holders / redeemable
units. The amount of net assets attributable to unit holders can change significantly on a daily
basis as the Fund is subject to daily issuance and redemptions at the discretion of unit holders.
The Fund®s objective when managing the unit holders' fund is to safeguard the Fund“s ability to
continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for the benefits of the unit holders to
maintain a strong base of assets to support the development of the investment activities of the
Fund and to meet unexpected losses or opportunities.
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As required under the NBFC Regulations, every open end scheme shall maintain minimum fund
size (i.e. net assets of the Fund) of Rs. 100 million at all times during the life of scheme. In order
to comply with the requirement and to maintain or adjust the Unit Holders' Fund, the Fund®s
policy is to perform the following:

- Monitors the level of daily issuance and redemptions relative to the liquid assets and
adjusts the amount of distributions the Fund pays to unit holders;

- Redeem and issue units in accordance with the constitutive documents of the Fund,
which include the ability to restrict redemptions and require certain minimum holdings
and issuance; and

- The Fund Manager / Investment Committee members and the Chief Executive Officer
critically track the movement of ,,Assets under Management™. The Board of Directors is
updated regarding key performance indicators e.g. yield and movement of NAV and
total Fund size at the end of each quarter.

The Fund has maintained and complied with the requirements of minimum fund size during the
current year.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged or liability can be settled,
between knowledgeable willing parties in an arm's length transaction. Consequently, differences
can arise between carrying values and the fair value estimates.

Underlying the definition of fair value is the presumption that the Fund is a going concern without
any intention or requirement to curtail materially the scale of its operations or to undertake a
transaction on adverse terms.

Financial assets which are tradable in an open market are revalued at the market prices prevailing
on the reporting date. The estimated fair value of all other financial assets and liabilities is
considered not significantly different from the carrying value as the items are short-term in nature
or periodically repriced.

As per the requirements of IFRS 7 (Financial Instruments: Disclosures), the Fund shall classify
fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs
used in making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from
prices); and

Level 3: Inputs for assets or liability that are not based on observable market data (i.e.
unobservable inputs)



As of June 30, 2018, the Fund does not hold any financial instrument measured at fair value.

During the year ended June 30, 2018, there were no transfers between level 1 and level 2 fair
value measurements and no transfers into and out of level 3 fair value measurements.

32 NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

The Board of Directors of the Management Company on July 2, 2018 approved a final
distribution of Rs. 5.5510 per unit on the face value of Rs. 100 each (i.e. 5.55%) amounting to Rs.
755.457 million. The financial statements of the Fund for the year ended June 30, 2018 do not
include the effect of this distribution which will be accounted for in the financial statements of the
Fund for the year ending June 30, 2019.

33 DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE

These financial statements were authorized for issue by Board of Directors of the Management
Company on August 28, 2018.

34 GENERAL

These Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand rupees unless otherwise stated.

For UBL Fund Managers Limited
(Management Company)

SD SD SD

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER DIRECTOR
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Fund Manager’s Report — UBL Money Market Fund (UMMF)

i) Description of the Collective Investment Scheme category and type
Money Market / Open-end

ii) Statement of Collective Investment Scheme’s investment objective
The objective of UBL Money Market Fund is to generate competitive returns within a low
risk portfolio to provide a regular stream of income and easy liquidity to its investors by
investing a major chunk of the portfolio in short term government securities.

iiii) Explanation as to whether the Collective Investment Scheme achieved its stated objective
The Fund achieved its stated objective.

iv) Statement of benchmark(s) relevant to the Collective Investment Scheme
70% Average of 3M PKRV rates + 30% 3M average deposit rate of three 3 AA rated
scheduled Banks as selected by MUFAP

v) Comparison of the Collective Investment Scheme’s performance during the period

compared with the said benchmarks

Monthly Yield Jul'l7 Aug'l7 Sep'l7 Oct'l7 Nov'l7 Dec'l7 Jan'l8 Feb'l8 Mar'l8 Apr'l8 May'1l8 Jun'l8 FYTD

UMMF 4.62% 4.74% 4.77% 5.04% 4.74% 4.78% 5.47% 5.48% 5.67% 5.65% 4.93% 5.58% 5.12%

Benchmark 5.19% 5.17% 5.17% 5.16% 5.19% 5.22% 5.22% 5.38% 5.48% 5.54% 5.63% 4.71% 5.26%
vi) Description of the strategies and policies employed during the period under review in

relation to the Collective Investment Scheme’s performance

During the period under review, UMMF generated a return of 5.12% p.a during FY18. At end
of Jun’18, net assets of the fund stood at PKR 1,616mn. The Fund Manager managed to
maintain a high-quality liquid profile with major allocation to cash. Furthermore, the
weighted average time to maturity of the fund was 259 days.

vii) Disclosure of the Collective Investment Scheme’s asset allocation as at the date of the
report and particulars of significant changes in asset allocation since the last report (if
applicable)

Asset Allocation (% of Total Assets) Jun-17 Jun-18

Placements with Banks 0% 8%
Placements with DFls 0% 0%
PIBs 0% 0%
GoP ljarah Sukuk 0% 0%
T-Bills 0% 0%
Cash 99% 91%
Others 1% 0%
Leverage Nil Nil

FMR - UMMF



viii) Analysis of the Collective Investment Scheme’s performance

FY'18 Return: 5.12%
Standard Deviation (12m trailing): 0.12%
Sharpe Ratio (12m trailing): (8.44)
ix) Changes in total NAV and NAYV per unit since the last review period or since

commencement (in case of newly established Collective Investment Schemes

Net Asset Value NAYV per unit
30-Jun-18 | 30-Jun-17 | Change | 30-Jun-18 | 30-Jun-17 | Change
Rupees (000) % Rupees %
1,615,672 | 876,240 84.39 | 105.6073 | 100.4661 5.12
x) Disclosure on the markets that the Collective investment Scheme has invested in including

- review of the market(s) invested in and performance during the period

Debt Market Review — FY18

The International Crude Qil prices exhibited an upward trend for the fiscal year. The prices increased
from USD 45-per barrel increasing as much as ~70% closing at a new high of USD ~80 per barrel.
Increasing oil prices, higher commodity prices (with exception of sugar) along with lagged impact of
PKR devaluation (+16%) aided in increasing inflation rate to 4.4% for 4QFY18. Core measures of
inflation witnessed an upward trajectory where NFNE which is somewhat sticky in nature increased to
7.1% by end of FY18. Taking cues from this trend we expect SBP to continue its current monetary
tightening policy.

In twelve PIB auctions for FY18 conducted during the year, the government raised PKR~102bn (PKR
~894bn in FY17) against target of PKR 330bn. Consequently, outstanding amount for the PIBs in the
market increased to PKR 29.47trn. Participation in the auctions was largely skewed towards three and
five year paper in line with interest rate hikes. Cut off yields in June auction trimmed to 7.5%, 8.5% and
8.7% for three, five and ten year PIB instruments respectively. In July’18 PIB Auction the government
accepted PKR ~6.9bn.

The yield curve based on government securities of various maturities has shifted upwards in line with
the ongoing increasing discounts rates. Yield on 3M, 6M and 12M T-Bills increased by 79bps, 90bps
and 116bps, respectively. Similarly, yield on 3-year, 5-year and 10-year bonds increased 180bps,
171bps and 86bps, respectively. The spread between annualized yields of 1-year T-bills (7.20% p.a.)
and 10-year PIBs (9.03% p.a.) stood at 1.83% as of 30 June 2018.

FMR - UMMF



xi) Disclosure on distribution (if any), comprising:-
- particulars of income distribution or other forms of distribution made and proposed
during the period; and
- statement of effects on the NAV before and after distribution is made

Final distribution for the year ended June 30, 2018 was made subsequent to year end, on July 02, 2018.
Below are the details of such distribution

Distribution Per unit
Declared on Bonus ‘ Cash Per Unit | Cum NAV Ex NAV
Rupees (000) el 11| -1, R —
July 02, 2018 - 78,655 5.1412 105.6073 100.4661
xii) Description and explanation of any significant changes in the state of affairs of the

Collective Investment Scheme during the period and up till the date of the manager’s
report, not otherwise disclosed in the financial statements

The fund has been re-categorized as money market scheme from income scheme and
accordingly the pricing mechanism of the scheme has been changed from forward to
backward pricing mechanism.

xiii) Breakdown of unit holdings by size

Number of
Range of Units Investors
UMMF

0.0001 - 9,999.9999 888
10,000.0000 - 49,999.9999 63
50,000.0000 - 99,999.9999 15
100,000.0000 - 499,999.9999 11
500,000.0000 & Above 6
Total 983

Xiv) Disclosure on unit split (if any), comprising:-
There were no unit splits during the period.

Xv) Disclosures of circumstances that materially affect any interests of unit holders
Investment are subject to market risk.

xvi) Disclosure if the Asset Management Company or its delegate, if any, receives any soft
commission (i.e. goods and services) from its broker(s) or dealer(s) by virtue of
transactions conducted by the Collective Investment Scheme.

No soft commissions are received by the AMC from its brokers or dealers by virtue of
transactions conducted by the Collective Investment Scheme.

FMR - UMMF



PERFORMANCE TABLE

UBL Money Market Fund

NET ASSETS AS AT 30 JUNE - Rupees in '000
NET ASSETS VALUE PER UNIT AT 30 JUNE - Rupees *

Class C units - Offer
- Redemption

RETURN OF THE FUND - %
Total Return of the Fund

Capital Growth (per unit)

Date of Income Distribution
Income Distribution

AVERAGE ANNUAL RETURN - %
One Year

Second Year

Third Year

Since inception

OFFER / REPURCHASE DURING THE YEAR- Rupees *

Highest price per unit - Class C units - Offer
Highest price per unit - Class C units - Redemption

Lowest price per unit - Class C units - Offer
Lowest price per unit - Class C units - Redemption

* Front-end load @ 1% is applicable

PORTFOLIO COMPOSITION - %
Percentage of Net Assets as at 30 June

PORTFOLIO COMPOSITION BY CATEGORY - %
Bank Balances

Placements and Term Deposit Receipts

Government securities

PORTFOLIO COMPOSITION BY MARKET - %

Debt market

Note:

- The IPO of the Fund was held from 12 October 2010 to 13 October 2010 and the Fund commenced

its operations from 14 October 2010.

DISCLAIMER

2018

1,615,672

106.8007
105.6073

5.12
5.12

5.12
5.27
5.23
8.11

106.8007
105.6073

101.6261
100.4906

92.00
8.00

100

2017

876,240

101.6014
100.4661

541

0.01
26-Jun-17
5.40

5.41
5.28
6.18
8.54

106.9419
105.7470

101.4997
100.3656

99.00

99

2016

1,298,800

101.7610
100.4353

5.15

0.05
23-Jun-16
5.10

5.15
6.57
6.57
9.06

106.8279
105.4361

101.6777
100.3530

53.00
3.00
44.00

100

Past performance is not necessarily indicative of future performance and unit prices and investment returns may go down, as well as up.



CENTRAL DEPOSITORY COMPANY
OF PAKISTAN LIMITED

Head Office:

CDC House, 99-B, Block ‘B,
S.M.CH.S., Mzin Shahra-e-Faisal,
Karachi - 74400, Pakistan.

Tel: {92-21) 111-111-500

Fax: (92-21) 34326020 - 23

URL: www.cdcpakistan.com
Emaik info@cdepak.com

TRUSTEE REPORT TO THE UNIT HOLDERS
UBL MONEY MARKET FUND

Report of the Trustee pursuant to Regulation 41(h) and clause 9 of Schedule V of the Non-
Banlking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008

We Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited, being the Trustee of UBL Money Marlket
Fund (the Fund) are of the opinion that UBL Fund Managers Limited being the Management
Company of the Fund has in all material respects managed the Fund during the year ended June
30, 2018 in accordance with the provisions of the following:

(i) Limitations imposed on the investment powers of the Management Company under the
constitutive documents of the Fund;

(ii) The pricing, issuance and redemption of units are carried out in accordance with the
requirements of the constitutive documents of the Fund; and

(ii1) The Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulations) Rules, 2003, the
Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 and the
constitutive documents of the Fund.

Aftab Ahmed Diwan
Chief Executive Officer
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited

Karachi: September 19, 2018
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH LISTED COMPANIES (CODE OF CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2017 BY UBL FUND MANAGERS LIMITED

NAME OF FUND: UBL MONEY MARKET FUND
YEAR ENDING: JUNE 30, 2018

The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) through its letter dated April 18, 2018 to
Mutual Funds Association of Pakistan (MUFAP) has exempted the open-end collective investment schemes
from the requirements of the Code of Corporate Governance. However, the Board of Directors of UBL Fund
Managers Limited (the Management Company) of UBL Money Market Fund (the Fund), for the purpose of
establishing a framework of good governance whereby a Fund is managed by best practice of Corporate
governance, has voluntarily opted to comply with the relevant provisions of the Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations 2017 (The Code).

The Management Company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:
l. The total number of directors are seven as per the following:
a. Male: Six Directors;
b. Female: One Director.
2. The composition of the Board is as follows:

Category Name
. Mr. Azhar Hamid
Independent Directors Ms. Naz Khan
Executive Directors Mr, Yasir Qadri

Mirza Muhammad Sadeed Hassan Barlas
Mr. Sharjeel Shahid

Mr. Zia ljaz

Syed Furrukh Zaecem

Non - Executive Directors

3. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than five listed
companies, including this company.

4, The Management Company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps
have been taken to disseminate it throughout the company along with its supporting policies and
procedures.

5. The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant
policies of the Management Company. A complete record of particulars of significant policies along
with the dates on which they were approved or amended has been maintained. The Management
Company has placed the Whistle Blowing Policy, Proxy Policy and the Principles of the Code of
Conduct (Statement of Ethics and Business Practice) on its website.

6. The Board of directors have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors
in accordance with the Act and these Regulations.

7. The Board has a formal and effective mechanism in place for an annual evaluation of the Board’s own
performance,

UBL FUND MANAGERS LIMITED

¢ +92 21111825 262
& info@ublfunds.com
Q 4 Floor, STSM Building, Beaument Road, Civil Lines, Karachi. www.itblfunds.com
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8. The Chairman of the Board is an Independent director. All the powers of the Board have been duly
exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been taken by Board as empowered by the relevant
provisions of the Act and these Regulations.

9. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director
elected by the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of Act and the
Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting of Board.

10. Following directors and executive have acquired the prescribed Director Training Program (DTP)
certification:

Directors
Mirza Muhammad Sadeed Hassan Barlas

Mr. Yasir Qadri

Mr, Zia ljaz

Ms. Naz Khan

Syed Furrukh Zaeem

Executive
f. S.M. Aly Osman

I1. The Board has approved appointment of CFO, Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit,
including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and complied with relevant
requirements of the Regulations.

12, CFO and CEO duly endorsed the financial siatements before approval of the Board.

13. The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below. The Board Audit Committee

and the Board Human Resource & Compensation Committee are chaired by separate Independent
directors:

a. Board Audit Committee
i. Ms. Naz Khan (Chair);
ii. Mirza Muhammad Sadeed Hassan Barlas;
ili, Mr. Sharjeel Shahid;
iv. Mr. Zia Jjaz,
b. Board Human Resource & Compensation Committee
i. Mr. Azhar Hamid (Chairman);
ii. Mr. Yasir Qadri;
iii. Mr, Zia ljaz;
iv. Ms, Naz Khan;
v. Syed Furrukh Zaeem.
c. Board Risk & Compliance Committee
i. Mirza Muhammad Sadeed Hassan Barlas (Chairman);
ii, Mr, Azhar Hamid;
ili. Mr. Sharjeel Shahid;
iv. Mr. Yasir Qadri;
v. Syed Furrukh Zaeem.

o a0 g P

UBL FUND MANAGERS LIMITED
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14, The Terms of Reference of the aforesaid Committees have been formed, documented and advised to
the Committee for compliance.

15. The frequency of meetings of the Committee were as per following:
a. Board Audit Committee : Quarterly Meeting
b. Board Human Resource & Compensation Committee: Quarterly Meeting
c. Board Risk & Compliance Committee: Quarterly Meeting

16, The Board has set up an independent and effective internal audit function and the audit personnel are
suitably qualified and experienced for the purpose and are conversant with the policies and procedures
of the Management Company.

17. The stetutory auditors of the Fund have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating
under the quality control review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP)
and registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they or any of the partners of the firm,
their spouses and minor children do not hold units of the Fund and that the firm and all its partners are
in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as
adopted by the ICAP.

18. The Board Audit Committee recommends to the Board of directors the appointment of external
auditors, their removal, audit fees, the provision of any service permissible to be rendered to the
company by the external auditors in addition to audit of its financial statements.

19. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other
services except in accordance with the Act, these regulations or any other regulatory requirement and
the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.

20. We confirm that any other significant requirements of the Regulations have been complied with.

Karachi.,
Dated: August 28, 2018

UBL. FUND MANAGERS LIMITED

N +92 21111825 242
2 Info@ublfunds.com
Q@ 4" Floor, STSM Buitding, Beaumont Road, Civil Linas, Karaghi, www.ublfunds.com



KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Sheikh Sultan Trust Building No. 2, Beaumont Road
Karachi 75530 Pakistan

+92 (21) 35685847, Fax +92 (21) 35685095

To the Unit Holders of UBL Money Market Fund

Review Report on Statement of Compliance contained in Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies
{Code of Corporate Governance Regulations, 2017 ("the Regulations”) prepared by the
Board of Directors of UBL Fund Managers Limited ("“the Management Company”) for
the year ended 30 June 2018 in accordance with the requirements of regulation 40 of
the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors
of the Management Company of the Fund. Qur responsibility is to review whether the
Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Management Company's
compliance with the provisions of the Regulations in respect of the Fund and report if
it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the requirernents of the
Regulations. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Management Company’'s
personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Management Company
to comply with the Regulations.

As part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an
understanding of the accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the
audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not required to consider
whether the Board of Directors’ statement on internal control covers all risks and
controls or to farm an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the
Management Company's corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Management Company to place before the Audit
Committee, and upon recommendation of the Audit Committee, place before the
Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related party transactions and also
ensure compliance with the reguirements of section 208 of the Companies Act, 2017.
We are only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent
of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon
recommendation of the Audit Committee. We have not carried out procedures to
assess and determine the Management Company’s process for identification of
related parties and that whether the related party transactions were undertaken at
arm's length price or not.
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Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe
that the Statement of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Management
Company's compliance, in all material respects, with the requirements contained in
the Regulations as applicable to the Funds for the year ended 30 June 2018,

G2 fee. 220 S

KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Date: 28 August 2018
Karachi
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Chartered Accountants

Sheikh Sultan Trust Building No. 2, Beaumont Road
Karachi 75530 Pakistan

+92 (21) 35685847, Fax +92 (21) 35685095

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the Unit holders of UBL MONEY MARKET FUND
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of UBL Money Market Fund (“the Fund”},
which comprise the statement of assets and liabilities as at 30 June 2018, income
statement, statement of comprehensive income, statement of movement in unit
holders’ fund, cash flow statement for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, including summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial staterments give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Fund as at 30 June 2018, and of its financial performance and
its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs)
as applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Fund in accordance with the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (IESBA Code) as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements in Pakistan and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion,

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgrment, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current year. These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.

PG Tosans Had & Cno, w Paanarsbg e sigeatnied i Pakstin did & reembor faem of the KR faswan, of
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Following is the key audit matter:

'S, Key Audit Matter | How the matter was addressed In our audit
MNo.
1 Amendments to the NBFC  Our audit procedures in respect of change

Regulations, 2008

Refer to note 3.4.3 to the
accompanying financial
statements with respect to
element of income.

The amendments to NBFC
Regulations, 2008 brought
through SRO 756(1)/2017 dated
03 August 2017 issued by
Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan
[SECP], have necessitated
changes in accounting pelicies
with respect to recording of
element of income / loss on net
basis from income statement
to unit holders’ fund and
consideration of income already
paid on units redeemed as
dividend, The said SRO also
required certain presentation
changes. The Fund has applied
these changes with effect from
1 July 2017,

We identified the said changes
as a key audit matter because
application of these changes
invalved complex calculations
and judgment in respect of
determination of income
already paid on units
redeemed, distribution and
refund of capital [element of
income) to conform with the
methodology specified by
MUFAF for such calculations.

in accounting polices due to amendments
in NBFC Regulations 2008 included the
following:

« Obtaining an understanding of and
assessing the design and operating
effectiveness of controls in place for
determination of income already paid
on units redeemed, distribution and
refund of capital (element of income).

« Testing, on sample basis, that income
already paid on units redeemed,
distribution and refund of capital
{element of income) have been
determined as per the methodology
specified by MUFAP in consultation
with SECP,

= Assessing the adequacy of disclosures
made with respect to change in
accounting policies and the
requirements of NBFC Regulations,
2008.
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Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the
financial staternents and our auditors’ report thereon.

QOur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstaternent of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan, and for such internal control as Manegement determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the
Fund's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless Management
gither intends to liguidate the Fund or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Fund’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statermnents as a whole are free from material misstaterment, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
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expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

« |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

= (Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Fund's internal contral.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by Management.

s Conclude on the appropriateness of Management's use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Fund's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence cbtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Fund to cease to continue as a going concern.

s Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, amaong other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide the Board of Directors with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
indepandence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the
current period and are therefere the key audit matters. We describe these matters in
our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circurnstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in ocur report because the adverse conseguences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In our opinion, the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the
relevant provisions of the Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and
Regulation Rules, 2003) and Non-Banking Finance Companies and Motified Entities
Regulations, 2008.

The engagement partner responsible for the audit resulting in this independent
auditor's report is Mazhar Saleem.

pne oz, fadidl

Date: 28 August 2018 KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Karachi



UBL Money Market Fund

Statement of Assets and Liabilities
As at 30 June 2018

Assets

Bank balances

Term deposit receipt

Profit receivable

Deposit, prepayments and other receivables
Advance tax

Total assets

Liabilities

Payable to the Management Company

Payable to Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee
Payable to Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
Accrued expenses and other payables

Total liabilities

Net assets

Unit holders' fund (as per the statement attached)

Contingency

Number of units in issue (face value of units is Rs. 100 each)

Net asset value per unit

The annexed notes from 1 to 29 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Note

© 00N O Ol

10
11
12
13

18

4.8

For UBL Fund Managers Limited

(Management Company)

SD SD

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

30 June 30 June
2018 2017
(Rupees in '000)

1,490,596 885,801
135,000 -
3,058 5,872
1,769 2,122
1,071 509
1,631,494 894,304
998 1,310
169 162
828 507
13,827 16,085
15,822 18,064
1,615,672 876,240
1,615,672 876,240

(Number of Units)

15,298,865 8,721,753
(Rupees)
105.6073 100.4661
SD
Director




UBL Money Market Fund

Income Statement
For the year ended 30 June 2018

Income

Financial income

Net capital loss on sale of investments
Other income

Total income

Expenses

Remuneration of the Management Company

Sindh Sales Tax on the Management Company's remuneration
Allocation of expenses relating to the Fund

Remuneration of Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee
Annual fee of Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
Bank charges

Auditors' remuneration

Listing fees

Legal and professional charges

Brokerage expenses

Other expenses

Total operating expenses

Net income from operating activities

Net element of loss and capital losses included in prices of
units issued less those in units redeemed

Reversal of provision for Workers' Welfare Fund
Provision for Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund

Net income for the year before taxation

Taxation
Net income for the year after taxation

Allocation of net income for the year after taxation
Net income for the year after taxation

Income already paid on units redeemed

Accounting income available for distribution

Accounting income available for distribution
- Relating to capital gains
- Excluding capital gains

Note

14
15

10.1

10.2

10.3
11
12

16

3.4.3

13.2
13.2

17

The annexed notes from 1 to 29 form an integral part of these financial statements.

For UBL Fund Managers Limited
(Management Company)

SD SD
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

30 June 30 June
2018 2017
(Rupees in '000)

71,446 42,261
(116) (2)
46 15
71,376 42,274
7,647 6,763
994 879
1,103 676
1,691 1,139
828 507
298 110
637 586
27 55

152 105
44 39
253 242
13,674 11,101
57,702 31,173
- (3,699)

- 4,782
(1,132) (1,335)
(1,132) 3,447
56,570 30,921
56,570 30,021
56,570
(37,863)

18,707

18,707

18,707

SD

Director




UBL Money Market Fund

Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 30 June 2018

30 June 30 June
2018 2017
(Rupees in '000)
Net income for the year after taxation 56,570 30,921

Other comprehensive income for the year -

Total comprehensive income for the year 56,570 30,921

The annexed notes from 1 to 29 form an integral part of these financial statements.

For UBL Fund Managers Limited
(Management Company)

SD SD SD
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Director




UBL Money Market Fund

Statement of Movement in Unit holders' Fund
For the year ended 30 June 2018

2018 2017
Capital Undistributed Total Capital Undistributed Total
value income value income
(Rupees in '000)
Net assets at beginning of the year 869,767 6,473 876,240 1,292,589 6,211 1,298,800
Issuance of 51,468,020 units
(2017: 56,751,413 units)
- Capital value 5,212,022 - 5,212,022
- Element of income 129,025 - 129,025
Total proceeds on issuance of units 5,341,047 - 5,341,047 5,699,824 225,010 5,924,834
Redemption of 44,890,908 units
(2017: 60,961,090 units)
- Capital value (4,531,759) - (4,531,759)
- Element of loss (88,563) (37,863) (126,426)
Total payments on redemption of units (4,620,322) (37,863) (4,658,185) (6,122,645) (228,710) (6,351,355)
Net element of loss and capital losses included in prices of
units issued less those in units redeemed - - - - 3,699 3,699
Total comprehensive income for the year - 56,570 56,570 - 30,921 30,921
Interim distribution for the year ended 30 June 2018: Nil
[2017: Rs 5.40 per unit (Date of Distribution: 29 June 2017)] - - - - (30,659) (30,659)
Net income for the year less distribution - 56,570 56,570 - 262 262
Net assets at end of the year 1,590,492 25,180 1,615,672 869,767 6,473 876,240
Undistributed income brought forward:
- Realised income 6,473 6,068
- Unrealised income - 143
6,473 6,211

Accounting income available for distribution
- Relating to capital gains -
- Excluding capital gains 18,707

18,707
Net income for the year after taxation 30,921
Interim distribution for the year ended 30 June 2018: Nil
[2017: Rs 5.40 per unit (Date of Distribution: 29 June 2017)] - (30,659)
Undistributed income carried forward 25,180 6,473
Undistributed income carried forward comprise of:
- Realised income 25,180 6,473
- Unrealised income - -

25,180 6,473

(Rupees) (Rupees)

Net assets value per unit at beginning of the year 100.4661 100.4353
Net assets value per unit at end of the year 105.6073 100.4661

The annexed notes from 1 to 29 form an integral part of these financial statements.

For UBL Fund Managers Limited
(Management Company)

SD SD

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

SD

Director




UBL Money Market Fund

Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended 30 June 2018

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income for the year before taxation

Adjustments for non-cash and other items:

Financial income

Net capital loss on sale of investments

Provision for Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund

Reversal of provision for Workers' Welfare Fund

Net element of loss and capital losses included in prices of
units issued less those in units redeemed

Net cash used in operations before working capital changes
Working capital changes

(Increase) / decrease in assets

Investments

Deposit, prepayments and other receivables
Advance tax

(Decrease) / increase in liabilities

Payable to the Management Company

Payable to Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee
Payable to Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
Payable against purchase of investment

Accrued expenses and other payables

Profit received
Net cash flows generated from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from issuance of units

Payments on redemption of units

Cash distribution to unit holders

Net cash flows generated from / (used in) in financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Bank balances

Term deposit receipt
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

The annexed notes from 1 to 29 form an integral part of these financial statements.

For UBL Fund Managers Limited
(Management Company)

SD SD

Chief Executive Officer

Chief Financial Officer

30 June 30 June
2018 2017
Note (Rupees in '000)
56,570 30,921
(71,446) (42,261)
116 2
1,132 1,335
- (4,782)
- 3,699
(70,198) (42,007)
(13,628) (11,086)
(116) 678,714
- (627)
(562) -
(678) 678,087
(312) 121
7 45
321 (182)
- (210,620)
(3,390) 4,556
(3,374) (206,080)
74,260 72,630
56,580 533,551
20
5,341,400 5,924,834
(4,658,185) (6,351,355)
- (30,659)
683,215 (457,180)
739,795 76,371
885,801 809,430
1,625,596 885,801
1,490,596 885,801
135,000 -
1,625,596 885,801
SD
Director




UBL Money Market Fund

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2018

1 LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

UBL Money Market Fund (the Fund) was established under the Trust Deed executed between UBL
Fund Managers Limited (the Management Company - a wholly owned subsidiary company of United
Bank Limited), as the Management Company, and the Central Depository Company of Pakistan
Limited (CDC) as the Trustee. The Trust Deed was executed on 10 August 2010 and was

approved by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) in accordance with the
requirements of the Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulation) Rules, 2003
(NBFC Rules). The Fund commenced its operations from 14 October 2010.

The Management Company of the Fund is registered with the SECP as a Non-Banking Finance
Company under the NBFC Rules, 2003. The registered office of the Management Company is
situated at 4th Floor, STSM Building, Beaumont Road, Civil Lines.

The Fund is an open ended mutual fund and is listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. Units
are offered for subscription on a continuous basis to general public. The units are transferable and can
be redeemed by surrendering them to the Fund at the option of the unit holders.

The investment objective of the fund is to provide a regular stream of income and easy liquidity to its
investors by investing a major chunk of the portfolio in short term government securities.

Title to the assets of the Fund are held in the name of the Central Depository Company of Pakistan
Limited as the Trustee of the Fund.

2 BASIS OF PRESENTATION
Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting

standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan

comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017;

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 along with part VIIIA of the
repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984; and

- Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulations) Rules, 2003 (the NBFC Rules),
Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 (the NBFC Regulations).
Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, part VIIIA of the repealed
Companies Ordinance, 1984, the NBFC Rules and the NBFC Regulations differ from the IFRS
Standards, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, part VIIIA of the
repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984, the NBFC Rules and the NBFC Regulations have been followed.
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3.2

3.3

3.4

3.41

3.4.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION
Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared on the basis of historical cost convention, except that
certain financial assets that have been carried at fair values in accordance with the requirements of
International Accounting Standard (IAS) 39.

Functional and presentation currency
These financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees which is the functional and presentation
currency of the Fund. All amounts have been rounded to the nearest thousand, unless stated otherwise.

Critical accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards as applicable
in Pakistan requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of
making the judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods. The areas where various assumptions and estimates are significant to the Fund's financial
statements or where judgment was exercised in the application of accounting policies are given below:

a) Judgments
Information about judgments made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant
effects on the amounts recognised in the financial statements is included in note 4.1.1 - Regarding
the classification of investments.

b) Assumptions and estimation uncertainties
Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting
in a material adjustment in the financial statements for the year ending 30 June 2018 is included in
the following notes:

- Notes 4.1.3 and 4.1.4 - Valuation of investments
- Notes 4.1.5 and 4.15 - Impairment of financial instruments and other assets

New or amendments to existing standard / interpretation and forthcoming requirements

Standards, amendments or interpretations which became effective during the year

There are new and amended standards and interpretations that are mandatory for accounting periods
beginning 01 July 2017 but are considered not to be relevant or do not have any significant effect on
the the Funds' financial statements and are therefore not stated in these financial statements.

Application of Companies Act, 2017

The Companies Act, 2017 was enacted on 30 May 2017 and SECP vide its circular 23 of 2017 which
application has been deferred till 31 December 2017. Therefore, the provision of the Companies Act,
2017 are applicable from 01 January 2018 (refer note 2). However, it does not have any significant
impact on the Fund's financial statements.
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3.44

Change in Accounting Policy
Element of income / (loss)

Up to 30 June 2017, the element of income / (loss) and capital gains / (losses) included in the prices of
units issued less those in units redeemed to the extent that it is represented by income earned during
the accounting period is recognized in income statement on net basis and to the extent that it is
represented by unrealised appreciation / (diminution) arising during the year on available for sale
securities is included in distribution statement on net basis.

Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan through its SRO 756(1)/2017 dated 03 August 2017
has made certain amendments in NBFCs and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008. The SRO changed
the definition of accounting income in regulation (63) sub-regulation (1) which excludes the element of
income from “accounting income”. As per SRO, element of income represents the difference
between net assets value per unit on the issuance or redemption date, as the case may be, of units
and the net assets value per unit at the beginning of the relevant accounting period. It also specify
that element of income is a transaction of capital nature and the receipt and payment of element of
income shall be taken to unit holders' fund. However, to maintain the same ex-dividend net asset
value of all units outstanding on the accounting date, net element of income contributed on issue of
units lying in unit holders fund will be refunded on units in the same proportion as dividend bears to
accounting income available for distribution.

The said SRO also deleted 'Distribution Statement' and requires additional disclosures with respect to
“Income Statement” (relating to allocation of net income for the year) and “Statement of Movement in
Unit Holders' Fund” and recording of element of income / loss included in price of unit issued or
redeemed directly in Statement of movements in unit holders" fund instead of income statement.
MUFAP, in consultation with the SECP, has specified methodology for determination of income paid on
units redeemed (income already paid) during the year under which such income is paid on gross
element received and is calculated from the latest date at which the Fund achieved net profitability
during the year.

As required by IAS 8: 'Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors', a change in
accounting policy requires retrospective application as if that policy had always been applied.
However, the Management Company has applied the above changes in accounting policy, including
the additional disclosures requirements in the 'Income Statement' and 'Statement of Movement in Unit
Holders' Fund', prospectively from 01 July 2017 as clarified by SECP vide its email dated 7 February
2018. Accordingly, corresponding figures have not been restated. Had the element of income been
recognised as per the previous accounting policy, the income of the Fund would have been higher by
Rs. 2.548 million net off charge for SWWEF in respect of element of income and consequently NAV per
unit would have been higher by Rs. 0.17.

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards
that are not yet effective

The following International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) as notified under the

Companies Act, 2017 and the amendments and interpretations thereto will be effective for

accounting periods beginning on or after 01 July 2018:

- Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions - amendments to IFRS 2
clarify the accounting for certain types of arrangements and are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018. The amendments cover three accounting areas (a)
measurement of cash-settled share-based payments; (b) classification of share-based payments
settled net of tax withholdings; and (c) accounting for a modification of a share-based payment
from cash-settled to equity-settled. The new requirements could affect the classification and/or
measurement of these arrangements and potentially the timing and amount of expense recognized
for new and outstanding awards. The amendments are not likely to have an impact on Fund’s
financial statements.



Transfers of Investment Property (Amendments to IAS 40 ,Jnvestment Property" - effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018) clarifies that an entity shall transfer a
property to, or from, investment property when, and only when there is a change in use. A
change in use occurs when the property meets, or ceases to meet, the definition of investment
property and there is evidence of the change in use. In isolation, a change in management's
intentions for the use of a property does not provide evidence of a change in use. The
amendments are not likely to have an impact on Fund's financial statements.

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle [Amendments to IAS 28 ,Investments in
Associates and Joint Ventures'] (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018) clarifies that a venture capital organization and other similar entities may elect to measure
investments in associates and joint ventures at fair value through profit or loss, for each associate
or joint venture separately at the time of initial recognition of investment. Furthermore, similar
election is available to non-investment entity that has an interest in an associate or joint venture
that is an investment entity, when applying the equity method, to retain the fair value
measurement applied by that investment entity associate or joint venture to the investment entity
associate's or joint venture's interests in subsidiaries. This election is made separately for each
investment entity associate or joint venture. The amendments are not likely to have an impact on
Fund's financial statements.

IFRIC 22 JForeign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration” (effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018) clarifies which date should be used for translation when a
foreign currency transaction involves payment or receipt in advance of the item it relates to. The
related item is translated using the exchange rate on the date the advance foreign currency is
received or paid and the prepayment or deferred income is recognized. The date of the transaction
for the purpose of determining the exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset,
expense or income (or part of it) would remain the date on which receipt of payment from advance
consideration was recognized. If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the entity shall
determine a date of the transaction for each payment or receipt of advance consideration. The
amendments are not likely to have an impact on Fund's financial statements.

IFRS 15 ,Revenue from contracts with customers® (effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 July 2018). IFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether, how
much and when revenue is recognized. It replaces existing revenue recognition guidance, including
IAS 18 ,Revenue’, IAS 11 ,Construction Contracts”and IFRIC 13 ,Customer Loyalty Programmes".
The management is currently in the process of analyzing the potential impact of changes required
in revenue recognition policies on the adoption of the standard. However the management
considers that the impact would not be significant.

IFRS 9 [Financial Instruments”and amendment — Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2018 and 1 January 2019
respectively). IFRS 9 replaces the existing guidance in IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement. IFRS 9 includes revised guidance on the classification and measurement of
financial instruments, a new expected credit loss model for calculating impairment on financial
assets, and new general hedge accounting requirements. It also carries forward the guidance on
recognition and derecognition of financial instruments from IAS 39. The amendments are not likely
to have an impact on Fund's financial statements.



- IFRS 16 L eases" (effective for annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2019). IFRS 16
replaces existing leasing guidance, including IAS 17 Leases®, IFRIC 4 Determining whether an
Arrangement contains a Lease", SIC-15 ,Operating Leases- Incentives"and SIC-27 ,Evaluating the
Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease". IFRS 16 introduces a single,
on-balance sheet lease accounting model for lessees. A lessee recognizes a right-of-use asset
representing its right to use the underlying asset and a lease liability representing its obligation to
make lease payments. There are recognition exemptions for short-term leases and leases of
low-value items. Lessor accounting remains similar to the current standard i.e. lessors continue to
classify leases as finance or operating leases. The amendments are not likely to have an impact
on Fund's financial statements.

- Amendment to IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures" - Long Term Interests in
Associates and Joint Ventures (effective for annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2019). The
amendment will affect companies that finance such entities with preference shares or with loans for
which repayment is not expected in the foreseeable future (referred to as long-term interests or
LTIY). The amendment and accompanying example state that LTI are in the scope of both IFRS 9
and IAS 28 and explain the annual sequence in which both standards are to be applied. The
amendments are not likely to have an impact on Fund's financial statements.

- Amendments to IAS 19 ,Employee Benefits™~ Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement
(effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019). The amendments clarify that on
amendment, curtailment or settlement of a defined benefit plan, a company now uses updated
actuarial assumptions to determine its current service cost and net interest for the period; and the
effect of the asset ceiling is disregarded when calculating the gain or loss on any settlement of the
plan and is dealt with separately in other comprehensive income. The amendments are not likely
to have an impact on Fund's financial statements

- IFRIC 23 ,Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments" (effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2019) clarifies the accounting for income tax when there is uncertainty over
income tax treatments under IAS 12. The interpretation requires the uncertainty over tax treatment
be reflected in the measurement of current and deferred tax. The amendments are not likely to
have an impact on Fund’s financial statements.

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015-2017 Cycle - the improvements address
amendments to following approved accounting standards:

- IFRS 3 Business Combinations and IFRS 11 Joint Arrangement - the amendment aims to clarify
the accounting treatment when a company increases its interest in a joint operation that meets the
definition of a business. A company remeasures its previously held interest in a joint operation
when it obtains control of the business. A company does not remeasure its previously held
interest in a joint operation when it obtains joint control of the business.

- IAS 12 Income Taxes - the amendment clarifies that all income tax consequences of dividends
(including payments on financial instruments classified as equity) are recognized consistently with
the transaction that generates the distributable profits.

- |AS 23 Borrowing Costs - the amendment clarifies that a company treats as part of general
borrowings any borrowing originally made to develop an asset when the asset is ready for its
intended use or sale.

The above amendments are effective from annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2019 and
are not likely to have an impact on Company's financial statements.



4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The principle accounting policies applied in the preparation of the financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied except for the change in accounting policy as
mentioned in note 3.4.3, to all the periods presented.

4.1 Financial assets
411 Classification

The management determines the appropriate classification of the financial assets of the Fund in
accordance with the requirements of International Accounting Standard (IAS) 39, "Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement" at the time of purchase of financial assets and re-evaluates this
classification on a regular basis. The classification depends upon the purpose for which the financial
assets are acquired. The Fund classifies its financial assets in the following categories:

a) Financial assets as 'at fair value through profit or loss'
Financial assets that are acquired principally for the purpose of generating profit from short-term
fluctuations in prices are classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss category.

b) Available-for-sale financial assets
Available for sale financial assets are those non-derivative financial assets that are designated as
available for sale or are not classified as (c) loans and receivables, (a) financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss. These are intended to be held for an indefinite period of time which may be sold
in response to the needs for the liquidity or change in price.

c) Loans and receivables
These are non-derivatives financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market.

4.1.2 Regular way contracts
Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date - the date on which
the Fund commits to purchase or sell the asset.

4.1.3 Initial recognition and measurement
Financial assets are recognised at the time the Fund becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instruments. These are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs except for financial
assets carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or
loss are initially recognised at fair value and transaction costs associated with these financial assets
are charged to the Income Statement.

4.1.4 Subsequent measurement
Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets are valued as follows:

'Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss’
Basis of valuation of debt securities

Investment in debt securities is valued on the basis of rates determined by the Mutual Funds
Association of Pakistan (MUFAP) Association of Pakistan (MUFAP) in accordance with the
methodology prescribed by the SECP via Circular 1 of 2009, Circular 33 of 2012 and Circular 35 of
2012. The Circulars also specifies the valuation process to be followed for each category as well as
the criteria for the provisioning of non-performing debt securities.
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4.2

4.3

44

Basis of valuation of government securities

The government securities not listed on a stock exchange and traded in the interbank market are
valued at the average rates quoted on a widely used electronic quotation system (PKRYV rates)
which are based on the remaining tenure of the securities.

Loans and receivables
Subsequent to initial recognition financial assets classified as 'Loans and receivables' are carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Impairment

The Fund assesses at each reporting date whether there is an objective evidence that the financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount of
such asset is estimated. An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount. In case of investment classified as ,available-for-sale®, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is considered an indicator that the
securities are impaired. If any such evidence exists for ,available-for-sale" financial assets, the
cumulative loss (measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised in the income statement) is
reclassified from the statement of comprehensive income to the income statement.

For financial assets classified as 'loans and receivable', a provision for impairment is established when
there is an objective evidence that the Fund will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the
original terms. The amount of the provision is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying
value and present value of estimated future cash outflows, discounted at the original effective interest
rate.

Derecognition

The Fund derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition in
accordance with IAS 39.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are recognised at the time when the Fund becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments. These are initially recognised at fair values and subsequently stated at
amortised cost.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or
expired.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the Statement of
Assets and Liabilities when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Unitholders' fund
Unitholders' fund representing the units issued by the Fund, is carried at the redemption amount
representing the investors® right to a residual interest in the Fund's assets.
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4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

Issuance and redemption of units

Units issued are recorded at the offer price, determined by the Management Company for the
applications received, by the distributors / Management Company during business hours, as of the close
of the previous day on which the applications were received. The offer price represents the net assets
value per unit as of the close of previous day plus the allowable sales load, provision for transaction
costs and any provision for duties and charges, if applicable.

Units redeemed are recorded at the redemption price, applicable to units as of the close of the previous

day. The redemption price represents the net assets value per unit as of the close of the previous day on
which the applications were received less any back-end load , any duties, taxes, charges on redemption

and any provision for transaction costs, if applicable.

Element of income

Element of Income represents the difference between net assets value on the issuance or redemption
date, as the case may be, of units and the Net asset Value (NAV) at the beginning of the relevant
accounting period.

Element of Income is a transaction of capital nature and the receipt and payment of element of
income is taken to unit holders' fund; however, to maintain same ex-dividend net asset value of all
units outstanding on accounting date, net element of income contributed on issue of units lying in unit
holders fund is refunded on units (refund of capital) in the same proportion as dividend bears to
accounting income available for distribution. As per guideline provided by MUFAP (MUFAP Guidelines
consented upon by SECP) the refund of capital is made in the form of additional units at zero price.

MUFAP, in consultation with the SECP, has specified methodology for determination of income paid
on units redeemed (income already paid) during the year under which such income is paid on gross
element received and is calculated from the latest date at which the Fund achieved net profitability
during the year. The income already paid (Element of Income) on redemption of units during the year
are taken separately in statement of movement in unitholders' fund.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Fund has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required
are reviewed at each balance sheet date and are adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Net asset value per unit
The net asset value per unit as disclosed on the Statement of Assets and Liabilities is calculated by
dividing the net assets of the Fund by the number of units outstanding at the year end.

Taxation

The Fund is exempt from income tax under clause 99 of Part | of the Second Schedule to the Income
Tax Ordinance, 2001, subject to the condition that not less than ninety percent of its accounting
income for the year as reduced by capital gains, whether realised or unrealised, is distributed among
the unit holders. Provided that for the purpose of determining distribution of atleast ninety percent of
its accounting income for the year, the income distributed through bonus units shall not be taken into
account.
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The Fund provides for deferred taxation using the balance sheet liability method on all major

temporary differences between the amounts used for financial reporting purposes and amounts used

for taxation purposes. In addition, the Fund also records deferred tax asset on unutilised tax losses to

the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised. However, the Fund

has not recognised any amount in respect of taxation in these financial statements as the Fund

distributes more than ninety percent of its accounting income for the current year and intends to

continue availing the tax exemption in future years by distributing at least ninety percent of its

accounting income for the year as reduced by capital gains, whether realised or unrealised, to its unit

holders' every year.

The Fund is also exempt from the provisions of section 113 (minimum tax) under clause 11A of Part

IV of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

Revenue recognition

- Capital gains / (losses) arising on sale / redemption of investments are included in the Income
Statement on the date at which the transaction takes place.

- Unrealized gains / (losses) arising on revaluation of investments classified as 'at fair value through
profit or loss' are included in the Income Statement in the period in which they arise.

- Income on debt and government securities is recognised on time proportion basis using the
effective yield.

- Profit on saving accounts and term deposits is recognised taken into account the effective yield.

Expenses

All expenses including Management fee, Trustee fee and Securities and Exchange Commission of

Pakistan fee are recognised in the Income Statement on accrual basis.

Earnings per unit

Earnings per unit based on cumulative weighted average units for the period has not been disclosed

as in the opinion of the Management Company the determination of the same is not practicable.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the statement of Assets and Liabilities at cost. These

comprise of deposits with banks and highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known

amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value and are held for the purpose

of meeting short term cash commitments rather than for investments for other purposes.

Distributions

Distributions declared subsequent to the year end reporting date are considered as non-adjusting

events and are recognised in the financial statements of the period in which such distributions are

declared. Based on MUFAP's guidelines (duly consented upon by SECP) distributions for the year is

deemed to comprise of the portion of amount of income already paid on units redeemed and the

amount of cash distribution for the year.

The distribution per unit is announced based on units that were held for the entire period. The rate of

distribution is adjusted with effect of refund of capital if any based on the period of investment made

during the year. Resultantly, the rate of distribution per unit may vary depending on the period of

investment.

Other assets

Other assets are stated at cost less impairment losses, if any.

BANK BALANCES Note 30 June 30 June
2018 2017
(Rupees in '000)
In current accounts 5.1 86 99
In saving accounts 5.2 1,490,510 885,702
1,490,596 885,801

This represents balance with United Bank Limited, holding company of the Management Company.

These carry profit rates ranging from 3.75% to 7.60% (30 June 2017: 3.75% to 6.2%) per annum.
This includes balance with United Bank Limited of Rs. 2.405 million (30 June 2017: Rs. 14.35 million)
carrying profit rate of 4% (30 June 2017: 4%) per annum.
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TERM DEPOSIT RECEIPT Note 30 June 30 June
2018 2017
(Rupees in '000)

Commercial bank 6.1 135,000 -

It carries profit at rate of 7.35% per annum and will mature on 20 July 2018.
PROFITS RECEIVABLE

Profits receivable on:

- Bank balances 2,759 5,872
- Term deposit receipt 299 -
3,058 5,872

DEPOSIT, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Receivable against issuance of units 1,572 1,925
Security deposit with Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee 100 100
Prepayments 97 97

1,769 2,122
ADVANCE TAX

The income of the Fund is exempt from tax under clause 99 of Part | of the Second Schedule of the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001 (ITO 2001). Further, the Fund is exempt under clause 47(B) of Part IV of Second Schedule of ITO
2001 from withholding of tax under section 150A, 151 and 233 of ITO 2001. The Federal Board of Revenue

through a circular “C.No.1 (43) DG (WHT)/ 2008-Vol.ll- 66417-R” dated May 12, 2015, made it mandatory to obtain
exemption certificates under section 159 (1) of the ITO 2001 from Commissioner Inland Revenue (CIR). During the
year, prior to receiving tax exemption certificate(s) from CIR various withholding agents have deducted advance tax
under section 151 of ITO 2001. The management is confident that the same shall be refunded after filing Income Tax
Return for Tax year 2018.

PAYABLE TO THE MANAGEMENT COMPANY Note 30 June 30 June
2018 2017
(Rupees in '000)

Management remuneration payable 10.1 576 953
Sindh Sales Tax on management remuneration 10.2 75 124
Payable against allocation of expenses relating to the Fund 10.3 209 144
Other payables 138 89

998 1,310

As per regulation 61 of amended Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 (the
NBFC Regulations), the Management Company of the Fund is entitled to an accrued remuneration equal to an
amount not exceeding 1 % of average annual net assets in case of Money Market Scheme. The Management
Company has charged remuneration at the rate of 7.5% of the gross earnings of the Scheme, calculated on a daily
basis not exceeding the maximum rate of remuneration permitted. Moreover, the fee is subject to a minimum of
0.25% of the daily net assets. This basis for accrual of management fee is applied with effect from 15 January
2018.

Previously, the Management Company of the Fund has charged remuneration at the rate of 10% of the gross
earnings of the Scheme, calculated on a daily basis not exceeding the maximum rate of remuneration permitted. The
remuneration is paid to the Management Company on monthly basis in arrears.

Sindh Sales Tax has been charged at 13% (30 June 2017: 13%) on the management fee charged during the year.

As a result of amendments in NBFC Regulations vide statutory notification (SRO No. 1160 / (1) dated 25 November
2015), the Management Company may charge fee and expenses related to registrar services, accounting, operation
and valuation services related to a Collective Investment Scheme (CIS) upto a maximum of 0.1% per annum of the
average annual net assets or the actual cost whichever is lower. Accordingly, the management company has
charged 0.1% per annum of the average annual net assets, being lower.
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PAYABLE TO CENTRAL DEPOSITORY COMPANY OF PAKISTAN LIMITED - TRUSTEE

The Trustee is entitled to a monthly remuneration for services rendered to the Fund under the provisions of
the Trust Deed and Offering Document as per the tariff specified therein, based on the daily net asset value
of the Fund. The remuneration is paid to the Trustee on monthly basis in arrears. The tariff structure
applicable to the Fund in respect of the trustee fee for the year ended 30 June 2018 is as follows:

Net assets Tariff per annum

- Up to Rs.1 billion 0.15% per annum of net asset value

- From Rs.1 billion to Rs.10 Rs. 1.5 million plus 0.075% per annum of net asset value
billion exceeding Rs.1 billion

- On amount exceeding Rs.8.25 million plus 0.06% per annum of net asset value
Rs. 10 billion exceeding Rs. 10 billion.

PAYABLE TO SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION OF PAKISTAN

The Fund is required to pay SECP an annual fee at the rate of 0.075 % of the average daily net assets of
the Fund in accordance with regulation 62 of the NBFC regulations, 2008.

ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER PAYABLES Note 30 June 30 June
2018 2017
(Rupees in '000)
Provision for indirect duties and taxes 13.1 9,499 9,499
Provision for Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund 13.2 2,467 1,335
Withholding tax deducted at source - 2,973
Capital gains tax payable 668 1,004
Zakat deducted at source 520 567
Auditors' remuneration payable 397 384
Brokerage payable 56 54
Sindh Sales Tax payable 3 3
Sales load and other payables 217 266
13,827 16,085

As per the requirements of the Finance Act 2013, Federal Excise Duty (FED) at the rate of 16% on the
remuneration of the Management Company was applied with effect from 13 June 2013. The
Management Company is of the view that since the remuneration is already subject to the provincial
sales tax, further levy of FED results in double taxation, which does not appear to be the spirit of the law.
The matter was collectively taken up by the Management Company jointly with other Asset
Management Companies and Trustees of respective Collective Investment Schemes (CISs), through a
Constitutional Petition filed in the Honourable Sindh High Court (SHC) during September 2013. In this
respect, the SHC had issued a stay order against the recovery of FED due to which the Fund has not
made any payments for FED upto 30 June 2016.

On 30 June 2016, the Honourable Sindh High Court of Pakistan had passed a Judgment that after 18th
amendment in the Constitution of Pakistan, the Provinces alone have the legislative power to levy a tax
on rendering or providing services, therefore, chargeability and collection of FED after 01 July 2011 is
ultra vires to the Constitution of Pakistan. On 23 September 2016, the Federal Board of Revenue (FBR)
filed an appeal in the Supreme Court of Pakistan (SCP) against above judgement, which is pending
adjudication. Management Company, as a matter of abundant caution, has maintained full provision for
FED aggregating to Rs. 9.112 million (30 June 2017: Rs. 9.499 million) until the matter is resolved. Had
the provision not been made, the net asset value per unit of the Fund as at 30 June 2018 would have
been higher by Rs. 0.60 per unit (30 June 2017: Rs. 1.04 per unit).

Through Finance Act, 2016, FED on services rendered by Non-Banking Financial Institutions (NBFIs)
including Asset Management Companies, which are already subject to provincial sales tax, has been
withdrawn. Therefore, in the current year, provision for FED has not been recorded.
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The Finance Act, 2008 introduced an amendment to the Workers' Welfare Fund Ordinance, 1971 (WWF
Ordinance) as a result of which it was construed that all Collective Investment Schemes / Mutual Funds
(CISs) whose income exceeded Rs.500,000 in a tax year were brought within the scope of the WWF
Ordinance, thus rendering them liable to pay contribution to WWF at the rate of two percent of their
accounting or taxable income, whichever was higher.

The amendments introduced in the WWF Ordinance were challenged in various High Courts of
Pakistan. The Honourable Lahore High Court (LHC) and the Honourable Sindh High Court (SHC) arrived
at different conclusions in respect of the validity of the amendments made through the Finance Act in
relation to the WWF. Both the decisions of the LHC and the SHC were challenged in the Honourable
Supreme Court of Pakistan (SCP). On 10 November 2016 the SCP passed a judgment declaring the
insertion of amendments introduced through Finance Act, 2008 pertaining to WWF as unlawful for the
reason that the WWEF is not in the nature of tax and therefore, could not be introduced through money bill
under the Constitution. Subsequently, the Federal Board of Revenue (FBR) has filed a review petition in
the SCP against the said judgment, which is pending adjudication.

Further, as a consequence of the 18th amendment to the Constitution, levy for the WWF was also
introduced by the Government of Sindh through the Sindh Workers Welfare Fund (SWWF) Act 2014.
SWWEF Act 2014, enacted on 21 May 2015, requires every Industrial Establishment located in the
province of Sindh and having total income of Rs.500,000 or more in any year of account commencing on
or after the date of closing of account on or after 31 December 2013, to pay two percent of so much of
its total income declared to SWWF. The said Act includes any concern engaged in the Banking or
Financial Institution in the definition of “Industrial Undertaking” but does not define Financial Institution.
The Management Company, based on an opinion obtained by the Mutual Funds Association of Pakistan
(MUFAP), believes that Mutual Funds are not liable to pay Sindh WWF under the said law, for the
reason that the Mutual Funds are not financial institutions and rather an investment vehicle. However,
the Sindh Revenue Board has not accepted the said position of MUFAP and as a result, MUFAP has
taken up this matter with the Sindh Finance Ministry for resolution.

In view of the above developments regarding the applicability of Federal and Sindh WWF on Mutual
Funds, the MUFAP obtained a legal opinion on these matters and based on such legal advice (which also
stated that even if a review petition is filed by any party, such petition can only be based on very limited
grounds and the chances of any major change in the SCP judgement are very limited, has recommended
to all its members on 12 January 2017 the following:

- The provision against the Federal WWF held by the Mutual Funds till 30 June 2015 should be reversed

on 12 January 2017; and
- Provision against Sindh WWF, on prudent basis, should be made from the date of enactment of the
Sindh WWF Act, 2014 (i.e., 21 May 2015) with effect from 12 January 2017.
The above decisions were communicated to SECP and the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited on 12
January 2017. In response to the aforementioned letter SECP vide its letter dated 1 February 2017
advised MUFAP that the adjustments relating to the above should be made prospectively and adequate
disclosure shall be made in the condensed interim financial information of Mutual Funds. Accordingly, the
Fund has recorded these adjustments in its books of account on 12 January 2017.
The cumulative net effect of the above two adjustments, had they not been made, would have resulted in
an increase in the net assets value per unit by Rs. 0.16 per unit.

30 June 30 June
FINANCIAL INCOME 2018 2017
Profits on: (Rupees in '000)
- Bank balances 40,060 23,749
- Term deposit receipts / letter of placements 6,860 1,130
- Market treasury bills 24,526 16,547
- Pakistan investment bonds 835

71,446 42,

261
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NET CAPITAL LOSS ON SALE OF INVESTMENTS 30 June 30 June
2018 2017
(Rupees in '000)
Designated at fair value through profit or loss
- Market treasury bills (116) 57

- Pakistan investment bonds - (59)
(116) 2)

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

Annual audit fee 286 280

Half yearly review fee 141 137

Fee for certifications and other services 139 108

Out of pocket expenses 71 61
637 586

TAXATION

The Fund's income is exempt from Income Tax as per clause (99) of part | of the Second Schedule to the
Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 subject to the condition that not less than 90% of the accounting income for
the year as reduced by capital gains whether realised or unrealised is distributed amongst the unit
holders. Provided that for the purpose of determining distribution of at least 90% of accounting income,
the income distributed through bonus shares, units or certificates as the case may be, shall not be taken
into account. Furthermore, as per regulation 63 of the Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified
Entities Regulations, 2008, the Fund is required to distribute 90% of the net accounting income other than
capital gains to the unit holders. The Board of Directors of the Management Company in their meeting
held on 02 July 2018 (refer note 29) has distributed more than ninety percent of the Fund's accounting
income for the year as reduced by capital gains, whether realised or unrealised, to its unit holders during
the year. Accordingly, no provision has been made in the financial statements for the year ended 30 June
2018.

CONTINGENCY

As at 30 June 2018, there is no contingency.

TOTAL EXPENSE RATIO

The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) vide directive no. SCD/PRDD/Direction/
18/2016 dated 20 July 2016, requires that collective Investment Scheme (CIS) shall disclose Total
Expense Ratio (TER) in the periodic financial statements of CIS / the Fund. TER of the Fund for the year

ended 30 June 2018 is 1.34% which include 0.29% representing government levy, Sindh Workers'
Welfare Fund and SECP fee.

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES Receivable = Payable against Total
ARISING OUT OF FINANCING against redemption
ACTIVITIES sale of units of units

--------------------- (Rupees in '000) ------=======n-uuu-u--

Opening balance as at 1 July 2017 1,925 - 1,925
Receivable against issuance of units 5,341,047 - 5,341,047
Payable against redemption of units - 4,658,185 4,658,185

5,341,047 4,658,185 9,999,232
Amount received on issuance of units (5,341,400) - (5,341,400)
Amount paid on redemption of units - (4,658,185) (4,658,185)

(5,341,400) (4,658,185) (9,999,585)

Closing balance as at 30 June 2018 1,572 - 1,672




TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES / CONNECTED PERSONS

Connected persons / related parties comprise of United Bank Limited (Holding Company of Management Company), UBL
Fund Managers Limited (Management Company), Al-Ameen Islamic Financial Services (Private) Limited (Subsidiary of the
Management Company), entities under the common management or directorship, Central Depository Company of Pakistan
Limited as trustee and custodian of the Fund, the directors and officers of the Management Company and unit holders
holding 10% or more of the Fund's net assets.

Remuneration to the management company and the trustee is determined in accordance with the provision of Non Banking
Finance Companies Rules, 2003, Non Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities regulations, 2008 and the Trust
Deed respectively.

All other transactions with related parties / connected persons are in the normal course of business, at contracted rates
and terms determined in accordance with the market rates.

Details of transactions with related parties / connected persons and balances with them at the year end are as follows:

Other
Management Associated Funds under Directors and Connected
Company Companies Trustee Common Key Persons /
Management Executives Related
Parties
----------------------- (Transactions during the year ended 30 June 2018) --------=--------
(Rupees in '000)
Units issued 1,637,639 12,279 - 1,403,578 - -
Units redeemed 1,013,284 7,194 - 1,253,850 - -
Profit on saving accounts - 255 - - - -
Bank charges - 79 - - - -
Purchase of securities - - - 99,901 - -
Sale of securities - 247,595 - 1,488,787 - -
Remuneration 7,647 - 1,496 - - -
Sindh Sales tax on remuneration 994 - 195 - - -
Allocation of expenses relating
to the Fund 1,103 - - - - -
Listing fee - - - - - 25
(Balances held as at 30 June 2018)
Units held (in units '000) 6,027 228 - 1,490 0.09 -
Units held (in rupees '000) 636,491 24,046 - 157,384 9 -
Bank balances * - 2,491 - - - -
Remuneration payable ** 651 - 169 - - -
Sales load and other payable 122 206 - - - -
Payable against allocated expenses 209 - - - - -
Profit receivable - 7 - - - -
* These carry profit rate of 4% per annum.
** This balance is inclusive of Sindh Sales Tax payable
----------------------- (Transactions during the year ended 30 June 2017) -----------------
(Rupees in '000)
Units issued - 7,257 - - 0.404 504,000
Units redeemed - - - - - 715,572
Profit on saving accounts - 2,911 - - - -
Bank charges - 49 - - - -
Purchase of securities - 358,380 - 464,903 - -
Sale of securities - 524,745 - 1,713,587 - -
Remuneration 6,763 - 1,008 - - -
Sindh Sales tax on remuneration 879 - 131 - - -
Dividend paid to unit holders - 962 - - 0.450 9,934
Allocation of expenses relating
to the Fund 676 - - - - -
(Balances held as at 30 June 2017)
Units held (in units '000) - 181 - - 0.087 3,908
Units held (in rupees '000) - 18,184 - - 8,740 392,622
Bank balances * - 14,349 - - - -
Remuneration payable ** 1,077 - 162 - - -
Sales load and other payable 89 - - - - -
Payable against allocated expenses 144 - - - - -
Profit receivable - 153 - - - -

* These carry profit rate of 4% per annum.
** This balance is inclusive of Sindh Sales Tax payable
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Fund"s objective in managing risks is the creation and protection of Unit holders® value. Risk is inherent
in the Fund“s activities, but it is managed through monitoring and controlling activities which are primarily set
up to be performed based on limits established by the Management Company, Fund's constitutive
documents and the regulations and directives of the SECP. These limits reflect the business strategy and
market environment of the Fund as well as the level of the risk that Fund is willing to accept. The Board of
Directors of the Management Company supervises the overall risk management approach within the Fund.
The Fund is exposed to credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk arising from the financial instruments it
holds.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss to the Fund by
failing to discharge its obligation. The Fund“s policy is to enter into financial contracts with reputable counter
parties in accordance with the internal guidelines, offering document and regulatory requirements.
Management of credit risk

The Fund's policy is to enter into financial contracts in accordance with the investment guidelines approved
by the Investment Committee, its Trust Deed and the requirements of NBFC rules and regulations and
guidelines given by SECP from time to time.

Credit risk is managed and controlled by the management company of the Fund in the following manner:

- The fund limits its exposure to credit risk by only investing in instruments and bank deposits that have a
minimum "AA-" from a credit rating agency duly approved by the SECP.

- Investment transactions are carried out with large number of brokers, whose credit rating is taken into
account so as to minimize the risk of default and transactions are settled or paid for only upon deliveries.

- The risk of counter party exposure due to failed trade causing a loss to the Fund is mitigated by a periodic
review of trade reports, credit ratings and financial statements on a regular basis.

- Cash is held only with reputable banks (including related party).

The table below analyses the Fund's maximum exposure to credit risk:

30 June 30 June
2018 2017
Financial assets exposed to credit risk (Rupees in '000)
Bank balances 1,490,596 885,801
Term deposit receipt 135,000 -
Profit receivable 3,058 5,872

1,628,654 _ 891,673

Credit risk arising on financial assets is monitored through a regular analysis of financial position of brokers
and other parties. Further, all transactions in securities are executed through approved brokers, thus the risk
of default is considered to be minimal. For Debt instruments settlement, Delivery versus Payment (DvP)
mechanism applied by Trustee of the Fund minimize the credit risk. In accordance with the risk management
policy of the Fund, the Investment Committee monitors the credit position on a daily basis which is reviewed
by the Board of Directors of the Management Company on a quarterly basis.

All deposits with Banks and CDC are highly rated and risk of default is considered minimal. Further,
investment in government securities is not exposed to credit risk.



The analysis below summarizes the credit quality of the Fund*s portfolio in total as on 30 June 2018:

30 June 30 June
2018 2017

Rating by category %
AAA 46.00 6.17
AA 31.00 -
AA- to AA+ 23.00 92.99
Others - 0.84
Total 100.00 100.00

Concentration of credit risk exists when changes in economic or industry factors affect the group of
counterparties whose aggregate credit exposure is significant in relation to the Fund®s total credit exposure.
The Fund"s portfolio of financial assets is broadly diversified and transactions are entered into with diverse
credit worthy counterparties, thereby mitigating any significant concentration of credit risk.

The Fund"s activities may give rise to settlement risk. ,Setllement risk" is the risk of loss due to the failure of
an entity to honour its obligations to deliver cash, securities or other assets as contractually agreed.

For the majority of transactions, the Fund mitigates this risk by conducting settlements through a broker to
ensure that a trade is settled only when both parties have fulfilled their contractual settlement obligations.

22.3 Liquidity risk

L,Liquidity risk" is the risk that the Fund will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its
financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Fund"s offering document
provides for the daily creation and cancellation of units and it is therefore exposed to the liquidity risk of
meeting unitholder's redemptions at any time. The Fund manages the liquidity risk by maintaining maturities
of financial liabilities and investing a major portion of the Fund“s assets in highly liquid financial assets. The
Fund“s investments are considered to be readily realisable as they are all invested in short term government
securities and saving accounts . The Fund's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible,
that the Fund will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due under both normal and
stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Fund's reputation.

In accordance with the risk management policy of the Fund, the Fund manager monitors the liquidity position
on a daily basis, which is reviewed by the Board of Directors of the Management Company on a quarterly
basis.

In accordance with regulation 58(1)(k) of the NBFC Regulations, 2008, the Fund has the ability to borrow
funds for meeting the redemption requests, with the approval of the Trustee, for a period not exceeding three
months to the extent of fifteen percent of the net assets. However, no such borrowing has been obtained
during the year.

Further, the Fund is also allowed in accordance with regulation 57 (10) of the NBFC Regulations, 2008, to
defer redemption requests to the next dealing day, had such requests exceed ten percent of the total number
of units in issue.

In addition to unitholders' fund, the analysis below summarizes the Fund's financial liabilities into relevant
maturity grouping as at 30 June 2018:
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30 June 2018

Maturity Upto More than
Three Six One one year Total
months months year

(Rupees in '000)
Financial Liabilities

Payable to Management Company 998 - - - 998
Payable to Central Depository Company
of Pakistan Limited - Trustee 169 - - - 169
Accrued expenses and other payables 1,861 - - - 1,861
Total Liabilities 3,028 - - - 3,028
30 June 2017
Maturity Upto More than
Three Six One one year Total
months months year

(Rupees in '000)
Financial Liabilities

Payable to Management Company 1,310 - - - 1,310
Payable to Central Depository Company

of Pakistan Limited - Trustee 162 - - - 162
Accrued expenses and other payables 5,251 - - - 5,251
Total Liabilities 6,723 - - - 6,723
Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate due to
changes in market variables such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates and debt security prices.

i) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate
due to changes in the market interest rates. The Fund's interest rate risk is monitored on a daily basis
by the board of directors.

As at 30 June 2018, the balances that may be exposed to interest rate risk are as follows:

30 June 30 June
2018 2017
(Rupees in '000)
Variable rate instruments
Bank balances 1,490,596 885,801

Fixed rate instrument
Term deposit receipt 135,000 -

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

A change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the year end would have increased / (decreased) the net
assets and net income by Rs. 14.906 million (30 June 2017: Rs. 8.858 million), assuming all other
variables held constant.

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instrument

Short term investment with a bank is carried at held to maturity. Therefore a change in interest rate at
the reporting date would not effect the income statement.



The composition of the Fund's investment portfolio and KIBOR rates announced are expected to change
over time. Accordingly, the sensitivity analysis prepared as of 30 June 2018 is not necessarily

indicative of the effect on Funds net assets of future movements in interest rates. The fluctuation in
interest rate of 100 basis points is reasonably possible in the current economic environment.

ii) Foreign Currency risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Fund does not have any financial
instruments in foreign currencies and hence is not exposed to such risk.

iii) Price risk
Price risk is the risk of volatility in prices of financial instruments resulting from their dependence on
market sentiments, speculative activities, supply and demand for financial instruments and liquidity in
the market. The value of investments may fluctuate due to change in business cycles affecting the
business of the Fund in which the investment is made, change in business circumstances of the Fund,
industry environment and / or the economy in general. The Fund is not exposed to the risk as its
constitutive documents prohibit it from investing in equity securities.

22.5 Unit holders' fund risk management (Capital risk Management)

23.

The Fund's objective when managing unit holder's funds is to safeguard the Fund's ability to continue as a
going concern so that it can continue to provide optimum returns to its unit holders and to ensure reasonable
safety of capital. The Fund manages its investment portfolio and other assets by monitoring return on net
assets and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in market conditions. Under the NBFC
regulations, 2008, the minimum size of an open end scheme shall be one hundred million rupees at all the
times during the life of the scheme. The Fund size depends on the issuance and redemption of units.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Fund"s policy is to perform the following:

- Monitors the level of daily issuance and redemptions relative to the liquid assets and adjusts the amount
of distributions the Fund pays to unit holders;

- Redeem and issue units in accordance with the constitutive documents of the Fund, which include the
ability to restrict redemptions and require certain minimum holdings and issuance; and

- The Fund Manager / Investment Committee members and Chief Executive of the Fund critically track the
movement of ,Assets under Management®. The Board of Directors is updated about the fund yield and
movement of NAV and total fund size at the end of each quarter.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

Underlying the definition of fair value is the presumption that the Fund is a going concern without any
intention or requirement to curtail materially the scale of its operations or to undertake a transaction on
adverse terms.

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities traded in active markets i.e. listed equity shares are based on
the quoted market prices at the close of trading on the period end date. The quoted market prices used for
financial assets held by the Fund is current bid price.

A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily and regularly
available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those
prices represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm“s length basis.
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IFRS 13, 'Fair Value Measurements' requires the Fund to classify fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects
the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

- Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date

(level 1).

- Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly

(level 2).

- Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability (level 3).

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels in the

fair value hierarchy:

On-balance sheet financial instruments

30 June 2018

Financial assets not
measured at fair value
Bank balances
Term deposit receipt
Profits receivable
Deposit, prepayments and
other receivables

Financial liabilities not
measured at fair value

Payable to the Management
Company

Payable to Central Depository

Company of Pakistan Limited

- Trustee
Accrued expenses and
other payables

30 June 2017

Financial assets not
measured at fair value
Bank balances
Profits receivable
Deposit, prepayments and
other receivables

Financial liabilities not
measured at fair value

Payable to the Management
Company

Payable to Central Depository

Company of Pakistan Limited

- Trustee
Accrued expenses and
other payables

Note Carrying amount Fair value
Fair value Available Loans and Other Total Level1 Level2 Level3 Total
through for receivables  financial
profit and sale liabilities
loss
23.1
- - 1,490,596 - 1,490,596
- - 135,000 - 135,000
- - 3,058 - 3,058
- - 1,769 - 1,769
- - 1,630,423 - 1,630,423
23.1
- - - 998 998
- - - 169 169
- - - 670 670
- - - 1,837 1,837
Note Carrying amount Fair value
Fair value  Available Loans and Other Total Level1 Level2 Level3 Total
through for receivables financial
profit and sale liabilities
loss
23.1
- - 885,801 - 885,801
- - 5,872 - 5,872
- - 2,122 - 2,122
- - 893,795 - 893,795
23.1
- - - 1,310 1,310
- - - 162 162
- - - 5,251 5,251
- - - 6,723 6,723

The Fund has not disclosed the fair values for these financial assets and financial liabilities, as these are either short term in nature
or reprice periodically. Therefore, their carrying amounts are reasonable approximation of fair value.
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TOP TEN BROKERS / DEALERS BY PERCENTAGE
OF COMMISSION PAID BY THE FUND

Name of Broker

Currency Market Associates (Private) Limited
Next Capital Limited

Invest Capital Markets Limited

BIPL Securities Limited

Paramount Capital (Private) Limited

C&M Management (Private) Limited

Bright Capital (Private) Limited

EFG Hermes Pakistan Limited

Commission
2018

%

10.04
235
20.05
0.94
1.29
12.48
52.10
0.75

100.00

Name of Broker

Invest One Market Limited

Bright Capital (Private) Limited
Invest Capital Market Limited
C&M Management Private Limited
Elixer Securities Pakistan Limited
Vector Capital Limited

Paramount Capital Private Limited
BIPL Securities Limited

Commission
2017

%

33.08
16.97
16.50
14.73
9.29
6.35
2.24
0.84

100.00

INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

Details of the members of investment committee of the Fund are as follows:

S.No. Name Designation Experience in years Qualification
1 Yasir Qadri Chief Executive Officer 22 MBA

2 Syed Suleman Akhtar Chief Investment Officer 17 MBA, CFA
3 Farhan Bashir Khan Head of Research 12 MBA

4 Asim Wahab Khan Head of Investment Strategy & Equity 13 MBA, CFA
5 Syed Sheeraz Ali Fund Manager 9 BS

6 Hadi Hassan Mukhi Acting Head of Risk & Compliance ** 18 B.Com

*Syed Sheeraz Ali is also Fund Manager of UBL Income Opportunity Fund, UBL Financial Planning Fund and Al Ameen Islamic Cash Fund.

** Head of Risk - non voting observer

DIRECTORS' MEETING ATTENDANCE

During the year, seven meetings of the Board of Directors of the Management Company were held. The details of the attendance are as

under:
Dates 23 August 25 September 27 October 6 December 16 February 26 April
2017 2017 2017 2017 2018 2018
Name of Director Meetings
attended
Tarig Kirmani ** 2 4 v N/A N/A N/A N/A
Azhar hamid * 5 N/A N/A v v v v
Yasir Qadri 7 4 v v v v v
Naz Khan * 5 N/A N/A v v v v
Shabbir Hussain Hashmi ** 2 4 4 N/A N/A N/A N/A
Sharjeel Shahid * 3 N/A N/A v v x v
Zia ljaz 5 v 4 v v x 4
Syed Furrukh Zaeem 7 v v v v v v
Mirza Muhammad
Sadeed Hassan Barlas 6 v v v v x v
Fawaz Taj Siddiqui **** 5 4 4 v v v N/A
Umair Ahmed 7 v v v v v v
S.M. Aly Osman **** 2 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A v

* Elected at EOGM held on 29 September 2017.

** Independent Director's have completed three consecutive term.

*** Mr. Zulfigar Alavi resigned on 07 August 2017.

**** Mr. Fawaz Taj siddiqui resigned and appointment of Mr. S.M. Aly Osman effective from 02 April 2018 as Company Secretary.

2 May
2018

N/A

ANRNEN

N/A



27 PATTERN OF UNIT HOLDERS

30 June 2018
Number of
Category Unit holders Units held Percentage
Individuals 951 3,562,743 23.29%
Associated companies and directors 4 227,776 1.49%
Insurance companies 4 948,904 6.20%
Non Banking Financial Companies 3 7,517,239 49.14%
Retirement funds 15 2,046,864 13.38%
Public limited companies 4 962,040 6.29%
Others 2 33,299 0.21%
983 15,298.865 100.00%
30 June 2017
Number of

Unit holders  Units held  Percentage

Individuals 850 3,569,035 40.92%
Associated companies and directors 4 181,503 2.08%
Insurance companies 3 64,609 0.74%
Retirement funds 7 2,493,702 28.60%
Public limited companies 3 1,993,863 22.86%
Others 6 419,042 4.80%
873 8,721,754 100.00%

28 CREDIT RATING

JCR - VIS Credit Rating Company has upgraded management quality rating from AM2++ (stable
outlook) to AM1 to the management company as at 29 December 2017.

29 GENERAL
29.1 Subsequent event - Non adjusting

The Board of the Management Company has approved final cash dividend for the year ended 30 June
2018 on 02 July 2018 at Rs. 5.14 per unit (2016: Nil) amounting to Rs. 18.746 million (2016: Nil).

The financial statements of the Fund for the year ended 30 June 2018 do not include the effect of
above distribution which will be accounted for in the financial statements for the year ending 30 June
2019.

29.2 Date of authorisation for issue

These financials statements were authorized for issue by Board of Directors of the Management
Company on __ 28-Aug-18

For UBL Fund Managers Limited
(Management Company)

SD SD SD
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Director
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Fund Manager’s Report — UBL Government Securities Fund (UGSF)

i) Description of the Collective Investment Scheme category and type
Income / Open-end

ii) Statement of Collective Investment Scheme’s investment objective
The objective of the fund is to generate a competitive return with minimum risk, by investing primarily in
Government Securities.

iii) Explanation as to whether the Collective Investment Scheme achieved its stated objective
The Fund achieved its stated objective.

iv) Statement of benchmark(s) relevant to the Collective Investment Scheme
Average of 6M PKRV rates.
)] Comparison of the Collective Investment Scheme’s performance during the period compared

with the said benchmarks

Monthly Yield Jul'l7 Aug'l7 Sep'l7 Oct'l7 Nov'l7 Dec'l7 Jan'l8 Feb'l8 Mar'l8 Apr'l8 May'l8 Jun'l8

UGSF 3.40% 3.87% 4.99% 4.77% 4.68% 4.67% 4.54% 4.94% 4.68% 5.46% 5.17% 5.39% 4.71%
Benchmark 6.00% 6.00% 6.01% 6.01% 6.01% 6.02% 6.03% 6.24% 6.47% 6.36% 6.43% 6.84% 6.20%
vi) Description of the strategies and policies employed during the period under review in relation to

the Collective Investment Scheme’s performance

UBL Government Securities Fund posted a return of 4.71% p.a. during FY18. At end of FY18, the Fund
Manager allocated 55% to T-Bills and 40% in Cash. Moreover, the weighted average maturity of the
fund was 0.08 years.

vii) Disclosure of the Collective Investment Scheme’s asset allocation as at the date of the report
and particulars of significant changes in asset allocation since the last report (if applicable)

Asset Allocation (% of Total Assets) Jun-17 Jun-18

Placements with banks 0% 4%
PIBs 4% 0%
GOP ljarah Sukuk 19% 0%
Reverse Repo 0% 0%
T-Bills 44% 55%
Cash 33% 40%
Others 1% 0%
Leverage Nil Nil

FMR — UGSF 1



viii)  Analysis of the Collective Investment Scheme’s performance

FY'18 Return: 4.71%
Standard Deviation (12m trailing): 0.20%
Sharpe Ratio (12m trailing): (7.00)
ix) Changes in total NAV and NAV per unit since the last review period or since commencement (in

case of newly established Collective Investment Schemes

Net Asset Value NAV per unit
30-Jun-18 | 30-Jun-17 | Change | 30-Jun-18 | 30-Jun-17 | Change
Rupees (000) % Rupees %
1,877,040 ‘ 3,339,182 (43.79) 110.5634 ‘ 105.5946 471
X) Disclosure on the markets that the Collective investment Scheme has invested in including

- review of the market(s) invested in and performance during the period

Debt Market Review — FY18

The International Crude Oil prices exhibited an upward trend for the fiscal year. The prices increased from USD 45-
per barrel increasing as much as ~70% closing at a new high of USD ~80 per barrel. Increasing oil prices, higher
commodity prices (with exception of sugar) along with lagged impact of PKR devaluation (+16%) aided in increasing
inflation rate to 4.4% for 4QFY18. Core measures of inflation witnessed an upward trajectory where NFNE which is
somewhat sticky in nature increased to 7.1% by end of FY18. Taking cues from this trend we expect SBP to continue
its current monetary tightening policy.

In twelve PIB auctions for FY18 conducted during the year, the government raised PKR~102bn (PKR ~894bn in
FY17) against target of PKR 330bn. Consequently, outstanding amount for the PIBs in the market increased to PKR
29.47tmn. Participation in the auctions was largely skewed towards three and five year paper in line with interest rate
hikes. Cut off yields in June auction trimmed to 7.5%, 8.5% and 8.7% for three, five and ten year PIB instruments
respectively. In July’'18 PIB Auction the government accepted PKR ~6.9bn.

The yield curve based on government securities of various maturities has shifted upwards in line with the ongoing
increasing discounts rates. Yield on 3M, 6M and 12M T-Bills increased by 79bps, 90bps and 116bps, respectively.
Similarly, yield on 3-year, 5-year and 10-year bonds increased 180bps, 171bps and 86bps, respectively. The spread
between annualized yields of 1-year T-bills (7.20% p.a.) and 10-year PIBs (9.03% p.a.) stood at 1.83% as of 30 June
2018.

Xi) Disclosure on distribution (if any), comprising:-
- particulars of income distribution or other forms of distribution made and proposed during the
period; and
- statement of effects on the NAV before and after distribution is made

FMR — UGSF 2



Final distribution for the year ended June 30, 2018 was made subsequent to year end, on July 02,
2018. Below are the details of such distribution

Distribution Per unit

Declared on Bonus ‘ Cash Per Unit | Cum NAV Ex NAV
Rupees (000) memmmmmmnmmees RUDEES =mmmmemmmmmeen

July 02, 2018 - 84,356 4.9688 110.5634 105.5946

xii) Description and explanation of any significant changes in the state of affairs of the Collective
Investment Scheme during the period and up till the date of the manager’s report, not otherwise
disclosed in the financial statements
There were no significant changes in the state of affairs during the year under review.

xiii) Breakdown of unit holdings by size

. Number of Investors
Range of Units

UGSF
0.0001 - 9,999.9999 2,616
10,000.0000 - 49,999.9999 167
50,000.0000 - 99,999.9999 27
100,000.0000 - 499,999.9999 16
500,000.0000 & Above 4
Total 2,830

Xiv) Disclosure on unit split (if any), comprising:-
There were no unit splits during the period.

Xv) Disclosures of circumstances that materially affect any interests of unit holders
Investment are subject to market risk.

xvi) Disclosure if the Asset Management Company or its delegate, if any, receives any soft
commission (i.e. goods and services) from its broker(s) or dealer(s) by virtue of transactions
conducted by the Collective Investment Scheme.

No soft commissions are received by the AMC from its brokers or dealers by virtue of transactions
conducted by the Collective Investment Scheme.

FMR — UGSF 3



PERFORMANCE TABLE

UBL Government Securities Fund

2018

NET ASSETS AS AT 30 JUNE - Rupees in '000 1,877,040
NET ASSETS VALUE PER UNIT AT 30 JUNE - Rupees *
Class C units - Offer * 111.8128

- Redemption 110.5634
RETURN OF THE FUND - %
Total Return of the Fund 4.71
Capital Growth (per unit) 4.71
Date of Income Distribution -
Income Distribution -
Date of Bonus distribution -
Bonus Distribution -
AVERAGE ANNUAL RETURN - %
One Year 4.71
Second Year 4.76
Third Year 6.16
Since inception 3.13
OFFER / REPURCHASE DURING THE YEAR- Rupees *
Highest price per unit - Class C units - Offer 111.8128
Highest price per unit - Class C units - Redemption 110.5634
Lowest price per unit - Class C units - Offer 106.7397
Lowest price per unit - Class C units - Redemption 105.5470
* Front-end load @1% is applicable
PORTFOLIO COMPOSITION - %
Percentage of Net Assets as at 30 June
PORTFOLIO COMPOSITION BY CATEGORY - %
Bank Balances 40.00
Placements and Term Deposit Receipts 5.00
Government securities 55.00
PORTFOLIO COMPOSITION BY MARKET - %
Debt market 100.00

Note:
- The IPO of the Fund was held from 25 July 2011 to 26 July 2011 and the Fund commenced
its operations from 27 July 2011

DISCLAIMER

Past performance is not necessarily indicative of future performance and unit prices and investment returns may go down, as well as up.

2017

3,339,182

106.7878
105.5946

4.81
(0.14)
26-Jun-17

4.95

4.81
6.88
4.64
2.37

111.6365
110.3891

106.6445
105.4529

33.00

67.00

100.00

2016

13,976,144

106.8724
105.4801

8.95

0.85
23-Jun-16

8.10
17-Jun-16
3.00

8.95
4.55
3.06
1.88

117.6178

116.0855

106.5687
105.1803

25.00
4.00
71.00

100.00
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TRUSTEE REPORT TO THE UNIT HOLDERS
UBL GOVERNMENT SECURITIES FUND

Report of the Trustee pursuant to Regulation 41(h) and clause 9 of Schedule V of the Non-
Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008

We Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited, being the Trustee of UBL Government
Securities Fund (the Fund} are of the opinion that UBL Fund Managers Limited being the
Management Company of the Fund has in all material respects managed the Fund duering the year
ended June 30, 2018 in accordance with the provisions of the following:

(i) Limitations imposed on the investment powers of the Management Company under the
constitutive documents of the Fund;

(i1} The pricing, issuance and redemption of units are carried out in accordance with the
requirements of the constitutive documents of the Fund; and

(1ii)  The Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulations) Rules, 2003, the
Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 and the
constitutive documents of the Fund.

Aftab Ahmed Diwan
Chief Executive Officer
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited

Karachi: September 19, 2018
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH LISTED COMPANIES (CODE OF CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2017 BY UBL FUND MANA GERS LIMITED

NAME OF FUND: UBL GOVERNMENT SECURITIES FUND
YEAR ENDING: JUNE 30, 2018

The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) through its letter dated April 18, 2018 to
Mutual Funds Association of Pakistan (MUFAP) has exempted the open-end collective investment schemes
from the requirements of the Code of Corporate Governance. However, the Board of Directors of UBL Fund
Meanagers Limited (the Management Company) of UBL Government Securities Fund (the Fund), for the
purpose of establishing a framework of good governance whereby a Fund is managed by best practice of
Corporate governance, has voluntarily opted to comply with the relevant provisions of the Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations 2017 (The Code).

The Management Company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:
1. The total number of directors are seven as per the following:
a. Male: Six Directors;
b. Female: One Director.
2. The composition of the Board is as follows:

Category Name
. Mr. Azhar Hamid
Independent Directors Ms. Naz
Executive Directors Mr. Yasir Qadri

Mirza Muhammad Sadeed Hassan Barlas
Mr. Sharjeel Shahid

Mr. Zia Jjaz

Syed Furrukh Zaeem

Non - Executive Directors

3. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than five listed
companies, including this company.

4. The Management Company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps

have been taken to disseminate it throughout the company along with its supporting policies and
procedures.

5. The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant
policies of the Management Company. A complete record of particulars of significant policies along
with the dates on which they were approved or amended has been maintained. The Management
Compeny has placed the Whistle Blowing Policy, Proxy Policy and the Principles of the Code of
Conduct (Statement of Ethics and Business Practice) on its website.

6. The Board of directors have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors
in accordance with the Act and these Regulations.

7. The Board has a formal and effective mechanism in place for an annual evaluation of the Board’s own
performance.

UBL FUND MANAGERS LIMITED

L 9221111825 262

B info@ublfunds.com

9 4™ Floor, STSM Bullding, Beaumont Road, Civil Lines, Karachl www.ublfunds.com
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8. The Chairman of the Board is an Independent director. All the powers of the Board have been duly
exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been taken by Board as empowered by the relevant
provisions of the Act and these Regulations.

9. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by & director
elected by the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of Act and the
Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting of Board.

10. Following directors and executive have acquired the prescribed Director Training Program (DTP)
certification:

Directors
Mirza Muhammad Sadeed Hassan Barlas

Mr. Yasir Qadri

Mr. Zia Jjaz

Ms. Naz Khan

Syed Furrukh Zaeem

Executive
f. S.M. Aly Osman

11, The Board has approved appointment of CFO, Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit,
including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and complied with relevant
requirements of the Regulations.

12. CFQ and CEO duly endorsed the financial statements before approval of the Board.

13. The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below. The Board Audit Committee

and the Board Human Resource & Compensation Committee are chaired by separate Independent
directors:
a. Board Audit Committee

i. Ms. Naz Khan (Chair);

ii. Mirza Muhammad Sadeed Hassan Barlas;
iili. Mr. Sharjeel Shahid;
iv. Mr. Zialjaz,

o po TP

b. Board Human Resource & Compensation Committee
i. Mr. Azhar Hamid (Chairman);
ii. Mr. Yasir Qadri;
iii. Mr. Zia ljaz;
iv. Ms. Naz Khan;
v. Syed Furrukh Zaeem.
c. Board Risk & Compliance Committee
i. Mirza Muhammad Sadeed Hassan Barlas (Chairman);
ii. Mr. Azhar Hamid;
ili. Mr. Sharjeel Shahid;
iv. Mr. Yasir Qadri;
v. Syed Furrukh Zaeem.

UBL FUND MANAGERS LIMITED
o, +92 21111 826 242
& info@ublfunds,.com

Q 4% Floor, STSM Building, Beaumont Road, Civit Lines, Karachi www.ublfunds.cam
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14, The Terms of Reference of the aforesaid Committees have been formed, documented and advised to
the Committee for compliance.

15. The frequency of meetings of the Committee were as per following:
a. Board Audit Committee : Quarterly Meeting
b, Board Human Resource & Compensation Committee: Quarterly Meeting
c. Board Risk & Compliance Committee: Quarterly Meeting

16. The Board has set up an independent and effective internal audit function and the audit personnel are
suitably qualified and experienced for the purpose and are conversant with the policies and procedures
of the Management Company.

17. The statutory auditors of the Fund have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating
under the quality control review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP)
and registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they or any of the partners of the firm,
their spouses and minor children do not hold units of the Fund and that the firm and all its partners are
in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as
adopted by the ICAP.

18. The Board Audit Committee recommends to the Board of directors the appointment of external
auditors, their removal, audit fees, the provision of any service permissible to be rendered to the
company by the external auditors in addition to audit of its financial statements.

19. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other
services except in accordance with the Act, these regulations or any other regulatory requirement and
the auditors have confirmed thet they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.

20. We cpnfirm that agy other significant requirements of the Regulations have been complied with,

Karachi.
Dated: August 28, 2018

UBL FUND MANAGERS LIMITED

L +92 2111825 262
& info@ubtfunds.com
Q@ 4™ Floor, STSM Building, Beaument Road, Civil Lines, Karachi, www ublfunds.com
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REVIEW REPORT TO THE UNITHOLDERS OF UBL GOVERNMENT
SECURITIES FUND ON THE STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE CONTAINED IN LISTED COMPANIES (CODE
OF CORPORATE GOVERMANCE) REGULATIONS, 2017 AS ADOPTED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF UBL FUMD MANAGERS LIMITED

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017 (the Regulations) as adopted by the Board of Directors
(the Board) of UBL Fund Managers Limited, the Management Company of UBL Government
Securities Fund (the Fund) for the year ended June 30, 2018 in accordance with the requirements
of regulation 40 of the Regulations,

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the
Management Company of the Fund. OQur responsibility is to review whether the Statement of
Compliance reflects the status of the Fund's compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and
report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations.
A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Management Company’s personnel and review of
various documents prepared by the Management Company to comply with the Regulations,

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the
accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit
approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board's statement on internal control
covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls,
the Management Company’s corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Management Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon
recommendation of the Audit Committee, place before the Board for their review and approval, its
related party transactions and also ensure compliance with the requirements of section 208 of the
Companies Act, 2017. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to
the extent of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board upon recommendation of
the Audit Committee. We have not carried out procedures to assess and determine the Fund's
process for identification of related parties and that whether the related party transactions were
undertaken at arm's length price or not.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the
Statement of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Fund's compliance, in all material
respects, with the requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Fund for the year
ended June 30, 2018.
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IBDO

We draw attention to the following paragraph as detailed in the Statement of Compliance:

“The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) through its letter dated April 18,
2018 to Mutual Funds Assoclation of Pakistan (MUFAP) has exempted the open-end collective
Investment schemes from the requirements of the Code of Corporate Governance. However, the
Board of Directors of UBL Fund Managers Limited (the Management Company) of UBL Government
Securities Fund (the Fund), for the purpose of establishing a framework of good governance
whereby a Fund Is managed by best practice of Corporate governance, has voluntarily opted to
comply with the relevant provisions of the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations 2017 (The Code).”

Accordingly, our opinion is in relation to Statement of Compliance contained in Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017 as adopted by the Board of Directors of the
Management Company,

KARACHI f(:\‘m e K

DATED: AUGUST 28, 2018 CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

i~ Engagement Partner: Zulfikar Ali Causer
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Tel; +92 21 3568 3030 2nd Floor, Block-C
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE UNITHOLDERS
Report on the audit of the financial statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of UBL Government Securities Fund (“the Fund”), which
comprise the statement of assets and liabilities as at June 30, 2018, and the income statement,
statement of comprehensive income, statement of cash flows and statement of movement in unit
holders’ fund for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Fund as at June 30, 2018, and its financial performance and its cash flows

for the year then ended in accordance with approved accounting standards as applicable in
Pakistan.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable
in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Fund in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Pakistan (the Code), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matter

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance
in our audit of the financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Following are the Key audit matters:

S.NO | Key audit matter(s) :?sl:t the matter was addressed in our

1L Amendment to the NBFC Regulations, | Our audit procedures included:
2008

o We reviewed the processes and

The Securities and Exchange Commission of controls implemented by the Fund

Pakistan through its SRO 756(1)/2017 dated relating to the production and review

August 3, 2017 made certain amendments in of system generated reports and

the Non-Banking Finance Companies and manual workings for the purpose of

Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 (the calculations of element of income or

Regulations). loss and bifurcation of amount paid on

redemption of units into *“capital
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S.NO

Key audit matter(s)

How the matter was addressed in our
audit

The said notification included a definition
and explanation relating to "element of
income” and excluded the element of
income from the expression "accounting
income” as described in Regulation 63 of the
Regulations (amount distributable to unit
holders) of the NBFC Regulations.

Previously, an equalization account called
the ‘element of income / (loss) and capital
gains / (losses) included in prices of units
issued less those in units redeemed was
created, in order to prevent the dilution of
per unit income and distribution of income
already paid out on redemption.

As per the revised methodology mentioned
in the notification referred above, element
of income is a transaction of capital nature
and the receipt and payment of element of
income is taken to unitholders’ fund.

Furthermore, the amendments also require
certain additional disclosures with respect
to ‘Income Statement’ and ‘Statement of
Movement in Unit Holders' Fund’, whereas
disclosure with respect to ‘Distribution
Statement’ has been deleted in the said
amendments.

Due to the significance of impact on
financial results of the Fund including
substantial changes in disclosures of the
Fund’s financial statements as a result of
above mentioned amendments, we have
considered the application of amendments
as a key audit matter. (Refer Note 4.12 to
the financial statements of the Fund)

value” and “income already paid on
units redeemed”.

* We evaluated the accuracy of system
generated reports and manual workings
produced by the Fund to ensure that
the data is consistent with source
documents and the said workings are in
compliance with all the statutory
provisions relating to element of
income or loss.

* We assessed the appropriateness of the
recognition, measurement and
presentation of “element of income /
loss” in accordance with the amended
provisions of the NBFC Regulations. We
also considered the guidelines issued
by MUFAP in respect of the accounting
for. element of income / loss as per the
revised Regulations and assessed its
implementation by the Fund.

o We evaluated the adequacy of
disclosures regarding the change in
accounting policy with respect to
element of income / loss along with
the adequacy of additional disclosures
with respect to Income Statement’ and
Statement of Movement in Unit
Holders' Fund' in accordance with the
requirements of the relevant financial
reporting standards and the guidance
issued by MUFAP in relation thereto.

Existence and valuation of debt securities

As disclosed in note 6 to the financial
statements of the Fund for the year ended
June 30, 2018, the investments held by the
Fund comprised of debt instruments which
represent 55% of the total assets of the
Fund as at the year end.

Our audit procedures included:

= We tested controls over acquisition,
disposals and periodic valuation of
debt  instruments portfolio and
performed substantive audit
procedures on year-end balance of
portfolio including review of
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Responsibilities of the Management Company and its Board of Directors

The Management Company (“UBL Fund Managers Limited”) of the Fund is responsible for the
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with the requirements
of the Trust Deed, the Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulation) Rules, 2003
(NBFC Rules), the Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 (the
NBFC Regulations) and approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan and for such
internal control as the Management Company determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management Company is responsible for assessing the
Fund’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Management Company either
intends to liquidate the Fund or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Management Company is responsible for overseeing the Fund’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in

the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

° lIdentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting

from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Fund’s internal control. .

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management Company.
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¢« Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management Company’s use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Fund’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Fund to cease to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Board of Directors of the Management Company regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Board of Directors of the Management Company with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors of the Management Company, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of
the current year and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion the financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with the relevant provisions of the Trust Deed, NBFC Rules and NBFC

Regulations.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Zulfikar Ali

Causer. R‘\ Q\\_/k
KARACHI
paTE 2 § AUG 2018 BDO EBRAHIM & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
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UBL GOVERNMENT SECURITIES FUND

STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
AS AT JUNE 30, 2018

ASSETS
Bank balances
Investments
Term deposit receipts
Mark up / interest receivable
Prepayments and other receivables
Advance tax
TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES
Payable to UBL Fund Managers Limited - Management Company
Payable to Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee
Payable to Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
Accrued expenses and other liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET ASSETS

UNIT HOLDERS' FUND (AS PER STATEMENT ATTACHED)

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

NUMBER OF UNITS IN ISSUE

NET ASSETS VALUE PER UNIT

Note

O 0 3 O W

—_
(=)

11
12
13
14

15

16

The annexed notes from 1 to 34 form an integral part of these financial statements.

2018 2017
------- (Rupees in '000) -------

1,645,436 1,141,088
2,277,353 2,309,209
185,000 -

5,142 8,709
4336 11,238
5,122 1,508
4,122,389 3,471,752
2,477 4,691
206 341
2,045 7,926
2,240,621 119,612
2,245 349 132,570
1,877,040 3,339,182
1,877,040 3,339,182

For UBL Fund Managers Limited
(Management Company)

---SD--- ---SD---

16,977,050 31,622,643
(Rupees)
110.5634 105.5946
-—-SD---

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER DIRECTOR



UBL GOVERNMENT SECURITIES FUND
INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

2018 2017
Note ------- (Rupees in '000) -------
INCOME
Financial income 17 170,724 640,273
Capital loss on sale of investments - net (4,031) (19,037)
Unrealised (loss) / gain on revaluation of investments
classified as 'at fair value through profit or loss' - net 6.6 (394) 5,047
Other income 121 -
Total income 166,420 626,283
EXPENSES
Remuneration of UBL Fund Managers Limited - Management Company 11.1 27,331 107,270
Sindh Sales tax on Management Company's remuneration 11.2 3,553 13,945
Remuneration of Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee 12.1 3,158 9,422
Annual fee of Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan 13.1 2,045 7,926
Allocated expenses 19 2,726 10,573
Bank charges 276 308
Auditors' remuneration 18 448 441
Brokerage and settlement expenses 580 2,400
Amortization of preliminary expenses and floatation cost - 62
Legal and professional charges 152 1,163
Fee and subscription charges 310 315
Other expenses 42 23
Total operating expenses 40,621 153,848
Net income from operating activities 125,799 472,435
Element of loss and capital losses included
in prices of units issued less those in units redeemed - net - (332,969)
Reversal of provision for Workers' Welfare Fund 14.2 - 19,506
Provision for Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund 14.2 (2,468) (14,546)
Net income for the year before taxation 123,331 144,426
Taxation 20 - -
Net income for the year after taxation 123,331 144,426
Allocation of net income for the year
Income already paid on units redeemed (62,223)
Net income for the year available for distribution 61,108
Relating to capital gains -
Excluding capital gains 61,108
61,108
Earnings per unit 21
The annexed notes from 1 to 34 form an integral part of these financial statements.
For UBL Fund Managers Limited
(Management Company)
---SD--- ---SD--- ---SD---
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER DIRECTOR



UBL GOVERNMENT SECURITIES FUND
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

2018 2017
------- (Rupees in '000) -----—-

Net income for the year 123,331 144,426

Other comprehensive income
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to income statement - -
Items that may not be reclassified subsequently to income
statement - -

Total comprehensive income for the year 123,331 144,426

The annexed notes from 1 to 34 form an integral part of these financial statements.

For UBL Fund Managers Limited
(Management Company)

---SD-- ---SD-- ---SD--
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER DIRECTOR



UBL GOVERNMENT SECURITIES FUND
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net income for the year before taxation

Adjustments for:
Financial income
Unrealised loss / (gain) on revaluation of investments
classified as 'at fair value through profit or loss' - net
Capital loss on sale of investments - net
Element of loss and capital losses included in the prices of units issued less those
in units redeemed - net
Provision for Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund
Reversal of provision for Workers' Welfare Fund
Amortization of preliminary expenses and floatation costs

Cash used in operations before working capital changes

Working capital changes
Decrease / (increase) in assets
Investments - net
Term deposit receipts
Prepayments and other receivables
Advance tax

(Decrease) / increase in liabilities
Payable to UBL Fund Managers Limited - Management Company
Payable to Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee
Annual fee payable to Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Profit received on bank balances and investments
Net cash generated from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from issuance of units
Payments against redemption of units
Dividend paid
Net cash used in financing activities
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Bank balances

Term deposit receipts
Market Treasury Bills

The annexed notes from 1 to 34 form an integral part of these financial statements.

For UBL Fund Managers Limited

(Management Company)
---SD--- ---SD---
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

2018 2017
------- (Rupees in '000) ---—----

123,331 144,426
(170,724) (640,273)
394 (5,047)

4,031 19,037

- 332,969

2,468 14,546
- (19,506)

- 62
(163,831) (298212)
(40,500) (153,786)
756,133 9,165,338

- 150,000

6,902 72,599

(3,614) -
759,421 9,387,937
2.214) (21,624)
(135) (863)
(5,881) (1,714)
2,118,541 (12,509)
2,110,311 (36,710)
174,291 1,077,752
3,003,523 10,275,193
1,571,191 10,909,306
(3,156,664) (21,882,862)
- (140,801)
(1,585.473) (11,114,357)
1,418,050 (839,164)
2,683,359 3,522,523
4,101,409 2,683,359
1,645,436 1,141,088
185,000 -
2,270,973 1,542,271
4,101,409 2,683,359
---SD---

DIRECTOR




UBL GOVERNMENT SECURITIES FUND
STATEMENT OF MOVEMENT IN UNIT HOLDERS' FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

2018 2017
Capital Undistributed Total Total
value income
NOte s=mmmmmmmmmmm e (Rupees in '000) -----------------n-mmmemem.

Net assets at the beginning of the year 3,132,466 206,716 3,339,182 13,976,144
Issuance of 14,557,841 units (2017: 101,603,547 units)

Capital value of units 1,537,229 - 1,537,229 -

Element of income

Due to net income earned 33,962 - 33,962 -

Total proceeds on issuance of units 1,571,191 1,571,191 10,909,306
Redemption of 29,203,433 units (2017: 202,481,208 units)

Capital value of units (3,083,724) - (3,083,724) -

Element of income

Due to net income earned (10,717) (62,223) (72,940) -

Total payments on redemption of units (3,094,441) (62,223) (3,156,664) (21,882,862)
Element of loss and capital losses included in prices
of units issued less those in units redeemed - net - - - 332,969
Total comprehensive income for the year - 123,331 123,331 144,426
Distribution during the year 32 - - - (140,801)
Net income for the year less distribution - 123,331 123,331 3,625
Net assets at the end of the year 1,609,216 267,824 1,877,040 3,339,182
Undistributed income brought forward comprises of:

Realised gain 201,669 201,669 118,965

Unrealised gain 5,047 5,047 84,126
Total undistributed income brought forward 206,716 206,716 203,091
Income available for distribution:

Relating to capital gains - - -

Excluding capital gains 61,108 61,108 144,426
Distribution during the year: Nil
(2017: Rs. 4.95 per unit declared on June 26, 2017) 32 - - (140,801)
Undistributed income carried forward 267,824 267,824 206,716
Undistributed income carried forward comprises of:

Realised gain 268,218 268,218 201,669

Unrealised (loss) / gain (394) (394) 5,047
Total undistributed income carried forward 267,824 267,824 206,716

(Rupees) (Rupees)
Net assets value per unit at the beginning of the year 105.5946 105.4801
Net assets value per unit at the end of the year 110.5634 105.5946
The annexed notes from 1 to 34 form an integral part of these financial statements.
For UBL Fund Managers Limited
(Management Company)
---SD--- ---SD--- ---SD---

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER DIRECTOR



UBL GOVERNMENT SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

1.

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

2.1

LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

UBL Government Securities Fund (the Fund) was established under the Non-Banking Finance
Companies (Establishment and Regulation) Rules, 2003 (the NBFC Rules) as an open-ended
mutual fund. It was constituted under the Trust Deed, dated May 19, 2011 between UBL Fund
Managers Limited (a wholly owned subsidiary company of United Bank Limited) as the
Management Company, a company incorporated under the repealed Companies Ordinance,
1984 (now Companies Act, 2017) and Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
(CDC) as the Trustee. The Trust Deed has also been approved by the Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan (SECP).The Fund commenced its operations from July 7, 2011. The
registered office of the Management Company is situated at the 4th Floor, STSM Building,
Beaumont Road, Civil Lines, Karachi, Pakistan.

The Management Company of the Fund is registered with the SECP as a Non-Banking Finance
Company under the NBFC Rules.

The Fund is an income scheme and units of the Fund are listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange
Limited. Units are offered for public subscription on a continuous basis. The units are
transferable and can also be redeemed by surrendering them to the Fund at the option of the
unit holder. The Fund is categorised as an open-ended income scheme in accordance with
Circular No. 7 of 2009 issued by the SECP.

The objective of the Fund is to generate a competitive return with minimum risk, by investing
primarily in Government Securities. The weighted average time to maturity of the Fund's
investment shall not exceed 4 years and this shall also apply to Government Securities. This is
intended to reduce risk while providing competitive returns and maintaining liquidity.

Title to the assets of the Fund are held in the name of the CDC as the Trustee of the Fund.
JCR-VIS Credit Rating Company has assigned an asset manager quality rating of '"AM1' (stable
outlook) to the Management Company as at December 29, 2017 and a stability rating of
"A+(f)" to the Fund as at December 29, 2017.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan.



2.2

2.3

24

The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017, provisions of and
directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 along with part VIIIA of the repealed
Companies Ordinance, 1984; and Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and
Regulations) Rules, 2003 (the NBFC Rules), Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified
Entities Regulations, 2008 (the NBFC Regulations) and requirements of the Trust Deed. Where
provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, part VIIIA of the repealed
Companies Ordinance, 1984, the NBFC Rules, the NBFC Regulations and requirements of the
Trust Deed differ from the IFRS Standards, the provisions of and directives issued under the
Companies Act, 2017, part VIIIA of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984, the NBFC
Rules, the NBFC Regulations and requirements of the Trust Deed have been followed.

Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except
investments that are stated at fair values. These financial statements have been prepared by
following accrual basis of accounting except for cash flows information.

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees, which is the Fund's functional and
presentation currency.

Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards, as
applicable in Pakistan, requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of
which form the basis of making the judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgments made by management in the application of approved accounting standards, as
applicable in Pakistan, that have significant effect on the financial statements and estimates
with a significant risk of material judgment in the next year are as follows:



3.1

Classification and valuation of investments

For details please refer notes 4.2 and 23 to these financial statements.

Impairment of investment

A financial asset is assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any objective
evidence that it is impaired. This objective evidence of impairment of fixed income securities is

determined in accordance with provisioning criteria for non performing exposures as per the
requirements of Circular No. 33 of 2012 dated October 24, 2012.

Element of income / (loss) and capital gains / (losses) included in the prices of units issued
less those in units redeemed - net

For details please refer note 4.12 to these financial statements.

Provision for taxation

For details please refer notes 4.9 and 20 to these financial statements.
Workers' Welfare Fund

For details please refer note 14.2 to these financial statements.

Other assets

Judgement is involved in assessing the realisability of other assets balances.

NEW STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS TO PUBLISHED
APPROVED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

Amendments that are effective in current year and are relevant to the Fund

The Fund has adopted the amendments to the following approved accounting standards as
applicable in Pakistan which became effective during the year from the dates mentioned below
against the respective standard:
Effective date
(annual periods
beginning on or
after)
IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows - Amendments resulting from the
disclosure initiative January 01, 2017
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Effective date
(annual periods
beginning on or

after)

IAS 12 Income Taxes - Amendments regarding the recognition of
deferred tax assets for unrealised losses January 01, 2017

Other than the amendments to standards mentioned above, there are certain annual
improvements made to [FRS that became effective during the year:

Annual Improvements to [FRSs (2014 — 2016) Cycle:
IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities January 01, 2017
Amendments not yet effective

The following amendments with respect to the approved accounting standards as applicable in
Pakistan would be effective from the dates mentioned below against the respective standard:

Conceptual framework for Financial reporting 2018-Original Issue March 2018

IFRS 2  Share-based Payment - Amendments to clarify the
classification and measurement of share-based payment
transactions January 01, 2018

IFRS 4  Insurance Contracts - Amendments regarding the interaction of
IFRS 4 and IFRS 9 January 01, 2018

IFRS 7  Financial Instruments : Disclosures - Additional hedge
accounting disclosures (and consequential amendments)  Applies when
resulting from the introduction of the hedge accounting chapter IFRS 9 is applied
in [FRS 9

IFRS 9  Financial Instruments - Reissue to incorporate a hedge
accounting chapter and permit the early application of the
requirements for presenting in other comprehensive income the
'own credit' gains or losses on financial liabilities designated
under the fair value option without early applying the other
requirements of I[FRS 9 January 01, 2018



IFRS 9

IFRS 9

IFRS 10

IAS 19

IAS 28

IAS 28

IAS 39

IAS 40

Financial Instruments - Finalised version, incorporating
requirements for classification and measurement, impairment,
general hedge accounting and derecognition.

Financial Instruments - Amendments regarding prepayment
features with negative compensation and modifications of
financial liabilities

Consolidated Financial Statements - Amendments regarding the
sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture

Employee benefits - Amendments regarding plan amendments,
curtailments or settlements

Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures - Amendments
regarding the sale or contribution of assets between an investor
and its associate or joint venture

Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures - Amendments
regarding long-term interests in associates and joint ventures

Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurements-
Amendments to permit an entity to elect to continue to apply
the hedge accounting requirements in IAS 39 for a fair value
hedge of the interest rate exposure of a portion of a portfolio of
financial assets or financial liabilities when IFRS 9 is applied,
and to extend the fair value option to certain contracts that meet
the 'own use' scope exception

Investment Property - Amendments to clarify transfers or
property to, or from, investment property

Effective date
(annual periods
beginning on or

after)

January 01, 2018

January 01, 2019

Deferred
indefinitely

January 01, 2019

Deferred
indefinitely

January 01, 2019

Applies when
IFRS 9 is applied

January 01, 2018

The Annual Improvements to IFRSs that are effective from the dates mentioned below against
respective standards:
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Effective date
(annual periods
beginning on or
after)
Annual Improvements to I[FRSs (2014 —2016) Cycle:

IFRS 1  First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting January 01,2018
Standards
IAS 28  Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures January 01, 2018

Annual Improvements to IFRSs (2015 —2017) Cycle:

IFRS 3  Business Combinations January 01, 2019
IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements January 01, 2019
IAS 12 Income Taxes January 01, 2019
IAS 23 Borrowing Costs January 01, 2019

Standards or interpretations not yet effective

The following new standards have been issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (IASB), which have been adopted locally by the Securities and Exchange Commission
of Pakistan effective from the dates mentioned below against the respective standard:

IFRS 9  Financial Instruments July 01, 2018
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers July 01, 2018
IFRS 16 Leases January 1, 2019

The following new standards and interpretations have been issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB), which have not been adopted locally by the Securities
and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP):

IFRS 1  First Time Adoption of International Financial Reporting
IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

The effects of IFRS 15 - Revenues from Contracts with Customers and IFRS 9 - Financial
Instruments are still being assessed, as these new standards may have a significant effect on the
Fund's future financial statements.

The Fund expects that the adoption of the other amendments and interpretations of the
standards will not have any material impact and therefore will not affect the Fund's financial
statements in the period of initial application.



4.1

4.2

4.2.1

a)

b)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are
set out below. These accounting policies have been consistently applied unless otherwise

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise balances with banks and short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less. Cash and cash equivalents are
carried in the statement of assets and liabilities at nominal values.

Financial assets

Classification

The Fund classifies its financial assets in the following categories: loans and receivables, at fair
value through profit or loss and available for sale. The classification depends on the purpose
for which the financial assets were acquired. The management determines the classification of
its financial assets at initial recognition and re-evaluates this classification on regular basis.
Investments are categorised as follows:

Loans and receivables

These are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets that are acquired principally for the purpose of generating profit from short-
term fluctuations in prices are classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
category.

Available for sale

Available for sale financial assets are those non-derivative financial assets that are designated
as available for sale or are not classified as (a) loans and receivables, (b) held to maturity
investments or (c) financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. These are intended to be
held for an indefinite period of time which may be sold in response to the needs for liquidity or
change in price.
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4.2.3

4.2.4

b)

Regular way contracts

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date - the date on
which the Fund commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs except for financial
assets carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through
profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value and transaction costs are expensed in the
income statement.

Subsequent measurement

Financial assets 'at fair value through profit or loss' and 'available for sale’

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets 'at fair value through profit or loss' and
investments classified as 'available for sale' are valued as follows:

Basis of valuation of Government securities

The investment of the Fund in Government securities is valued on the basis of rates announced
by the Financial Markets Association of Pakistan.

Net gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value and on sale of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss are taken to the 'income statement'.

Net gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of available for sale financial assets
are recognised in unit holders' fund through other comprehensive income until these are
derecognised or impaired. At this time, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in
units holders' fund is shown in the income statement.

Loans and receivables

Subsequent to initial recognition financial assets classified as loans and receivables are carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Gains or losses on these instruments are also recognised in the income statement when the
financial assets carried at amortised cost are derecognised or impaired.
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4.2.6

4.3

4.4

4.5

Impairment

The Fund assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that the financial
assets or a group of financial assets are impaired. The carrying value of the Fund's assets are
reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of such assets is estimated. An impairment
loss is recognised whenever the carrying value of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.

The amount of provision for certain debt securities is determined based on the provisioning
criteria specified by the SECP.

For certain other financial assets, a provision for impairment is established when there is
objective evidence that the Fund will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the
original terms. The provision against those amounts is made as per the provisioning policy duly
formulated and approved by the Board of Directors of the Management Company in
accordance with the requirements of the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments
have expired or have been transferred and the Fund has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are recognised at the time when the Fund becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. These are initially recognised at fair value and
subsequently stated at amortised cost.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expired.

Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
statement of assets and liabilities when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Derivatives
Derivative instruments are initially recognised at fair value and subsequent to initial

measurement each derivative instrument is remeasured to its fair value and the resultant gain or
loss is recognised in the income statement.
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4.7

4.8

4.9

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Fund has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount of obligation can
be made. Provisions are regularly reviewed and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Collaterals

Cash collaterals provided by the Fund are identified in the statement of assets and liabilities as
margin and are not included as a component of cash and cash equivalents. For collaterals other
than cash, if the party to whom the collaterals are provided has a right by contract or custom to
sell or re-pledge the collaterals, the Fund classifies that collaterals in the statement of assets
and liabilities separately from other assets and identifies the assets as pledged collaterals.
Where the party to whom the collaterals are provided does not have the right to sell or re-
pledge, a disclosure of the collaterals provided is made in the notes to the financial statements.

Securities under repurchase / resale agreements

Transactions of purchase under resale (reverse-repo) of marketable and Government securities,
are entered into at contracted rates for specified periods of time. Securities purchased with a
corresponding commitment to resell at a specified future date (reverse-repos) are not
recognised in the statement of assets and liabilities. Amounts paid under these agreements are
included in receivable in respect of reverse repurchase transactions. The difference between
purchase and resale price is treated as income from reverse repurchase transactions and accrued
over the life of the reverse-repo agreement on a time proportionate basis.

Transactions of sale under repurchase (repo) of marketable and Government securities are
entered into at contracted rates for specified periods of time. Securities sold with a
simultaneous commitment to repurchase at a specified future date (repos) continue to be
recognised in the statement of assets and liabilities and are measured in accordance with
accounting policies for investment securities. The counterparty liabilities for amounts received
under these transactions are recorded as liabilities. The difference between sale and repurchase
price is treated as borrowing charges and accrued over the life of the repo agreement on a time
proportionate basis.

Taxation

The income of the Fund is exempt from income tax under clause 99 of Part I of the Second
Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 subject to the condition that not less than ninety
percent of its accounting income for the year, as reduced by capital gains, whether realised or
unrealised, is distributed to the unit holders.
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4.11

4.12

The Fund is also exempt from the Provisions of Section 113 (minimum tax) under clause 11A
of Part IV of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

The Fund provides for deferred taxation using the balance sheet liability method on all major
temporary differences between the amounts used for financial reporting purposes and the
amounts used for taxation purposes. In addition, the Fund also records deferred tax asset on
unutilised tax losses to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be
realised. However, the Fund has not recognised any amount in respect of deferred tax in these
financial statements as the Fund intends to continue availing the tax exemption in future years
by distributing at least ninety percent of its accounting income for the year as reduced by
capital gains, whether realised or unrealised, to its unit holders.

Proposed distributions

Distributions declared subsequent to the year end reporting date are considered as non-
adjusting events and are recognised in the financial statements in the year in which such
distributions are declared.

Issuance and redemption of units

Units are allocated at the offer price prevalent on the day on which funds for purchase of units
are realised. The offer price represents the net asset value per unit at the end of the preceding
day. Issue of units is also recorded on realisation of funds.

Units redeemed are recorded at the redemption price, applicable to units for which the Fund
receives redemption applications during business hours of that day. The redemption price
represents the net asset value per unit at the end of the preceding day. Redemption of units is
recorded on acceptance of application for redemption.

Element of income / (loss) and capital gains / (losses) included in prices of units issued
less those in units redeemed

The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan through its SRO 756(1)/2017 dated
August 3, 2017 has made certain amendments in the NBFC Regulations. The notification
includes a definition and explanation relating to "element of income" and excludes the element
of income from the expression "accounting income" as described in Regulation 63 (amount
distributable to unit holders) of the NBFC Regulations. As per the notification, element of
income represents the difference between net assets value per unit on the issuance or
redemption date, as the case may be, of units and the net assets value per unit at the beginning
of the relevant accounting period. Further, the revised regulations also specify that element of
income is a transaction of capital nature and the receipt and payment of element of income
shall be taken to unit holders' fund.
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However, to maintain the same ex-dividend net asset value of all units outstanding on the
accounting date, net element of income contributed on issue of units lying in unit holders fund
will be refunded on units in the same proportion as dividend bears to accounting income
available for distribution. Furthermore, the revised regulations also require certain additional
disclosures with respect to 'Income Statement' and 'Statement of Movement in Unit Holders'
Fund', whereas disclosure with respect to 'Distribution Statement' has been deleted in the
revised regulations.

Previously, an equalisation account called the 'element of income / (loss) and capital gains /
(losses) included in prices of units issued less those in units redeemed' was created, in order to
prevent the dilution of per unit income and distribution of income already paid out on
redemption. The net element of income / (loss) and capital gains / (losses) relating to units
issued and redeemed during the accounting period which pertained to unrealised appreciation /
(diminution) held in the Unit Holder's Fund was recorded in a separate account and any
amount remaining in this reserve account at the end of the accounting period (whether gain or
loss) was included in the amount available for distribution to the unitholders. The remaining
portion of the net element of income / (loss) and capital gains / (losses) relating to units issued
and redeemed during an accounting period was recognised in the Income Statement.

As required by IAS 8: 'Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors', a
change in accounting policy requires retrospective application as if that policy had always been
applied. However, since there are practical impediments attached to retrospective application of
change in accounting policy and retrospective restatement, therefore, the Management
Company has applied the above changes in accounting policy, including the additional
disclosures requirements in the 'Income Statement' and 'Statement of Movement in Unit
Holders' Fund', prospectively from July 1, 2017. Further, MUFAP has clarified that the
amendment is applicable for accounting period beginning on July 01, 2017. Accordingly,
corresponding figures have not been restated. The ,Distribution Statement™ for the comparative
period has not been presented as it has been deleted as a result of the amendments made in the
NBFC Regulations vide the aforementioned SRO issued by the SECP.

Had the element of loss been recognised as per the previous accounting policy, the income of
the Fund would have been lower by Rs 38.978 million. However, the change in accounting
policy does not have any impact on the 'Cash flow Statement', the 'net assets attributable to the
unit holders' and 'net asset value per unit' as shown in the 'Statement of Assets and Liabilities'
and 'Statement of Movement in Unit Holders' Fund'. The change has resulted in inclusion of
certain additional disclosures / new presentation requirements in the 'Income Statement' and
'Statement of Movement in Unit Holders' Fund which have been incorporated in these financial
statements.

Net assets value per unit

The Net Assets Value (NAV) per unit, as disclosed in the statement of assets and liabilities, is
calculated by dividing the net assets of the Fund by the number of units in issue at the year end.



4.14

4.15

4.16

5.1

Revenue recognition

- Gains / (losses) arising on sale of investments is accounted for in the year in which it
arises.

- Unrealised (loss) / gain on revaluation of investments classified as financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss is included in the income statement in the year in
which it arises.

- Unrealised (loss) / gain on revaluation of investments classified as ,available-for-
sale”is included in the unit holders' fund through other comprehensive income in the
year in which it arises.

- Income on reverse repurchase lending arrangements, certificates of investment,
placements, Government securities and investments in debt securities is recognised
at rate of return implicit in the instrument / arrangement on a time proportionate
basis.

- Profit on bank balances and term deposits is recorded on accrual basis.

Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the date of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the year end exchange rates are recognised in
the income statement.

Transactions with related parties / connected persons

Transactions with related parties / connected persons are based at arm's length at normal
commercial rates on the same terms and conditions as applicable to third party transactions.

Remuneration to the Management Company and the Trustee is determined in accordance with
the provisions of NBFC Regulations and the Trust Deed respectively.

2018 2017
Note - (Rupees in '000) -------
BANK BALANCES
Cash at bank
In savings accounts 5.1 1,645,436 1,141,088

Profit rates on these savings accounts range from 3.75% to 7.4% per annum (June 30, 2017:
3.75% to 6.6% per annum). This includes an amount held by a related party (United Bank
Limited) amounting to Rs. 2.459 million (June 30, 2017: Rs. 35.075 million) on which return
is earned at 4% (June 30, 2017: 3.75%) per annum.



As per clause 4.2 of Investment Policy mentioned in the offering document of the Fund, Cash
at bank (excluding TDR) and other near cash instruments like T-bills with maturity not
exceeding 90 days should not exceed 30% of the net assets of the Fund. However, such
percentage was 208.6% as on June 30, 2018. Subsequent to the year end, the Fund has
introduced seventh supplement to its Offering Document in which the requirement to maintain
cash at bank balance (excluding TDR) and other near cash instruments with maturity not
exceeding 90 days shall be calculated on monthly average basis at the end of each month and
any breach in the same shall be regularized within one month of the breach.

2018 2017
Note - (Rupees in '000) -----—-

INVESTMENTS

Government securities designated at fair value through profit or loss

Pakistan Investment Bonds 6.1&6.2 - 122,650
Market Treasury Bills 6.1 &6.3 2,270,973 1,542,271
GOP Ijarah Sukuk 6.1 6,380 644,288

2,277,353 2,309,209

Government Securities designated at fair value through profit or loss

At the beginning Acquiredduring Sold/ matured At the end of the Market value as at Market value as Percentage of

Name of security of the year the year during year year June 30,2018  at June 30,2017 investment
Note S — —— No. of holdings --———-——————  —————— (Rupees in '000) -——
Pakistan Inves tment Bonds
PIB-3 Years 62& 64 - 1,500 1,500 - - - 0.00%
PIB-5 Years 62& 64 - 11,020 11,020 - - - 0.00%
PIB- 10 Years 62& 6.4 1,000 4,000 5,000 - - 122,650 0.00%
Market Treasury
Bills
T-bill 3 months 63& 64 15,600 261,830 254,650 22,780 2,270,973 1,542,271 99.72%
T-bill 6 months 63& 64 - 4,700 4,700 - - - 0.00%
T-bill 1 year 6.3 & 6.4 - - - - - 0.00%
GOP Jjarah Sukuk 6.5
3 Year 6,400 - 6,335 65 6,380 644,288 0.28%
23,000 283,050 283,205 22,845 2,277,353 2,309,209 100.00%

As at June 30, 2018, face value of investment in Pakistan Investment Bonds (PIBs) was Nil
(June 30, 2017: Rs. 100 million).

As at June 30, 2018, Market Treasury Bills (T-bills) had a face value of Rs. 2,278 million
(June 30, 2017: Rs. 1,560 million) carrying purchase yield ranging from 6.26% to 6.55% per
annum.
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6.5

6.6

7.1

9

These T-bills have nominal value of Rs.100,000 each.

As at June 30, 2018 GOP [jarah Sukuk had a face value of Rs. 6.5 million carrying profit at the
rate of 5.24%.

Unrealised (loss) / gain on revaluation of investments classified as 'at fair value through profit
or loss' - net

2018 2017
Note ———-- (Rupees in '000) ----—--—-

Market value of investments 2,277,353 2,309,209
Less: Cost / amortized cost of investments (2,277,747) (2,304,162)

(394) 5,047

TERM DEPOSIT RECEIPTS

Opening balance - 150,000
Acquired during the year 470,000 150,000
Matured during the year (285,000) (300,000)
Closing balance 7.1 185,000 -

This term deposit receipt carries interest at the rate of 7.35% per annum and will mature on
July 20, 2018.

MARK UP / INTEREST RECEIVABLE

Markup / interest receivable on:

Savings accounts 4,731 3,193
Term deposit receipts 410 -
Pakistan Investment Bonds - 5,425
GOP Ijarah Sukuk 1 91
5,142 8,709

PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Prepaid credit rating fees 64 64
Receivable against issuance of units 2,027 11,120
Receivable against sale of investments - 54
Other receivable 2,245

4,336 11,238
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11.2

12

12.1

ADVANCE TAX

The income of the Fund is exempt from tax under clause 99 of Part I of the Second Schedule of
the Income Tax Ordinance 2001 (ITO 2001). Further, the Fund is exempt under clause 47(B)
of Part IV of Second Schedule of ITO 2001 from withholding of tax under section 150, 150A,
151 and 233 of ITO 2001. The Federal Board of Revenue through a circular “C.No.1 (43) DG
(WHT)/ 2008-Vol.II- 66417-R” dated May 12, 2015, made it mandatory to obtain exemption
certificates under section 159 (1) of the ITO 2001 from Commissioner Inland Revenue (CIR).
During the year, prior to receiving tax exemption certificate(s) from CIR various withholding
agents have deducted advance tax under section 151 of ITO 2001. The management is
confident that the same shall be refunded after filing Income Tax Return for Tax Year 2018.

2018 2017
Note ~ - (Rupees in '000) -----—-
PAYABLE TO UBL FUND MANAGERS LIMITED
- MANAGEMENT COMPANY
Remuneration payable 121 &
(including Sindh Sales tax) 12.2 1,822 3,648
Conversion charges payable 145 136
Allocated expenses payable 19 328 688
Sales load payable 165 219
Other payable 17 -
2,477 4,691

As per NBFC Regulations, the Management Company is entitled to remuneration of an amount
not exceeding 1.5% of average annual net assets of the Fund. The Management Company has
charged remuneration at the rate of 10% of the gross earnings of the Fund calculated on a daily
basis with a floor and cap of 1% and 1.25% on average daily net assets respectively.

Sindh Sales Tax has been levied at 13% on the management fee charged during the year.

PAYABLE TO CENTRAL DEPOSITORY
COMPANY OF PAKISTAN LIMITED - TRUSTEE

Trustee fee payable 13.1 206 341

The Trustee is entitled to a monthly remuneration for the services rendered to the Fund under
the provisions of the Trust Deed and Offering Document as per the tariff structure specified
therein, based on the daily net asset value of the Fund. The remuneration is paid to the Trustee
monthly in arrears.
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14

As per the Trust Deed and Offering Document, the tariff structure applicable to the Fund in
respect of the Trustee fee during the year ended June 30, 2018 is as follows:

Up to Rs. 1,000 million 0.15% p.a. of NAV

Rs. 1,000 million to Rs. 10,000 Rs. 1.5 million plus 0.075% p.a. of NAV exceeding Rs.

million 1,000 million

Exceeding Rs. 10,000 million Rs. 8.25 million plus 0.06% p.a. of NAV exceeding Rs.
10,000 million

The Provincial Government of Sindh has levied Sindh Sales Tax at the rate of 13% on the
Trustee fee through the Sindh Sales Tax on Services Act, 2011.

2018 2017
Note ~ -———-- (Rupees in '000) -------
PAYABLE TO THE SECURITIES AND
EXCHANGE COMMISSION OF PAKISTAN
Annual fee payable 14.1 2,045 7,926

Under the provisions of the NBFC Regulations, a collective investment scheme classified as
income scheme is required to pay as annual fee to the SECP, an amount equal to 0.075% of the
average annual net assets of the Fund.

ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER LIABILITIES

Payable against purchase of investments 2,163,787 -

Provision for indirect duties and taxes 14.1 52,558 52,558
Provision for Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund  14.2 17,014 14,546
Payable against redemption of units 5,530 -

Zakat deducted at source payable 796 1,900
Capital gains tax payable 467 25,045
Auditors' remuneration payable 290 281
Brokerage expense payable 167 2,568
Sales load payable to UBL 1 131
Payable against legal expenses & professional fees 11 -

Withholding tax payable - 22,510
Other payables - 69
Sindh sales tax payable - 4

2,240,621 119,612
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As per the requirements of the Finance Act 2013, Federal Excise Duty (FED) at the rate of
16% on the remuneration of the Management Company was applied with effect from June 13,
2013. The Management Company is of the view that since the remuneration is already subject
to the provincial sales tax, further levy of FED results in double taxation, which does not
appear to be the spirit of the law. The matter was collectively taken up by the Management
Company jointly with other Asset Management Companies and Trustees of respective
Collective Investment Schemes (CISs), through a Constitutional Petition filed in the Honorable
Sindh High Court (SHC) during September 2013. In this respect, the SHC had issued a stay
order against the recovery of FED due to which the Fund has not made any payments for FED
upto June 30, 2016.

On June 30, 2016, the Honorable Sindh High Court of Pakistan had passed a Judgment that
after 18th amendment in the Constitution of Pakistan, the Provinces alone have the legislative
power to levy a tax on rendering or providing services, therefore, chargeability and collection
of FED after July 01, 2011 is ultra vires to the Constitution of Pakistan. On September 23,
2016, the Federal Board of Revenue (FBR) filed an appeal in the Supreme Court of Pakistan
(SCP) against above judgement, which is pending adjudication. Management Company, as a
matter of abundant caution, has maintained full provision for FED aggregating to Rs.52.558
million until the matter is resolved. Had the provision not been made, the net asset value per
unit of the Fund as at June 30, 2018 would have been higher by Rs. 2.846 per unit (June 30,
2017: Rs. 1.667) per unit.

Through Finance Act, 2017, FED on services rendered by Non-Banking Financial Institutions
(NBFIs) including Asset Management Companies, which are already subject to provincial sales
tax, has been withdrawn. Therefore, provision for FED has not been recorded in these financial
statements.

Provision For Workers' Welfare Fund

The Finance Act, 2008 introduced an amendment to the Workers' Welfare Fund Ordinance,
1971 (WWF Ordinance) as a result of which it was construed that all Collective Investment
Schemes / Mutual Funds (CISs) whose income exceeded Rs. 500,000 in a tax year were
brought within the scope of the WWF Ordinance, thus rendering them liable to pay
contribution to WWF at the rate of two percent of their accounting or taxable income,
whichever was higher.

The amendments introduced in the WWF Ordinance were challenged in various High Courts of
Pakistan. The Honorable Lahore High Court (LHC) and the Honorable Sindh High Court
(SHC) arrived at different conclusions in respect of the validity of the amendments made
through the Finance Act in relation to the WWF. Both the decisions of the LHC and the SHC
were challenged in the Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan (SCP).



During the year, the Honorable SCP passed a judgment on November 10, 2016, declaring the
insertion of amendments introduced through Finance Act, 2008 pertaining to WWF as
unlawful for the reason that the WWF is not in the nature of tax and therefore, could not be
introduced through money bill under the Constitution. Subsequently, the Federal Board of
Revenue (FBR) has filed a review petition in the Honorable SCP against the said judgment,
which is pending adjudication.

Further, as a consequence of the 18th amendment to the Constitution, levy for the WWF was
also introduced by the Government of Sindh through the Sindh Workers Welfare Fund
(SWWF) Act 2014. SWWF Act 2014, enacted on May 21, 2015, requires every Industrial
Establishment located in the province of Sindh and having total income of Rs. 500,000 or more
in any year of account commencing on or after the date of closing of account on or after
December 31, 2013, to pay two percent of so much of its total income declared to SWWF. The
said Act includes any concern engaged in the Banking or Financial Institution in the definition
of “Industrial Undertaking” but does not define Financial Institution. The Management
Company, based on an opinion obtained by the Mutual Funds Association of Pakistan
(MUFAP), believes that Mutual Funds are not liable to pay SWWF under the said law, for the
reason that the Mutual Funds are not financial institutions and rather an investment vehicle.
However, the Sindh Revenue Board has not accepted the said position of MUFAP and as a
result, MUFAP has taken up this matter with the Sindh Finance Ministry for resolution.

In view of the above developments regarding the applicability of WWF and SWWF on Mutual
Funds, the MUFAP obtained a legal opinion on these matters and based on such legal advice,
has recommended to all its members on January 12, 2017 the following:

1) The provision against the WWF held by the Mutual Funds till June 30, 2015 should
be reversed on January 12, 2017; and

1) Provision against SWWF, on prudent basis, should be made from the date of
enactment of the SWWF Act, 2014 (i.e. May 21, 2015) with effect from January 12,
2017.

The above decisions were communicated to SECP and the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited
on January 12, 2017. In response to the aforementioned letter SECP vide its letter dated
February 1, 2017 advised MUFAP that the adjustments relating to the above should be made
prospectively and adequate disclosure shall be made in the financial statements of Mutual
Funds. Accordingly, the Fund has recorded these adjustments in its books of account on
January 12, 2017.

Had the provision against SWWF not been made, the net assets value per unit would have been
higher by Re. 1.002 per unit.
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CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

There were no contingencies and commitments outstanding as at June 30, 2018.

NUMBER OF UNITS IN ISSUE

Total units in issue at the beginning of the year
Add: Units issued

Less: Units redeemed

Total units in issue at the end of the year

FINANCIAL INCOME

Markup / interest income on:
Bank balances
Term deposit receipts
Pakistan Investment Bonds
Market Treasury Bills
GOP Ijarah Sukuks

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

Annual audit fee

Fee for review of half yearly financial statements
Fee for review of compliance with the requirements
of the Code of Corporate Governance

Fee for other certifications / services

Out of pocket expense and sales tax

ALLOCATED EXPENSES

2018

2017

31,622,643 132,500,304
14,557,840 101,603,547
(29,203,433) (202,481,208)
16,977,050 31,622,643

36,807 72,144
5,079 8,166
1,686 197,718

119,301 328,610
7,851 33,635
170,724 640,273
179 187

96 100

48 46

41 48

84 60

448 441

As per regulation 60(3)(s) of NBFC Regulations, fee and expenses pertaining to registrar
services, accounting, operation and valuation services related to a Collective Investment
Scheme (CIS) are chargeable to the scheme, maximum up to 0.1% of the average annual net
assets or the actual cost whichever is lower. Accordingly, the Management Company has
charged 0.1% of the average annual net assets being the lower.
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TAXATION

The Fund's income is exempt from Income Tax as per clause (99) of Part I of the Second
Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 subject to the condition that not less than 90% of
the accounting income for the year as reduced by capital gains whether realised or unrealised is
distributed to the unit holders in cash. The Fund is also exempt from the provisions of section
113 (minimum tax) under clause 11A of Part IV of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001. The Management Company intends to distribute by way of cash dividend of
at least 90% of the Fund's net accounting income to its unit holders, accordingly, no provision
for taxation has been recognized in these financial statements.

EARNINGS PER UNIT

Earnings per unit has not been disclosed as in the opinion of the Management Company,
determination of the cumulative weighted average number of outstanding units is not
practicable.

TOTAL EXPENSE RATIO

As per Directive 23 of 2016 dated July 20, 2016 issued by SECP, the Total Expense Ratio of
the Fund is 1.58% as on June 30, 2018 and this includes 0.31% representing Government levy,
Sindh Workers Welfare Fund and SECP fee.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

As at June 30, 2018, the financial assets carried on the statement of assets and liabilities are
categorised either as 'loans and receivables' or 'at fair value through profit or loss'. The
financial liabilities carried on the statement of assets and liabilities are categorised as other
financial liabilities i.e. liabilities other than 'at fair value through profit or loss'.



As at June 30,2018

Financial assets

Particulars Loans and 'at fair value Total
receivables through profit or
loss'
------------------- —— Rupees in '000 —-——————-—————m—
Financial assets
Bank balances 1,645,436 - 1,645,436
Investments - 2,277,353 2,277,353
Term deposit receipts 185,000 - 185,000
Other receivables 4272 - 4272
Mark up / interest receivable 5,142 - 5,142
1,839,850 2,277,353 4,117,203
As at June 30,2018
Financial
Particulars liabilities 'at fair [ Other financial Total
value through liabilities
profit or loss'
------------------ —- Rupees in '000 -—--—————-——————
Financial liabilities
Payable to UBL Fund Managers Limited - Management Company - 2,267 2,267
Payable to Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee - 182 182
Accrued expenses and other liabilities - 2,169,786 2,169,786
- 2,172,235 2,172,235
As at June 30,2017
Financial assets
Particulars Loans and 'at fair value Total
receivables through profit or
loss'
Rupees in '000 —-—-————-—
Financial assets
Bank balances 1,141,088 1,141,088
Investments - 2,309,209 2,309,209
Term deposit receipts - - -
Other receivables 11,174 11,174
Mark up / interest receivable 8,709 - 8,709
1,160,971 2,309,209 3,470,180
As at June 30,2017
Financial
Particulars liabilities 'at fair | Other financial Total
value through liabilities
profit or loss'
------------------ —- Rupees in '000 -—---———————ure—
Financial liabilities
Payable to UBL Fund Managers Limited - Management Company - 3,127 3,127
Payable to the Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee - 341 341
Accrued expenses and other liabilities - 3,051 3,051
- 6,519 6,519
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TOP TEN BROKERS / DEALERS BY PERCENTAGE OF THE COMMISSION
CHARGE
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Bright Capital (Private) Limited

BIPL Securities Limited

Continental Exchange (Private) Limited
Invest One Markets Limited

Currency Market Associates (Private) Limited
JS Global Capital Limited

Paramount Capital (Private) Limited

Next Capital Limited

Vector Capital (Private) Limited

Invest Capital Markets Limited

Invest Capital Markets Limited

JS Global Capital Limited

Vector Capital (Private) Limited

Invest One Markets Limited

C&M Management (Private) Limited
Paramount Capital (Private) Limited
Bright Capital (Private) Limited

EFG Hermes Pakistan Limited

Elixir Securities Pakistan (Private) Limited
BIPL Securities Limited

June 30, 2018
(Percentage)

34.36%
8.34%
7.53%
7.45%
7.07%
7.06%
4.60%
4.38%
4.11%
4.02%

88.92%

June 30, 2017
(Percentage)

17.60%
15.11%
11.47%
7.94%
7.58%
7.21%
6.14%
5.96%
5.92%
5.84%

90.8%

BRIEF PARTICULARS OF THE INVESTMENT COMMITTEE AND THE FUND
MANAGER

Details of the members of the Investment Committee of the Fund are as follows:

Experience in

| S. No. |Name Designation Qualification
years
1 Yasir Qadri Chief Executive Officer 22.1 MBA
2 Syed Suleman Akhtar Chief Investment Officer 16.85 MBA, CFA
3 Farhan Bashir Head of Research 11.6 MBA
4 Usama Bin Razi Fund Manager 14.57 MBA
5 Hadi Hassan Muki Acting Head of Risk & Compliance * 18 B.Com

* Head of Risk - non voting observer



Usama Bin Razi is the Fund Manager of the Fund. He is also the Fund Manager of UBL
Liquidity Plus Fund, UBL Growth and Income Fund, UBL Asset Allocation Fund, UBL
Capital Protected Fund III, UBL Retirement Savings Fund, Al-Ameen Islamic Aggressive
Income Fund and Al-Ameen Islamic Asset Allocation Fund.

PATTERN OF UNIT HOLDING
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————————————————————— June 30,2018

Category . . .
Number of unit holders | Number of units held | Percentage of units held
Associated Company and Key Executives 1 963 0.01%
Individuals 2,798 13,313,171 78.42%
Others 13 1,749,730 10.31%
Public limited companies 1 0.32 0.00%
Retirement funds 17 1,913,186 11.27%
2,830 16,977,050 100.00%

June 30,201 7-——————em——

Category N N N
Number of unit holders | Number of units held | Percentage of units held
Individuals 3,036 20,245,395 64.02%
Associated Companies and Directors 2 2,459,814 7.78%
Retirement Funds 22 2,582,580 8.17%
Public Limited Companies 13 5,368,237 16.98%
Others 10 966,617 3.06%
3,083 31,622,643 100.00%

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES / CONNECTED PERSONS

Connected persons / related parties comprise of United Bank Limited (Holding Company of
Management Company), UBL Fund Managers Limited (Management Company), Al-Ameen
Islamic Financial Services (Private) Limited (Subsidiary of the Management Company),
entities under common management or directorships, Central Depository Company of Pakistan
Limited (Trustee) and the Directors and Officers of Management Company.

Remuneration to the Management Company and the Trustee is determined in accordance with
the provisions of NBFC Regulations and the Trust Deed respectively. Other transactions with
the related parties / connected persons have been carried out at agreed / commercial terms.



Details of transaction with the related parties and balances with them at the year end are as
follows:

. Other
Management Associated Funds under Dircctors Connected
Company Companies Trustee Common and Key persons /
Management Executives .
related parties
(Rupees in '000)
Transactions during the year
ended June 30,2018
Profit on savings accounts - 509 - - - -
Bank charges - 115 - - - -
Units issued - - - - 7 460,795
Units redeemed 265,447 - - - 8 42,108
Sales load paid 943 580 - - - -
Purchase of securities - 246,600 - 2,884,958 - -
Sale of securities - - - 99,884 - -
Remuneration (including Sindh sales tax) 30,884 - 3,158 - - -
Allocated expenses 2,726 - - - - -
Listing fee - - - - - 25
Transactions during the year
ended June 30,2017
Profit on savings accounts - 8,875 - - - -
Bank charges - 55 - - - -
Units issued 28,818 119,714 - - 8,793 17,053
Units redeemed - 3,048,380 - - 23,618 -
Sales load paid 3,908 - - - - -
Conversion charges paid 64 - - - - -
Dividend paid 11,757 - - 5 19,009
Purchase of securities - 1,378,962 - 4,943,883 - -
Sale of securities - - - 911,772 - -
Remuneration (including Sindh sales tax) 121,215 - 9,422 - - -
Allocated expenses 10,573 - - - - -
Balances held as at June 30,2018
Units held (in Units '000) - - - - 1 3,997
Units held (in Rupees '000) - - - - 106 441,872
Bank balances * - 2,459 - - - -
Remuneration payable 1,822 - 206 - - -
Sales load payable 165 1 - - - -
Conversion charges payable 145 - - - - -
Allocated expenses payable 328 - - - - -
Other payables 17 - - - - -
Profit receivable - 18 - - - -
Balances held as at June 30, 2017
Units held (in Units '000) 2,459 - - - 1 3,990
Units held (in Rupees '000) 259,641 - - - 102 421,276
Bank balances * - 35,075 - - - -
Remuneration payable 3,648 - 341 - - -
Sales load payable 219 131 - - - -
Conversion charges payable 136 - - - - -
Allocated expenses payable 688 - - - - -

* These carry profit ranging from 3.75% to 7.4% per annum (2017: 3.75% to 6.6% per annum) .
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29.1

ATTENDANCE AT THE MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
MANAGEMENT COMPANY

During the year, seven meetings of the Board of Directors of the Management Company were
held. The details of the attendance are as under:

Particulars August 23, Septzesn:ber October 27, | December February April 26, May 02, m:-:ttianlgs
2017 2017 2017 06,2017 16,2018 2018 2018 attended

Name of Directors:
Tariq Kirmani ** v v N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 2
Azhar Hamid * N/A N/A v v v v v 5
Yasir Qadri v v v v v v v 7
NazKhan * N/A N/A v v v v v 5
Shabbir Hussain Hashmi ** v v N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 2
Sharjeel Shahid * N/A N/A v v x v x 3
Zia Tjaz v v v v x v x 5
Syed Furrukh Zaecem v v v v v v v 7
Mirza Muhammad Sadeed Hassan Barlas ** v v v v x v v 6

Name of Key Executives
Fawaz Taj Siddiqui **** v v v v v N/A N/A 5
Umair Ahmed v v v v v v v 7
S.M. Aly Osman **%** N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A v v 2

* Elected at EOGM held on September 29, 2017

** Independent Director's have completed three consecutive term

*** Mr. Zulfigar Alaviresigned on August 07, 2017.

**%% Mr. Fawaz Taj Siddiqui resigned and appointment of Mr. S.M. Aly Osman effective from April 2, 2018 as Company Secretary

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Fund‘s objective in managing risks is the creation and protection of Unit holders* value.
Risk is inherent in the Funds activities, but it is managed through monitoring and controlling
activities which are primarily set up to be performed based on limits established by the
Management Company, the Fund's constitutive documents and the regulations and the
directives issued by the SECP. These limits reflect the business strategy and market
environment of the Fund as well as the level of the risk that the Fund is willing to accept. The
Board of Directors of the Management Company supervises the overall risk management
approach within the Fund. The Fund is exposed to market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk
arising from the financial instruments it holds.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or the future cash flows of a financial instrument may
fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices.

The Management Company manages the market risk through diversification of the investment
portfolio and by following the internal guidelines established by the Investment Committee and
the regulations laid down by the SECP.

Market risk comprises of three types of risk: currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk.
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29.1.2

b)

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Fund does not have any financial
instruments in foreign currencies and hence is not exposed to such risk.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate as a result of changes in market interest rates. As of June 30, 2018, the Fund is
exposed to such risk on its balances held with banks and Government securities. The
Investment Committee of the Fund reviews the portfolio of the Fund on a regular basis to
ensure that the risk is managed within the acceptable limits.

Sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

The Fund is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk for balances in certain savings accounts and
term deposit receipts, the interest rates on which range between 3.75% to 7.40% per annum
and 7.35% per annum respectively.

In case of 100 basis points increase / decrease in interest rates on June 30, 2018, with all other
variables held constant, the net income for the year and the net assets would have been higher /
lower by Rs. 18.30 million (2017: Rs. 11.41 million).

Sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

Fixed rate instruments held as at June 30, 2018 include Market Treasury Bills and Ijarah
Sukuks. The Fund's income from these investments is substantially independent of changes in
market interest rates, except for changes if any as a result of fluctuation in respective fair
values.

In case of 100 basis points increase in rates announced by the Financial Market Association on
June 30, 2018, with all other variables held constant, the net income for the year and the net
assets would be lower by Rs. 22.77 million (2017: Rs. 23.92 million). In case of 100 basis
points decrease in rates announced by the Financial Market Association on June 30, 2018, with
all other variables held constant, the net income for the year and the net assets would be higher
by Rs. 22.77 million (2017: Rs. 23.92 million).

The composition of the aforementioned Fund's investment portfolio and rates announced by the
Financial Market Association are expected to change over time. Therefore, the sensitivity
analysis is not necessarily indicative of the effect on the Fund's net assets due to future
movements in interest rates.
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Yield / interest rate sensitivity position for on balance sheet financial instruments is based on
the earlier of contractual repricing or maturity date and for off-balance sheet instruments is

based on the settlement date.

June 30,2018
Exposed to interest rate risk
. . . More than Not exposed to
Particulars Effectlve vield/ Total Upto three three months More than interest rate
interest rate .
months and upto one one year risk
year
Y mmm———————————————————— (Rupees in '000)-——-—-———-———-
On-balance sheet financial instruments
Financial assets
Bank balances 3.75-74 1,645,436 1,645,436 - -
Investments 6.63-6.75 2,277,353 2,270,973 - 6,380
Term deposit receipts 7.35 185,000 185,000
Mark-up / interest receivable 5,142 - - - 5,142
Other receivables 4,272 4,272
Sub total 4,117,203 4,101,409 - 6,380 9,414
Financial liabilities
Payable to UBL Fund Managers Limited - Management Company 2,267 - - 2,267
Payable to Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee 182 - - 182
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 2,169,786 - - 2,169,786
Sub total 2,172,235 - - - 2,172,235
On-balance sheet gap (a) 1,944,968 4,101,409 - 6,380 (2,162,821)
Off-balance sheet financial ins trument - - - - -
Off-balance sheet gap (b) - - - - -
Total interest rate sensitivity gap (a) + (b) 1,944,968 4,101,409 - 6,3_80 (2,162,821)
Cumulative interest rate sensitivity gap 4,101,409 - 6,380
June 30,2017
Exposed to interest rate risk
. N . More than Not exposed to
Particulars Effective yield/ Total Upto three | three months More than interest rate
interest rate i
months and upto one one year risk
year
% e e (Rupees in '000)-——--——--mmm. —
On-balance sheet financial instruments
Financial assets
Bank balances 4.0-6.7 1,141,088 1,141,088 -
Investments 6.08-6.35 2,309,209 1,542,271 766,938 -
Mark-up / interest receivable 8,709 - - - 8,709
Other receivables 11,174 - - - 11,174
Sub total 3,470,180 2,683,359 - 766,938 19,883
Financial liabilities
Payable to UBL Fund Managers Limited - Management Company 4,691 4,691
Payable to Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee 341 341
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 3,051 3,051
Sub total 8,083 - - - 8,083
On-balance sheet gap (a) 3,462,097 2,683,359 - 766,938 11,800
Off-balance sheet financial instrument - - - - -
Off-balance sheet gap (b) - - - - -
Total interest rate sensitivity gap (a) + (b) 3,462,097 2,683,359 - 766,938 11,800
Cumulative interest rate sensitivity gap 2,683,359 - 766,938

Price risk

Price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or
currency risk) whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial
instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the
market. The Fund is not exposed to the risk as its constitutive documents prohibit it from

investing in equity securities.
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Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Fund will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations arising
from its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset, or that
such obligations will have to be settled in a manner disadvantageous to the Fund.

The Fund is exposed to non-payment of redemptions request on a regular basis. Units are
redeemable at the holder's option based on the Fund‘s net asset value per unit at the time of

redemption calculated in accordance with the Fund®s constitutive document and guidelines laid
down by the SECP.

Management of liquidity risk

The Fund's policy is to manage this risk by investing majority of its assets in investments that
are traded in an active market and can be readily disposed of.

The Fund can borrow, with the prior approval of the Trustee, for meeting redemption requests.
The maximum amount available to the Fund from borrowings is limited to the extent of 15% of
total assets at the time of borrowing with repayment within 90 days of such borrowings. No
such borrowings were made during the year.

In order to manage the Fund's overall liquidity, the Fund also has the option to withhold daily
redemption requests in excess of ten percent of the units in issue and such requests would be
treated as redemption requests qualifying for being processed on the next business day. Such
procedure would continue until the outstanding redemption requests come down to a level
below ten percent of the units then in issue. Further the Fund also has the ability to suspend
redemptions of units with the approval of Board of Directors of the Management Company in
extraordinary circumstances. An interval of six working days between the receipt of a
redemption request and issuance of against it to the holder provides a cushion in the repayment
of on-demand redemption of units. However, during the year no such option was exercised or
considered necessary.

The following table analyses the Fund's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings
based on the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date. The
amounts in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

June 30,2018

Particulars More than three

Upto three months |[months and upto one Over one year Total
year
—————ee . — Rupees in ‘000 ———-——-—oo
Financial liabilities
Payable to UBL Fund Managers Limited - Management Company 2,267 - - 2,267
Payable to Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee 182 - - 182
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 2,169,786 - - 2,169,786

Total liabilities 2,172,235 - - 2,172,235
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June 30,2017

More than three
Upto three months |months and upto one Over one year Total
year

Particulars

—_— — Rupees in ‘000 ——FmF————————-

Financial liabilities

Payable to UBL Fund Managers Limited - Management Company 4,691 - - 4,691
Payable to Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee 341 - - 341
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 3,051 - - 3,051
Total liabilities 8,083 - - 8,083
. .
Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss
to the Fund by failing to discharge its obligation. The Funds policy is to enter into financial
contracts with reputable counter parties in accordance with the internal guidelines, offering
document and regulatory requirements.

Management of credit risk

The Fund's policy is to enter into financial contracts in accordance with the investment
guidelines approved by the Investment Committee, its Trust Deed and the requirements of the
NBFC rules, the NBFC regulations and guidelines given by the SECP from time to time.

The maximum exposure to credit risk before any credit enhancement as at June 30, 2018 is the
carrying amount of the financial assets. None of these assets are 'impaired' nor 'past due but not
impaired'. Investment in Government securities, however, are not exposed to credit risk as they
are guaranteed by the Government of Pakistan.

The analysis below summarises the credit rating quality of the Fund's financial assets as at June
30,2018:

Balances with banks by rating category

Balances held by the Latest available
Name of the bank Rating agency Fund as at June 30, | published rating as at
2018 July 16,2018

Rupees in '000

Allied Bank Limited PACRA 250 AAA
Bank Alfalah Limited PACRA 3,015 AA+
Habib Metro Bank Limited PACRA 35 AA+
United Bank Limited JCR-VIS 2,459 AAA
Habib Bank Ltd- Islamic Banking JCR-VIS 4 AAA
Faysal Bank Limited PACRA 129 AA

Askari Bank Limited PACRA 6 AA+

Meezan Bank Limited JCR-VIS 6 AA+



Name of the bank

Rating agency

Balances held by the
Fund as at June 30,
2018

Latest available
published rating as at
July 16,2018

Faysal Bank Limited

NIB Bank Limited

JS Bank Limited

MCB Islamic Bank Limited
Habib Bank Limited

Sindh Bank Limited

Samba Bank Limited
National Bank of Pakistan
Zarai Taraqiati Bank Limited

JCR-VIS
PACRA
PACRA
PACRA
JCR-VIS
JCR-VIS
JCR-VIS
PACRA
PACRA

Rupees in '000

29.3.2 The analysis below summarizes the credit quality of the Fund‘s credit exposure:
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Rating by rating category

A
AAA
AA+
AA-
AA
A+

Concentration on credit risk

114 AA
556 AA
364,633 AA-
873 A
1,036,817 AAA
54 AA
236,079 AA
338 AAA
68 AAA
1,645,436
2018 2017
---------- (Percentage) ----------
6 -
35 25
24 25
6 -
29 44
- 6
100 100

Concentration of risk arises when a number of financial instruments or contracts are entered
into the same counterparty, or where a number of counterparties are engaged in similar
business activities, or activities in the same geographic region, or have similar economic
features that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected

by changes in economic, political or other conditions.

The Fund's major bank balances are held with two Banks. The management believes that these

banks are reputed institutions.

UNIT HOLDERS' FUND RISK MANAGEMENT

The unit holders' fund is represented by the net assets attributable to unit holders / redeemable
units. The amount of net assets attributable to unit holders can change significantly on a daily
basis as the Fund is subject to daily issuance and redemptions at the discretion of unit holders.
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The Fund's objective when managing the unit holders' fund is to safeguard the Funds ability to
continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for the benefits of the unit holders to
maintain a strong base of assets to support the development of the investment activities of the
Fund and to meet unexpected losses or opportunities. As required under the NBFC
Regulations, every open end scheme shall maintain minimum fund size (i.e. net assets of the
Fund) of Rs. 100 million at all times during the life of scheme. In order to comply with the
requirement and to maintain or adjust the Unit Holders' Fund, the Funds policy is to perform
the following:

- Monitors the level of daily issuance and redemptions relative to the liquid assets and
adjusts the amount of distributions the Fund pays to unit holders;

- Redeem and issue units in accordance with the constitutive documents of the Fund,
which include the ability to restrict redemptions and require certain minimum
holdings and issuance; and

- The Fund Manager / Investment Committee members and the Chief Executive
Officer critically track the movement of , Assets under Management™. The Board of
Directors is updated regarding key performance indicators e.g. yield and movement
of NAV and total Fund size at the end of each quarter.

The Fund has maintained and complied with the requirements of minimum fund size during the
current year.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged or liability can be settled,
between knowledgeable willing parties in an arm's length transaction. Consequently,
differences can arise between carrying values and the fair value estimates.

Underlying the definition of fair value is the presumption that the Fund is a going concern
without any intention or requirement to curtail materially the scale of its operations or to
undertake a transaction on adverse terms.

Financial assets which are tradable in an open market are revalued at the market prices
prevailing on the reporting date. The estimated fair value of all other financial assets and
liabilities is considered not significantly different from the carrying value as the items are short-
term in nature or periodically repriced.
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As per the requirements of the IFRS 7 (Financial Instruments: Disclosures) and IFRS 13 (Fair
Value Measurement), the Fund shall classify fair value measurements using a fair value
hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements. The fair
value hierarchy has the following levels:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices);

and

Level 3: Inputs for assets or liability that are not based on observable market data (i.e.
unobservable inputs)

June 30,2018 June 30,2017
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
----------- —Rs in '000--————-————-— -——eee——-Rs in '000 -

Government securities -
designated at fair value
through profit or loss

Pakistan Investment Bonds - - - - 122,650 -

Market Treasury Bills - 2,270,973 - - 1,542,271 -

Ijarah Sukuk - 6,380 - - 644,288 -

2,277,353 - - 2,309,209

During the year ended June 30, 2018, there were no transfers between level 1 and level 2 fair
value measurements and no transfers into and out of level 3 fair value measurements.

NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

The Board of Directors of the Management Company on July 2, 2018 approved a final
distribution of Rs. 4.9688 per unit on the face value of Rs. 100 each (i.e. 4.97%) amounting to
Rs. 84.356 million. The financial statements of the Fund for the year ended June 30, 2018 do
not include the effect of this distribution which will be accounted for in the financial statements
of the Fund for the year ending June 30, 2019.

DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE

These financial statements were authorized for issue by Board of Directors of the Management
Company on _ 28-August-2018 .
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These figures has been rounded off to the nearest thousand rupees unless otherwise stated.

For UBL Fund Managers Limited
(Management Company)

~--SD--- ---SD-- —-SD--
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER  CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER DIRECTOR



UGIF

UBL Growth and Income Fund

INVESTMENT OBJECTIVE

UGTIF is an open-end Aggressive Fixed Income Fund, investing in medium to long-term fixed income
instruments as well as short-tenor money market instruments and seeks to generate superior, long-term,
risk-adjusted returns while preserving capital over the long-term.

Management Company UBL Fund Managers Limited

Trustee Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
99-B, Block-B, S.M.C.H.S., Main Shahra-e-Faisal,
Karachi. Tel: (9221) 111-111-500

Distribution Company United Bank Limited
(for detail of others, please visit our website: www.ublfunds.com.pk)

Auditors Ernst & Young Ford Rhodes Sidat Hyder & Company,, Chartered Accountants
Bankers Allied Bank Limited

Bank Alfalah Limited

Faysal Bank Limited

Habib Bank Limited

JS Bank Limited

Khushhali Bank Ltd.

MCB Bank Limited

National Bank of Pakistan
Samba Bank Limited

Silk Bank Limited

Sindh Bank Limited

Summit Bank Limited
Telenor Microfinance Bank Limited
The Bank of Punjab

United Bank Limited

Zarai Taraqiati Bank Limited

Management Co.Rating AM1 (JCR-VIS)

Fund Rating A(f) (JCR-VIS)




Fund Manager’s Report — UBL Growth and Income Fund (UGIF)

i) Description of the Collective Investment Scheme category and type
Aggressive Fixed Income / Open-end

i) Statement of Collective Investment Scheme’s investment objective
UGIF is an open-end Aggressive Fixed Income Fund, investing in medium to long-term fixed income
instruments as well as short-tenor money market instruments and seeks to generate superior, long-term, risk-
adjusted returns while preserving capital over the long-term.

iii) Explanation as to whether the Collective Investment Scheme achieved its stated objective
The Collective Investment Scheme has a long-term investment objective. Significant efforts were made during
the year for the achievement of the long-term objective.

iv) Statement of benchmark(s) relevant to the Collective Investment Scheme
Average of 1 year KIBOR rates.

)] Comparison of the Collective Investment Scheme’s performance during the period compared
with the said benchmarks

Monthly Yield Jul'l? Aug'l7 Sep'l7 Oct'l7 Nov'l7 Dec'l7 Jan'l8 Feb'18 Mar'l8 Apr'l8 May'l8 Jun'l8 FYTD
UGIF 5.34% 1.00% 5.88% 3.17% 3.64% 2.74% 5.85% 3.77% 5.91% 11.11% 9.95% 4.58% 5.21%
Benchmark 6.21% 6.21% 6.22% 6.22% 6.22% 6.24% 6.27% 6.49% 6.61% 6.66% 6.78% 7.16% 6.44%

vi) Description of the strategies and policies employed during the period under review in relation to the
Collective Investment Scheme’s performance

The fund has posted a return of 5.21% p.a. during FY18. At the end of FY18, the Fund Manager maintained
majority exposure in Cash (60%) and Term Finance Certificates/ Sukuks (38%). The weighted average time to
maturity was 1.93 years at the end of period while the net assets of the fund stood at PKR 1,302mn

vii) Disclosure of the Collective Investment Scheme’s asset allocation as at the date of the report and
particulars of significant changes in asset allocation since the last report (if applicable)

Asset Allocation (% of NAV) Jun-17 Jun-18
Term Finance Certificates / Sukuks 14% 38%
Commercial Paper 3% 0%
Placements with NBFCs 0% 0%
Placements with DFls 0% 0%

FMR - UGIF



Placements with Banks 4% 0%

Cash 46% 60%
T-Bills 0% 0%
PIBs 0% 0%
GoP ljarah Sukuk 4% 0%
Others 15% 2%
Leverage Nil 0%
Spread Transaction 8% 0%
MTS Exposure 6% 0%

viii) Analysis of the Collective Investment Scheme’s performance

FY'18 Return: 5.21%
Standard Deviation (12m trailing): 0.86%
Sharpe Ratio (12m trailing): (1.08)

ix) Changes in total NAV and NAV per unit since the last review period or since commencement (in case
of newly established Collective Investment Schemes

Net Asset Value NAV per unit
30-Jun-18 | 30-Jun-17 | Change | 30-Jun-18 | 30-Jun-17 | Change
Rupees (000) % Rupees %
1,301,602 | 5707,271| -77.19| 893150 | 84.8927 5.21

x) Disclosure on the markets that the Collective investment Scheme has invested in including
- review of the market(s) invested in and performance during the period

Debt Market Review — FY18

The International Crude Qil prices exhibited an upward trend for the fiscal year. The prices increased from USD 45-
per barrel increasing as much as ~70% closing at a new high of USD ~80 per barrel. Increasing oil prices, higher
commodity prices (with exception of sugar) along with lagged impact of PKR devaluation (+16%) aided in increasing
inflation rate to 4.4% for 4QFY18. Core measures of inflation witnessed an upward trajectory where NFNE which is
somewhat sticky in nature increased to 7.1% by end of FY18. Taking cues from this trend we expect SBP to continue
its current monetary tightening policy.

In twelve PIB auctions for FY18 conducted during the year, the government raised PKR~102bn (PKR ~894bn in
FY17) against target of PKR 330bn. Consequently, outstanding amount for the PIBs in the market increased to PKR
29.47trn. Participation in the auctions was largely skewed towards three and five year paper in line with interest rate
hikes. Cut off yields in June auction trimmed to 7.5%, 8.5% and 8.7% for three, five and ten year PIB instruments
respectively. In July’18 PIB Auction the government accepted PKR ~6.9bn.
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The yield curve based on government securities of various maturities has shifted upwards in line with the ongoing
increasing discounts rates. Yield on 3M, 6M and 12M T-Bills increased by 79bps, 90bps and 116bps, respectively.
Similarly, yield on 3-year, 5-year and 10-year bonds increased 180bps, 171bps and 86bps, respectively. The spread
between annualized yields of 1-year T-bills (7.20% p.a.) and 10-year PIBs (9.03% p.a.) stood at 1.83% as of 30 June
2018.

i) Disclosure on distribution (if any), comprising:-
- particulars of income distribution or other forms of distribution made and proposed during the
period; and
- statement of effects on the NAV before and after distribution is made

Final distribution for the year ended June 30, 2018 was made subsequent to year end, on July 02, 2018.
Below are the details of such distribution

Distribution Per unit
Declared on Bonus ‘ Cash Per Unit Cum NAV ‘ Ex NAV
Rupees (000) | = =ssseeeeeeeee Rupees ----==-==------
July 02, 2018 - ‘ 64,450 4.4223 89.3150 ‘ 84.8927

i) Description and explanation of any significant changes in the state of affairs of the Collective
Investment Scheme during the period and up till the date of the manager’s report, not otherwise
disclosed in the financial statements

There were no significant changes in the state of affairs during the year under review.

iii) Breakdown of unit holdings by size

] Number of Investors
Range of Units
UGIF

0.0001 - 9,999.9999 1,283
10,000.0000 - 49,999.9999 87
50,000.0000 - 99,999.9999 10
100,000.0000 - 499,999.9999 15
500,000.0000 & Above 7
Total 1,402
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iv) Disclosure on unit split (if any), comprising:-
There were no unit splits during the period.

v) Disclosure of circumstances that materially affect any interests of unit holders
Investment are subject to credit and market risk.

vi) Disclosure if the Asset Management Company or its delegate, if any, receives any soft commission
(i.e. goods and services) from its broker(s) or dealer(s) by virtue of transactions conducted by the
Collective Investment Scheme.

No soft commissions are received by the AMC from its brokers or dealers by virtue of transactions conducted
by the Collective Investment Scheme.
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PERFORMANCE TABLE

UBL Growth and Income Fund

2018
NET ASSETS AS AT 30 JUNE - Rupees in '000 1,301,602
NET ASSETS VALUE PER UNIT AT 30 JUNE - Rupees
Income units - Offer * 90.8334
- Redemption 89.3150
Growth units - Offer 90.8334
- Redemption ** 89.3150
RETURN OF THE FUND - %
Total Return of the Fund 5.21
Capital Growth (per unit) 5.21
Date of Income Distribution -
Income Distribution -
AVERAGE ANNUAL RETURN - %
One Year 5.21
Second Year 5.99
Third Year 8.02
Fourth Year 9.00
Fifth Year 10.87
Sixth Year 10.84
OFFER / REPURCHASE DURING THE YEAR- Rupees
Highest price per unit - Income units - Offer * 90.8334
Highest price per unit - Income units - Redemption * 89.3150
Highest price per unit - Growth units - Offer * 90.8334
Highest price per unit - Growth units - Redemption * 89.3150
Lowest price per unit - Income units - Offer * 86.3042
Lowest price per unit - Income units - Redemption * 84.8616
Lowest price per unit - Growth units - Offer * 86.3042
Lowest price per unit - Growth units - Redemption * 84.8616
* Front-end load @1.5% is applicable
** Back-end load as per applicable step-down structure
PORTFOLIO COMPOSITION - %
Percentage of Net Assets as at 30 June
PORTFOLIO COMPOSITION BY CATEGORY - %
Bank Balances 60.00
Placements & Term Deposit Receipts 0.00
TFCs, Sukuks, Government securities, Commercial papers 38.00
others 2.00
PORTFOLIO COMPOSITION BY MARKET - %
Debt market 100

Note:
- The Launch date of Fund is 02 March 2006.

DISCLAIMER

2017

5,707,271

86.3359
84.8927

84.8927
84.8927

6.77

1.32
19-Jun-17

5.65

6.77
9.43
10.26
12.28
11.97
7.93

92.4672
91.9841

91.9841
91.9841

89.8843
89.4147

89.4147
89.4147

46.00

4.00
35.00
15.00

100

2016

1,735,198

86.4833
84.8042

84.8042
84.8042

12.09
7.52

24-Jun-16
6.00

12.09
12.01
14.12
13.27
8.16
5.07

92.4672
90.6719

90.6719
90.6719

82.3219
80.7236

80.7236
80.7236

49.00
0.00
51.00

100

Past performance is not necessarily indicative of future performance and that unit prices and investment returns may go down, as well as ug



CENTRAL DEPOSITORY COMPANY
QF PAKISTAN LIMITED

Head Office:

{DC House, 99-B, Block ‘B,
S.M.CH.S., Main Shahra-e-Faisal,
Karachi - 74400, Pakistan.

Tel: (92-21)111-111-500

Fax: (92-21) 34326020 - 23

URL: www.cdcpakistan.com
Email: info@cdcpak.com

TRUSTEE REPORT TO THE UNIT HOLDERS
UBL GROWTH & INCOME FUND

Report of the Trustee pursuant to Regulation 41(h} and clause 9 of Schedule V of the Non-
Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008

We Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited, being the Trustee of UBL Growth &
Income Fund (the Fund) are of the opinion that UBL Fund Managers Limited being the
Management Company of the Fund has in all material respects managed the Fund during the vear
ended June 30, 2018 in accordance with the provisions of the following:

{) Limitations imposed on the investment powers of the Management Company under the
constitutive documents of the Fund;

(ii) The pricing, issuance and redemption of unifs are carried out in accordance with the
requirements of the constitutive documents of the Fund; and

(iit) The Non-Bankmg Finance Companies (Establishinent and Regulations) Rules, 2003, the
Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 and the
constitutive documents of the Fund.

G
Aftab Ahmed Diwan
Chief Executive Officer
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited

Karachi: September 13, 2018
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH LISTED COMPANIES (CODE OF CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2017 BY UBL FUND MANAGERS LIMITED

NAME OF FUND: UBL GROWTH AND INCOME FUND
YEAR ENDING: JUNE 30, 2018

The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) through its letter dated April 18, 2018 to
Mutual Funds Association of Pakistan (MUFAP) has exempted the open-end collective investment schemes
from the requirements of the Code of Corporate Governance. However, the Board of Directors of UBL Fund
Managers Limited (the Management Company) of UBL Growth and Income Fund (the Fund), for the purpose
of establishing a framework of good governance whereby a Fund is managed by best practice of Corporate
governance, has voluntarily opted to comply with the relevant provisions of the Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations 2017 (The Code).

The Management Company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:
1. The total number of directors are seven as per the following:
a. Male: Six Directors;
b. Female: One Director.
2. The composition of the Board is as follows:

Category Name
. Mr. Azhar Hamid
Independent Directors Ms. Naz Khan
Executive Directors Mr. Yasir Qadri

Mirza Muhammad Sadeed Hassan Barlas
Mr, Sharjeel Shahid

Mr. Zia ljaz

Syed Furrukh Zaeem

Non - Executive Directors

3. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than five listed
companies, including this company.

4, The Management Company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps
have been taken to disseminate it throughout the company along with its supporting policies and
procedures.

5. The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant
policies of the Management Company. A complete record of particulars of significant policies along
with the dates on which they were approved or amended has been maintained. The Management
Company has placed the Whistle Blowing Policy, Proxy Policy and the Principles of the Code of
Conduct (Statement of Ethics and Business Practice) on its website.

6. The Board of directors have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors
in accordance with the Act and these Regulations.

7. The Board has a formal and effective mechanism in place for an annual evaluation of the Board’s own
performance,

UBL FUND MANAGERS LIMITED
K, +9221111 825 262
= info@ublfunds.com

¥ 4" Floor, STSM Building. Beaumont Road, Civil Lines, Karachi. www.ublfunds.com
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The Chairman of the Board is an Independent director. All the powers of the Board have been duly
exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been taken by Board as empowered by the relevant
provisions of the Act and these Regulations.

9. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director
elected by the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of Act and the
Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting of Board.

10. Following directors and executive have acquired the prescribed Director Training Program (DTP)
certification:

f

$ o0 o

Directors

Mirza Muhammad Sadeed Hassan Barlas
Mr, Yasir Qadri

Mr. Zia [jaz

Ms. Naz Khan

Syed Furrukh Zaeem

Executive

S.M. Aly Osman

11. The Board has approved appointment of CFO, Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit,
including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and complied with relevant
requirements of the Regulations.

12, CFO and CEQ duly endorsed the financial statements before approval of the Board.

13. The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below. The Board Audit Cornmittee
and the Board Human Resource & Compensation Committee are chaired by separate Independent
directors:

a. Board Audit Commitiee

b.

C.

i. Ms. Naz Khan (Chair);
ii. Mirza Muhammad Sadeed Hassan Barlas;
iii. Mr. Sharjeel Shahid;
iv. Mr. Zialjaz,
Board Human Resource & Compensation Committee
i. Mr. Azhar Hamid (Chairman);
il. Mr. Yasir Qadri;
iii. Mr. Zie [jaz;
iv. Ms, Naz Khan;
v. Syed Furrukh Zaeem.
Board Risk & Compliance Committee
i. Mirza Muhammad Sadeed Hassan Barlas (Chairman);
ii. Mr. Azhar Hamid;
iii. Mr. Sharjeel Shehid;
iv. Mr. Yasir Qadri;
v. Syed Furrukh Zaeem.

UBL FUND MANAGERS LIMITED

. +9221111 825 242

& info@ublfunds.com

Q@ 4™ Floor, STSM Building, Bearmont Road, Civil Lines, Karachi, www.ublfunds.com
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14, The Terms of Reference of the aforesaid Committees have been formed, documented and advised to
the Committee for compliance.

15. The frequency of meetings of the Committee were as per following:
a. Board Audit Committee : Quarterly Meeting
b. Board Human Resource & Compensation Committee: Quarterly Meeting
c. Board Risk & Compliance Committee: Quarterly Meeting

16. The Board has set up an independent and effective internal audit function and the audit personne! are

suitably qualified and experienced for the purpose and are conversant with the policies and procedures
of the Management Company.

17. The statutory auditors of the Fund have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating
under the quality control review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP)
and registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they or any of the partners of the firm,
their spouses and minor children do not hold units of the Fund and that the firm and all its partners are

in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as
adopted by the ICAP.

18. The Board Audit Committee recommends to the Board of directors the appointment of external
auditors, their removal, audit fees, the provision of any service permissible to be rendered to the
company by the external auditors in addition to audit of its financial statements.

19. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other
services except in accordance with the Act, these regulations or any other regulatory requirement and
the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.

Karachi.
Dated: August 28, 2018

UBL FUND MANAGERS LIMITED
L. +8221111 825 2462
8 jnfo@ublfonds.com

@ 4™ Floor, STSM Buitding, Beaumnont Road, Civil Lines, Karachi. www.ublfunds.com
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To the unitholders of UBL Growth and Income Fund

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed
Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Requlations, 2017 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors
(the Board) of UBL Fund Managers Limited, the Management Company of UBL Growth and Income
Fund (the Fund) for the year ended 30 June 2018 in accordance with the requirements of regulation
40 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of the Management
Company of the Fund. Our responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects
the status of the Management Company's compliance with the provisions of the Regulations in
respect of the Fund and report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the
requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Management
Company's personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Management Company to
comply with the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the
accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit
approach, We are not required to consider whether the Board's statement on internal control covers
all risks and controls or te form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the
Management Company's corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Management Company to place before the Audit Committee, and
upen recommendation of the Audit Committee, place before the Board for their review and approval,
the Fund’s related party transactions and also ensure compliance with the requirements of section
208 of the Companies Act, 2017. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this
requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board upon
recommendation of the Audit Committee. We have not carried out procedures to assess and
determine the Management Company's process for identification of related parties and that whether
the related party transactions were undertaken at arm'’s length price or not.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the
Statement of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Management Company's compliance, in all

material respects, with the requirements conlained in the Regulations as applicable to the Funds
for the year ended 30 June 2018,

E?’(«-J-LL:._.

Chartered Accountants
Piace: Karachi

Date: 28 August 2018



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT

To the Unit holders of UBL GROWTH AND INCOME FUND
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of UBL Growth and Income Fund (the Fund), which comprise
the statement of assets and liabilities as at 30 June 2018, and income statement, statement of
comprehensive income, statement of movement in unit holders’ fund and statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position
of the Fund as at 30 June 2018, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in
Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Fund in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the
Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion,

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the context
of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Following are the key audit matters:

Key audit matter | How our audit addressed the key audit matter
1. Amendment to the NBFC Regulations, 2008
As disclosed in note 4.1 to the We assessed the appropriateness of the recognition,
accompanying financial statements of the measurement and presentation of “element of

Fund for the year ended 30 June 2018, the | income /loss" in accordance with the amended
Securities and Exchange Commission of provisions of the NBFC Regulations. We also

Pakistan through its SRO no. 756(1/2017 considered the guidelines issued by MUFAP in
dated 03 August 2017 madé certain respect of the accounting for element of income /

. er the revised Regulations and assessed its
amendments in the Non-Banking Finance loss as per the revis egulatio

. o o - implementation by the Fund.
Companies and Notified Entities Regulation,
2008 (the NBFC Regulations).




Key audif matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

These amendments are considered
significant to our audit because application
of the said amendments resulted in change
in accounting policy relating to presentation
“element of income / loss™ in the financial
statements and certain additional
disclosures with respect to 'Income
Statement' and 'Statement of Movement in
Unit Holders' Fund' (the Statements).

We evaluated the adeguacy of disclosures regarding

: the change in accounting policy with respect to

element of income / loss in accordance with the
requirements of the relevant financial reporting
standards and the guidance issued by MUFAP in
relation thereto.

2. Existence and valuation of debt securities

As disclosed in note 9 to the accompanying
financial statements of the Fund for the
vear ended 30 June 2018, the investments
held by the Fund comprised of debt
instruments which represent 38% of the
total assets of the Fund as at the year end.

In view of the significance of these debt
instruments in relaticn to the total assets
and the NAV of the Fund, we have consider
the existence and valuaticn of such debt
instruments as a key audit matter.

We performed a combination of audit procedures
focusing an the existence and valuation of debt
instruments. Qur key procedure included the
following:

- We tested controls over acquisition, disposals
and periodic valuation of debt instruments
portfolio,

- We performed substantive audit procedures on
year-end balance of portfolio including review
custodian’s statement, and related
reconcitiations, re-performance of debt
instrumaonts valuations on the basis of prices
provided by the Mutual Fund Association of
Pakistan (MUFAP),

- We considered credit impairment provisions in
respect of debt securities which have been
classified and reported under default category
by MUFAP at the valuation date and assessed
the adequacy of the impairment provision
against such securities with reference fo the
requirements laid down by the Securities and
Exchange Commission of Pakistan's circular No.
33 of 2012.

- We assessed the Fund's compliance with the
requirements of Non-Banking Finance
Companies and Notified Entities Regulations,
2008 (the Requlations) in relation to the
concenfration of debt instruments and exposure
limits prescribed in such Regutations and the
adequacy of disclosures as may be applicable in
situations of non-compliance.

- We also evaluated the adequacy of the overall
disclosures in the financial statements in respect
of the debt instruments paortfolio in accordance
with the requirements of the Requlations and
whether the Fund’s disclosures in relation to the
valuation of debt instruments are compliant with
the relevant accounting requirements.

=y~




Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditors' report
thereon,

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion therean.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. [f, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report
in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan, and for such internal
control as Management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the Fund's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless Management either intends to liquidate the Fund or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Fund's financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resuiting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Fund's internal control,

&"f«r



- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Fund's ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Fund to cease to continue as a going concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Board of Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safequards.

From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in cur auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing 5o
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other matter

The financial statements of the Fund for the year ended 30 June 2017, were audited by another
auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on those financial statements on 23 August 2017.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Shaikh Ahmed
Salman.

676313 ‘/{. J»—&

Chartered Accountants
Date: 28 August 2018

Karachi



ASSETS

Bank balances

Investments

Advance tax

Mark-up receivable

Deposits and other receivables

Receivable against settlement of spread transactions
Receivable against margin trading system (MTS)

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Payable to the Management Company

Payable to the Trustee

Annual fee payable to the Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan (SECP)

Accrued and other liabilities
Total liabilities

NET ASSETS

UBL GROWTH AND INCOME FUND
STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
AS AT JUNE 30, 2018

Unit holders’ fund (as per statement attached)

Contingencies and commitments

NUMBER OF UNITS IN ISSUE

NET ASSETS VALUE PER UNIT

--SD--

June 30, June 30,
2018 2017
Note ~  -=---- (Rupees in '000) ------
8 811,972 2,891,184
9 506,522 2,129,705
10 3,399 2,984
11 14,827 26,822
12 9,972 263,147
- 98,942
- 358,681
1,346,692 5,771,465
13 2,861 8,381
14 196 484
15 2,418 3,187
17 39,615 52,142
45,090 64,194
1,301,602 5,707,271
1,301,602 5,707,271
18
------- (Number of units) ------
14,573,165 67,229,227
----------- (Rupees) ===-===-=--
5.8 89.3150 84.8927
The annexed notes from 1 to 28 form an integral part of these financial statements.
For UBL Fund Managers Limited
(Management Company)
--SD-- --SD--
Director Chief Financial Officer

Chief Executive Officer




UBL GROWTH AND INCOME FUND
INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

June 30, June 30,
2018 2017
Note @~ == (Rupees in '000) ------
INCOME
Financial income 19 208,194 255,024
Unrealised (loss) / gain on revaluation of investments classified as 9.3
'designated at fair value through profit or loss' - net (143) 14,166
Loss on maturity / sale of investments classified as
'designated at fair value through profit or loss' - net (4,353) (14,558)
Gain from spread transactions - net 8,258 26,486
Loss on maturity / sale on investments classified as 'available-for-sale' - net (13,874) (29,025)
Other income 3,405 2,248
Total income 201,487 254,341
Reversal of provision against debt securities - net 9.4.1 1,463 61,624
Reversal of provision against placements - net 9.6 10,756 9,722
Reversal of provision against other receivables 121 6,857 -
EXPENSES
Remuneration of the Management Company 13.1 48,354 63,738
Sales tax on management fee 13.2 6,286 8,286
Allocated expenses by the Management Company 13.3 3,224 4,249
Selling and marketing expenses 13.4 472 -
Remuneration of the Trustee 14 1 3,582 4,434
Sales tax on remuneration of the Trustee 14.2 466 576
Annual fee to SECP 15 2,418 3,187
Brokerage and settlement charges 4,015 8,945
Auditors' remuneration 20 548 559
Legal and professional charges 652 1,488
Bank charges and other expenses 555 478
Total expenses 70,572 95,940
149,991 229,747
Net element of loss and capital losses included in prices of units
issued less those in units redeemed - (107,082)
Reversal of provision for Workers' Welfare Fund (WWF) 17.2 - 19,151
Provision for Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund (SWWF) 17.2 (2,943) (7,101)
(2,943) 12,050
Net income for the year before taxation 147,048 134,715
Taxation 21 - -
Net income for the year after taxation 147,048 134,715
Allocation of net income for the year:
Net income for the year after taxation 147,048 -
Income already paid on units redeemed (104,456) -
42,592 -
Accounting income available for distribution:
- Relating to capital gains - -
- Excluding capital gains 42,592 -
42,592 -
The annexed notes from 1 to 28 form an integral part of these financial statements.
For UBL Fund Managers Limited
(Management Company)
--SD-- --SD-- --SD--

Chief Executive Officer Director Chief Financial Officer



UBL GROWTH AND INCOME FUND
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

June 30, June 30,
2018 2017
------ (Rupees in '000) ------
Net income for the year after taxation 147,048 134,715
Other comprehensive income for the year:

To be reclassifed to income statement in subsequent periods:

Net movement on disposal of investments classified as
'available-for-sale' reclassified to income statement (6,254) 1,961

Total comprehensive income for the year 140,794 136,676

The annexed notes from 1 to 28 form an integral part of these financial statements.

For UBL Fund Managers Limited
(Management Company)

--SD-- --SD-- --SD--
Chief Executive Officer Director Chief Financial Officer




UBL GROWTH AND INCOME FUND
STATEMENT OF MOVEMENT IN UNIT HOLDERS' FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

June 30, 2018 June 30, 2017

Unrealised
(diminution) /
appreciation on
re-measurement
of investments
classified as

Capital Undistributed ‘available-for-
value income sale’ - net Total Total
(Rupees in '000)
Net assets at beginning of the year 6,184,368 (477,097) - 5,707,271 1,735,198
Amount received on issuance of 25,462,034
(2017: 144,460,348) units
Capital value 2,161,541 - - 2,161,541 -
Element of income during the year;
- Relating to other comprehensive income (413) - - (413) -
- Relating to net loss for the year after taxation 41,704 - - 41,704 -
2,202,832 - - 2,202,832 12,537,712
Amount paid on redemption of 78,118,097
(2017: 97,692,344) units
Capital value (6,631,656) - - (6,631,656) -
Element of income during the year;
- Relating to other comprehensive income 6,789 - - 6,789 -
- Relating to net loss for the year after taxation (19,972) (104,456) - (124,428) -
(6,644,839) (104,456) - (6,749,295) (8,678,672)
Net element of loss and capital losses included in prices
of units issued less those in units redeemed - - - - 107,082
Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the year - 147,048 (6,254) 140,794 136,676
Distribution during the year - - - - (130,725)
Net income / (loss) for the year less distribution - 147,048 (6,254) 140,794 5,951
Net assets at end of the year 1,742,361 (434,505) (6,254) 1,301,602 5,707,271
Undistributed income brought forward:
- Realised - (491,263) - (491,263) -
- Unrealised - 14,166 - 14,166 -
- (477,097) - (477,097) -
Accounting income available for distribution:
- Relating to capital gains - - - - -
- Excluding capital gains - 42,592 - 42,592 -
- 42,592 - 42,592 -
Net income for the year after taxation - - - - -
Distribution during the year - - - - -
Undistributed income carried forward - (434,505) - (434,505) -
Undistributed income carried forward
- Realised - (434,505) - (434,505) -
- Unrealised - - - - -
- (434,505) - (434,505) -
------------- (Rupees) ----=-==-----
Net assets value per unit at beginning of the year 84.8927 84.8042
Net assets value per unit at end of the year 89.3150 84.8927
The annexed notes from 1 to 28 form an integral part of these financial statements.
For UBL Fund Managers Limited
(Management Company)
--SD-- --SD-- --SD--

Chief Executive Officer Director Chief Financial Officer



UBL GROWTH AND INCOME FUND
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income for the year before taxation

Adjustments for:

Financial income

Unrealised loss / (gain) on revaluation of investments classified as
'designated at fair value through profit or loss' - net

Loss on maturity / sale of investments classified as
'designated at fair value through profit or loss' - net

Gain from spread transactions - net

Loss on maturity / sale on investments classified as 'available-for-sale

Reversal of provision against debt securities - net

Reversal of provision against placements - net

Reversal of provision against other receivables

Net element of loss and capital losses included in prices of units
issued less those in units redeemed

Reversal of provision for Workers' Welfare Fund (WWF)

Provision for Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund (SWWF)

Decrease / (increase) in assets

Investments

Advance tax

Receivable against settlement of spread transactions
Receivable against margin trading system (MTS)
Advance, deposits and other receivables

(Decrease) / increase in liabilities
Payable to the Management Company
Payable to the Trustee

Annual fee payable to the SECP
Accrued and other liabilities

Finance income received
Net cash generated from / (used in) operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Net receipt from issuance of units

Cash dividend paid to unit holders

Net payment against redemption of units

Net cash (used in) / generated from financing activities

Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

Cash and cash equivalents
Bank balances
Term deposit receipts (TDR)

The annexed notes from 1 to 28 form an integral part of these financial statements.

For UBL Fund Managers Limited
(Management Company)

--SD--
Chief Executive Officer

--SD--
Director

June 30,
2018

June 30,

2017

---------- (Rupees in '000) -=--------

147,048 134,715
(208,194) (255,024)
143 (14,166)
4,353 14,558
(8,258) (26,486)
13,874 29,025
(1,463) (61,624)
(10,756) (9,722)
(6,857) -
- 107,082
- (19,151)
2,943 7,101
(214,215) (228,407)
1,359,036 (1,291,651)
(415) (468)
98,942 (98,942)
358,681 -

260,032 (245,473)
2,076,276 (1,636,534)
(5,520) 4,478
(288) 272
(769) 1,771
(15,470) 12,261
(22,047) 18,782
220,189 247,033
2,207,251 (1,464,411)
2,202,832 12,537,712
- (130,725)
(6,749,295) (8,678,672)
(4,546,463) 3,728,315
(2,339,212) 2,263,004
3,151,184 887,280
811,972 3,151,184
811,972 2,891,184

- 260,000
811,972 3,151,184

--SD--

Chief Financial Officer




1.

UBL GROWTH AND INCOME FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

11

1.2

1.3

14

1.5

1.6

UBL Growth and Income Fund (the Fund) was established under the Non-Banking Finance Companies
(Establishment and Regulation) Rules, 2003 (the NBFC Rules) and Non-Banking Finance Companies and
Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 (NBFC Regulations) and was approved as an open-end mutual fund by
the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP). It was constituted under the Trust Deed,
dated 21 December 2004 between UBL Fund Managers Limited (a wholly owned subsidiary company of
United Bank Limited) as the Management Company, a company incorporated under the Companies
Ordinance, 1984 and Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (CDC) as the Trustee. The
registered office of the Management Company is situated at 4th Floor, STSM Building, Beaumont road,
Civil lines, Karachi.

The Management Company of the Fund has been licensed to act as an Asset Management Company
under the NBFC Rules through certificate of registration issued by SECP.

The Fund is an aggressive fixed income scheme and units of the Fund are listed on the Pakistan Stock
Exchange. Units are offered for public subscription on a continuous basis. The units of the fund can be
transferred to / from other funds managed by the Management Company and can also be redeemed by
surrendering to the fund.

As per the offering document, the Fund shall invest in a diversified portfolio of Government securities,
investment grade term finance certificates (TFCs), rated corporate debts, certificates of investments
(COQls), marginal trading system (MTS), spread transactions (including spread on equity transactions) and
other money market instruments.

JCR - VIS Credit Rating Company has upgraded management quality rating from AM2++ (stable outlook)
to AM1 to the management company as at December 29, 2017.

Title to the assets of the Fund are held in the name of Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited as
the Trustee of the Fund.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

21

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan. Such standards comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017 (the Act);

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 along with part VIIIA of the
repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984;

- The NBFC rules, the Non-Banking Finance Companies, Notified Entities Regulations, 2008
(the NBFC Regulations) and the requirements of Trust Deed.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, part VIIIA of the repealed
Companies Ordinance, 1984, the NBFC Rules, the NBFC Regulations and requirements of the Trust Deed
differ from the IFRS Standards, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017,
part VIIIA of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984, the NBFC Rules, the NBFC Regulations and
requirements of the Trust Deed have been followed.



3. BASIS OF PREPARATION

3.1

3.2

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for
investments which are accounted for as stated in note 5.1 below.

These financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupee which is the Fund's functional and
presentation currency.

4. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

41

Element of income / (loss) and capital gains / (losses) included in prices of units issued less those
in units redeemed

The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) through its SRO 756(1)/2017 dated August
03, 2017 has made certain amendments in the NBFC Regulations. The notification includes a definition
and explanation relating to "element of income" and excludes the element of income from the expression
"accounting income" as described in Regulation 63 (amount distributable to unit holders) of the NBFC
Regulations. As per the notification, element of income represents the difference between net assets value
per unit on the issuance or redemption date, as the case may be, of units and the net assets value per unit
at the beginning of the relevant accounting period. Further, the Regulations also specify that element of
income is a transaction of capital nature and the receipt and payment of element of income shall be taken
to unit holders' fund. However, to maintain the same ex-dividend net asset value of all units outstanding on
the accounting date, net element of income contributed on issue of units lying in unit holders fund will be
refunded on units in the same proportion as dividend bears to accounting income available for distribution.
MUFAP, in consultation with the SECP, has specified the methodology of determination of income paid on
units redeemed during the year under which such income is paid on gross element received and is
calculated from the latest date at which the Fund achieved net profitability during the year. Furthermore,
the revised Regulations also require certain additional disclosures with respect to 'Income Statement' and
'Statement of Movement in Unit Holders' Fund', whereas disclosure with respect to 'Distribution Statement’
has been deleted in the revised Regulations.

Previously, an equalisation account called the 'element of income / (loss) and capital gains / (losses)
included in prices of units issued less those in units redeemed' was created, in order to prevent the dilution
of per unit income and distribution of income already paid out on redemption. The net element of income /
(loss) and capital gains / (losses) relating to units issued and redeemed during the accounting period
which pertained to unrealised appreciation / (diminution) held in the Unit Holder's Fund was recorded in a
separate account and any amount remaining in this reserve account at the end of the accounting period
(whether gain or loss) was included in the amount available for distribution to the unitholders. The
remaining portion of the net element of income / (loss) and capital gains / (losses) relating to units issued
and redeemed during an accounting period was recognised in the Income Statement.

As required by IAS 8: 'Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors', a change in
accounting policy requires retrospective application as if that policy had always been applied. However, the
Management Company has applied the above changes in accounting policy, including the additional
disclosures requirements in the 'Income Statement' and 'Statement of Movement in Unit Holders' Fund',
prospectively from July 01, 2017 as required by SECP vide its S.R.O. No. 756(l) / 2017 dated August 03,
2017. Accordingly, corresponding figures have not been restated. The ,Distribution Statement® for the
comparative year has not been presented as it has been deleted as a result of the amendments made in
the NBFC Regulations the aforementioned SRO issued by the SECP.

Had the element of income been recognised as per the previous accounting policy, the income of the Fund
would have been higher by Rs.76.35 million. However, the change in accounting policy does not have any
impact on the 'cash flow statement', the 'net assets attributable to the unit holders' and 'net assets value
per unit' as shown in the 'Statement of Assets and Liabilities' and 'Statement of Movement in Unit Holders'
Fund'. The change has resulted in inclusion of certain additional disclosures / new presentation
requirements in the 'Income Statement' and 'Statement of Movement in Unit Holders' Fund, which have
been incorporated in these statements.



4.2 New / Revised Standards, Interpretations and Amendments

The Fund has adopted the following accounting standards and the amendments and interpretation of
IFRSs which became effective for the current year:

IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows - Disclosure Initiative - (Amendment)

IAS 12 Income Taxes — Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealized losses (Amendments)

The adoption of the above amendments, improvements to accounting standards and interpretations did
not have any effect on the financial statements.

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are consistent with
those of the previous financial years except as described in note 4.

5.1 Financial assets

5.1.1

Classification

The management determines the appropriate classification of the financial assets of the Fund in
accordance with the requirements of International Accounting Standard (IAS) 39, "Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement" at the time of purchase of financial assets and re-
evaluates this classification on a regular basis. The classification depends upon the purpose for
which the financial assets are acquired. The Fund classifies its financial assets in the following

a) Financial assets classified as 'at fair value through profit or loss’

Financial assets that are acquired principally for the purpose of generating profit from short-
term fluctuations in prices are classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
category.

All derivatives in a net receivable position (positive fair value), are reported as financial assets
held-for-trading. All derivatives in a net payable position (negative fair value), are reported as
financial liabilities.

b) Financial assets classified as "available-for-sale'

Available for sale financial assets are those non-derivative financial assets that are designated
as available for sale or are not classified as loans and receivables or financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss. These are intended to be held for an indefinite period of time which
may be sold in response to the needs for the liquidity or change in price.

c) Loans and receivales

These are non-derivatives financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market.

Regular way contracts

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date - the date on
which the Fund commits to purchase or sell the asset.

All regular way purchases and sales of investments are recognised on the trade date i.e. the date
the Fund commits to purchase / sell the investments except for margin trading system (MTS) which
is recorded on the date of settlement. Regular way purchases and sales of investments are those,
the contract for which requires delivery of assets within the time frame generally established by
regulation or market convention.



51.3

5.1.4

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are recognised at the time the Fund becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instruments. These are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs except for
financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value
through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value and transaction costs associated with
these financial assets are charged to the Income Statement.

Subsequent measurement

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets are valued as follows :

Financial assets classified as "at fair value through profit or loss' and 'available-for-sale’
a) Basis of valuation of debt securities

Investment in debt securities is valued on the basis of rates determined by the Mutual Funds
Association of Pakistan (MUFAP) Association of Pakistan (MUFAP) in accordance with the
methodology prescribed by the SECP via Circular 1 of 2009, Circular 33 of 2012 and Circular
35 of 2012. The Circulars also specifies the valuation process to be followed for each category
as well as the criteria for the provisioning of non-performing debt securities.

b) Basis of valuation of Government securities

The Government securities not listed on a stock exchange and traded in the interbank market
are valued at the average rates quoted on a widely used electronic quotation system (PKRV
and PKISRYV rates) which are based on the remaining tenor of the securities.

c) Basis of valuation of equity securities

The investment of the Fund in equity securities is valued on the basis of closing quoted market
prices available at the Pakistan Stock Exchange (PSX). Net gains and losses arising on
changes in the fair value of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are taken
to the income statement.

Net gains and losses arising on changes in fair value of available for sale financial assets are
taken to other comprehensive income until these are derecognised. At this time, the cumulative
gain or loss previously recognised in the other comprehensive income is transferred to income
before taxation.

Impairment

The Fund assesses at each reporting date whether there is an objective evidence that the financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount
of such asset is estimated. An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In case of investment classified as ,available-for-sale®, a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is considered an
indicator that the securities are impaired. If any such evidence exists for ,available-for-sale" financial
assets, the cumulative loss (measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the
current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised in the
income statement) is removed from the equity to the income statement.

For financial assets classified as 'loans and receivable', a provision for impairment is established
when there is an objective evidence that the Fund will not be able to collect all amounts due
according to the original terms. The amount of the provision is measured as the difference between
the asset's carrying value and present value of estimated future cash outflows, discounted at the
original effective interest rate.



5.2

5.3

54

5.5

5.6

5.7

Provision against non-performing debt securities is made in accordance with the provisioning
criteria for non-performing debt securities specified by the SECP. As allowed by the SECP, the
management may also make provision against debt securities over and above the minimum
provision requirement prescribed in the aforesaid circulars, in accordance with the provisioning
policy duly approved by the Board of Directors of the Management Company.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are recognised at the time when the Fund becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instruments. These are initially recognised at fair values and subsequently stated at amortised cost.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the Statement of Assets
and Liabilities when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Unitholders' fund

Unitholders' fund representing the units issued by the Fund, is carried at the redemption amount
representing the investors“right to a residual interest in the Fund’s assets.

Securities under repurchase / resale agreement

Transactions of sale under repurchase (repo), of marketable and government securities are entered into at
contracted rates for specified periods of time. Securities sold with a simultaneous commitment to
repurchase at a specified future date (repos) continue to be recognised in the Statement of Assets and
Liabilities and are measured in accordance with accounting policies for investment securities. The
counterparty liabilities for amounts received under these transactions are recorded as liabilities. The
difference between sale and repurchase price is treated as borrowing charges and accrued over the life of
the repo agreement.

Transactions of purchase under resale (reverse repo), of marketable and Government securities are
entered into at contracted rates for specified periods of time. Securities purchased with a simultaneous
commitment to resale at a specified future date (reverse repos) are not recognised in the statement of
assets and liabilities.

Issuance and redemption of units

Units issued are recorded at the offer price, prevalent on the day on which the applications for purchase of
units are received (however units are issued on the receipt of cash / realisation of cheques). The offer
price represents the net asset value per unit as of the close of the business day plus the allowable front-
end sales load. The front-end sales load is payable to the Management Company as processing fee. Issue
of units is recorded on acceptance of application for sale.

Units redeemed are recorded at the redemption price, applicable to units for which the Fund receives
redemption applications during business hours of that day. The redemption price represents the net asset
value per unit as of the close of the business day less any back-end load. Redemption of units is recorded
on acceptance of application for redemption.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Fund has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount of obligation can be made. Provisions are reviewed at
each balance sheet date and are adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.



5.8

5.9

5.10

5.11

5.12

5.13

5.14

Net assets value per unit

The net asset value per unit as disclosed on the Statement of Assets and Liabilities is calculated by
dividing the net assets of the Fund by the number of units outstanding at the year end.

Taxation

The Fund is exempt from taxation under clause 99 of Part | of the 2nd Schedule of the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001, subject to the condition that not less than 90% of its accounting income excluding
realized and unrealized capital gains for the year is distributed amongst the Fund's unit holders. The Fund
is also exempt from the provision of Section 113 (minimum tax) under clause 11A of Part IV of the Second
Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

Revenue recognition

- Capital gains / (losses) arising on redemption and sale of investments are included in the Income
Statement on the date at which the transaction takes place.

- Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive the dividend is established.

- Unrealized gains / (losses) arising on revaluation of investments classified as 'at fair value through
profit or loss' are included in the Income Statement in the period in which they arise.

- Unrealised gains / (losses) arising on the revaluation of the derivative financial instruments to their
fair values are taken to the Income Statement currently.

- Income on debt and government securities is recognised on time proportion basis using the
effective yield except for the securities which are classified as Non-Performing Asset under Circular
No. 33 of 2012 issued by SECP for which the profits are recorded on cash basis.

- Mark-up on saving accounts and term deposits is recognised on accrual basis.
Expenses

All expenses including Management fee, Trustee fee and Securities and Exchange Commission of
Pakistan (SECP) fee are recognised in the Income Statement on accrual basis.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the Statement of Assets and Liabilities at cost. These comprise
of deposits with banks and highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash,
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value and are held for the purpose of meeting short term
cash commitments rather than for investments for other purposes.

Dividend distribution and appropriations

Dividend distributions and appropriations are recorded in the period in which the distributions and
appropriations are approved.

Other assets

Other assets are stated at cost less impairment losses, if any.

. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
that effect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the result of which form the basis of making judgments
about carrying values of assets and liabilities. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis.



Judgments made by management in the application of accounting policies that have significant effect on the
financial statements and estimates with a significant risk of material adjustment are explained in notes 5.1.

. STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS TO APPROVED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS
THAT ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE

The following standards, amendments and interpretations with respect to the approved accounting standards as
applicable in Pakistan would be effective from the dates mentioned below against the respective standard or
interpretation:

Effective date (annual
periods beginning
Standard or Interpretation on or after)

IFRS 2 — Share-based Payments — Classification and Measurement

of Share-based Payments Transactions (Amendments)

IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts: Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
with IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts — (Amendments)

IFRS 9 — Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 — Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation -
(Amendments)

IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and IAS 28 Investment
in Associates and Joint Ventures - Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture (Amendment)

IFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with Customers
IFRS 16 — Leases
IAS 19 - Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement (Amendments)

IAS 28 - Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures —
(Amendments)

IAS 40 Investment Property: Transfers of Investment Property
(Amendments)

IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration

IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

January 01, 2018

January 01, 2018

July 01, 2018

January 01, 2019

Not yet finalized
July 01, 2018
January 01, 2019

January 01, 2019

January 01, 2019

January 01, 2018

January 01, 2018

January 01, 2019

The above standards and amendments are not expected to have any material impact on the Fund's financial
statements in the period of initial application. However, the Fund is currently evaluating the requirements of IFRS-
9 and potential impact on the financial statements of the Fund.

In addition to the above standards and amendments, improvements to various accounting standards have also
been issued by the IASB in December 2016 and December 2017. Such improvements are generally effective for
accounting periods beginning on or after 01 January 2018 and 01 January 2019 respectively. The Fund expects
that such improvements to the standards will not have any impact on the Fund's financial statements in the
period of initial application.

The IASB has also issued the revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting (the Conceptual
Framework) in March 2018 which is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020 for
preparers of financial statements who develop accounting policies based on the Conceptual Framework. The
revised Conceptual Framework is not a standard, and none of the concepts override those in any standard or
any requirements in a standard. The purpose of the Conceptual Framework is to assist IASB in developing
standards, to help preparers develop consistent accounting policies if there is no applicable standard in place
and to assist all parties to understand and interpret the standards.



Further, following new standards have been issued by IASB which are yet to be notified by the SECP for the

purpose of applicability in Pakistan.

Standards
IFRS 14 — Regulatory Deferral Accounts

IFRS 17 - Insurance Contracts

BALANCES WITH BANKS

In current accounts
In deposit accounts

IASB Effective date
(annual periods
beginning on or after)

January 01, 2016

January 01, 2021

June 30, June 30,
2018 2017
Note W --—---- (Rupees in '000) ------
50 50
8.1 811,922 2,891,134
8.2 811,972 2,891,184

8.1 These carry mark-up at rates ranging between 4.00% to 7.50% per annum (2017: 3.75% to 7.25%) per

annum.

8.2 These include balances of Rs.2.56 (2017: Rs.16.34) million held with United Bank Limited and Rs.384.15
(2017: Rs.152.87) million held with Khushhali Bank Limited (related parties).

INVESTMENTS

Investments by Category

Designated at fair value through profit or loss

Government securities
Equity securities - listed
Debt securities - quoted
Debt securities - unquoted

Available-for-sale

Equity securities - listed
Debt securities - quoted
Debt securities - unquoted
Commercial paper

Loans and receivables

Placements and term deposit receipts
Less: Provision for impairment

9.1 - 251,675
9.2 - 472,250
9.3 85,715 233,511
9.3 420,807 671,364
506,522 1,628,800
- 45,658
9.4 - -
9.4 - -
9.5 - 195,247
- 240,905
- 309,430
; (49,430)
9.6 - 260,000

506,522 2,129,705




9.1 Government securities - 'at fair value through profit or loss - held-for-trading’

Number of units

Balance as at June 30, 2018

Market Market value
Purchased Matured value as a as a % of
As at July | during the |Sold during| duringthe | As atJune | Carrying Market Unrealised % of net total
Name of investee company Note | 01,2017 year the year year 30, 2018 Value value gain / (loss) assets investments
------------ (Rupees in '000) ------------ %

Pakistan investment bonds - 10 years - 1,500 1,500 - - - - - - -
Pakistan investment bonds - 3 years - 1,500 1,500 - - - - - - -
Market treasury bills - 6 months - 500 500 - - - - - - -
Market treasury bills - 3 months - 32,560 21,970 10,590 - - - - - -
ljarah Sukuk 2,500 - 2,500 - - - - - - -

Total as at June 30, 2018

Total as at June 30, 2017

250,000

251,675

1,675




9.2 Listed equity securities - 'designated at fair value through profit or loss’

Number of shares Balance as at June 30, 2018 Par value as
percentage of
Market total paid up
Purchased value as a | Market value | capital of the
As at July | during the | Bonus /| Sold during | As at June | Carryin Market Unrealised % of net | as a % of total investee
Name of Investee Company 01, 2017 year right the year 30, 2018 value value loss assets investments company
----------- (Rupees in '000) ----------- %
Shares of listed companies - fully paid ordinary shares of Rs.10 each unless stated otherwise
Oil and gas exploration companies
Oil and Gas Development Company 445,000 71,000 - 516,000 - - - - 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Pakistan Petroleum Limited - 2,000 - 2,000 - - - - 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
- - - - 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Oil and gas marketing companies
Pakistan State Oil Company Limited 238,500 350,000 - 588,500 - - - - 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Fertilizer
Engro Fertilizers Limited 42,000 119,000 - 161,000 - - - - 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Engro Corporation Limited 3,500 60,000 - 63,500 - - - - 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Fauji Fertilizer Bin Qasim Limited 23,500 124,000 - 147,500 - - - - 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Fauji Fertilizer Company Limited 332,000 22,000 - 354,000 - - - - 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Fatima Fertilizer Company Limited - 2,500 - 2,500 - - - - 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
- - - - 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Technology and communication
Pakistan Telecommunication Limited “A” - 152,500 - 152,500 - - - - 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Power generation and distribution
K-Electric Limited* 1,383,000 2,726,500 - 4,109,500 - - - - 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
The Hub Power Company Limited 16,000 24,500 - 40,500 - - - - 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Kot Addu Power Company Limited 4,000 3,500 - 7,500 - - - - 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
- - - - 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Commercial banks
Askari Bank Limited 111,500 168,500 - 280,000 - - - - 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Bank Alfalah Limited 35,000 40,500 - 75,500 - - - - 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
The Bank of Punjab Limited 1,137,000 9,824,000 - 10,961,000 - - - - 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Faysal Bank Limited 36,500 10,500 - 47,000 - - - - 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Habib Bank Limited - 500 - 500 - - - - 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
National Bank of Pakistan 48,000 36,000 - 84,000 - - - - 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

- - - - 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%



Number of shares

Balance as at June 30, 2018

Par value as
percentage of
Market total paid up
Purchased value as a | Market value | capital of the
As at July | during the | Bonus /| Sold during | As at June | Carryin Market Unrealised % of net | as a % of total investee
Name of Investee Company 01, 2017 year right the year 30, 2018 value value loss assets investments company
----------- (Rupees in '000) ----------- %
Shares of listed companies - fully paid ordinary shares of Rs.10 each unless stated otherwise
Cement
D.G. Khan Cement Company Limited 126,500 57,000 - 183,500 - - - - 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Fauji Cement Company Limited 192,500 189,000 - 381,500 - - - - 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Maple Leaf Cement Factory Limited 80,500 90,500 - 171,000 - - - - 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Power Cement Limited 31,000 140,000 - 171,000 - - - - 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
- - - - 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Food and personal care products
Engro Foods Limited 107,000 172,000 - 279,000 - - - - 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Cable and electrical goods
Pak Elektron Limited 719,000 1,275,000 - 1,994,000 - - - - 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Refinery
Attock Refinery Limited 209,000 265,500 - 474,500 - - - - 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Engineering
International Steels Limited 80,000 465,000 - 545,000 - - - - 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Amreli Steels Limited - 2,000 - 2,000 - - - - 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Crescent Steel and Allied Products - 1,000 - 1,000 - - - - 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
- - - - 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Textile Composite
Nishat (Chunian) Limited 112,500 101,500 - 214,000 - - - - 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Nishat Mills Limited 115,500 102,500 - 218,000 - - - - 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Gul Ahmed Textile Mills Ltd - 4,000 - 4,000 - - - - 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
- - - - 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Insurance
Adamijee Insurance Company Limited - 2,000 - 2,000 - - - - 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Total as at June 30, 2018 - - -
Total as at June 30, 2017 472,090 470,160 (1,930)

*

These have a face value of Rs.3.5 per share.




9.3 Debt securities - Term Finance Certificates (TFCs) and Sukuks - 'Designated at fair value through profit or loss'
(face value of Rs.5,000 each unless otherwise stated)

Number of certificates Balance as at June 30, 2018 Market Market value
Purchased Matured value as a % as a % of
As at July | during the during the Sold during | As at June | Carrying Market Unrealised of net total
Particulars 01, 2017 year year the year 30, 2018 value value (loss) / gain assets investments
----------- (Rupees in '000) %
Quoted
Personal goods
Azgard Nine Limited - TFC (September 20, 2005) 1,000 - - - 1,000 1,366
Less: Provision for impairment (see note 9.3.1) (1,366)
- - - 0.00% 0.00%
Commercial banks
MCB Bank Limited - TFC (June 20, 2014) 21,300 - - 10,000 11,300 57,176 56,504 (672) 4.34% 11.16%
Bank Alfalah Limited - TFC (February 20, 2013) 10,100 - - 10,100 - - - - 0.00% 0.00%
Soneri Bank Limited - TFC (July 08, 2015) 13,000 - - 11,000 2,000 10,279 10,173 (106) 0.78% 2.01%
Dawood Hercules Corporation Limited -
Sukuk (November 16, 2017)* - 890 - 700 190 19,000 19,038 38 1.46% 3.76%
86,456 85,715 (741) 6.59% 16.92%
Chemical
Engro Corporation Limited - TFC (July 10, 2014) 890 - - 890 - - - - 0.00% 0.00%
Electricity
K-Electric Limited - TFC (August 13, 2012) 500 500 - - - - 0.00% 0.00%
Total debt securities - quoted as at June 30, 2018 86,456 85,715 (741)
Total debt securities - quoted as at June 30, 2017 228,890 233,511 4,621
Unguoted
Personal goods
Azgard Nine Limited - PPTFC (December 04, 2007) 7,000 - - - 7,000 10,579
Less: Provision for impairment (see note 9.3.1) (10,579)
- - - 0.00% 0.00%
Household goods
New Allied Electronics Industries Limited -
TFC (May 15, 2007) 18,000 - - - 18,000 18,094
Less: Provision for impairment (see note 9.3.1) (18,094)
- - - 0.00% 0.00%
New Allied Electronics Industries Limited -
Sukuk (December 03, 2007) 10,000 - - - 10,000 35,000
Less: Provision for impairment (see note 9.3.1) (35,000)
- - - 0.00% 0.00%
Commercial banks
Bank AL Habib Limited - TFC (March 17, 2016) 37,200 - - 37,200 - - - - 0.00% 0.00%
JS Bank Limited - TFC (December 14, 2016) 48,000 - - 39,000 9,000 45,303 45,305 2 3.48% 8.94%
JS Bank Limited - TFC (December 29, 2017)* - 1,000 - - 1,000 99,980 99,980 - 7.68% 19.74%
Standard Chartered Bank Limtied -
TFC (June 29, 2012) 8,300 - - 8,300 - - - - 0.00% 0.00%
Habib Bank Limited - TFC (February 19, 2016)* 500 2,822 - 2,750 572 57,300 56,440 (860) 4.34% 11.14%
202,583 201,725 (858) 15.50% 39.83%




Number of certificates Balance as at June 30, 2018 Market Market value
Purchased Matured value as a % as a % of
As at July | during the during the Sold during | As at June | Carrying Market Unrealised of net total
Particulars 01, 2017 year year the year 30, 2018 value value (loss) / gain assets investments
----------- (Rupees in '000) %
Fertilizer
Engro Fertilizers Limited - Sukuk (July 09, 2014) 3,600 - - - 3,600 9,765 9,545 (220) 0.73% 1.88%
Investment bank
Jahangir Siddiqui & Co. Ltd. (July 18, 2017) - 30,000 - - 30,000 150,000 151,789 1,789 11.66% 29.97%
Chemical
Ghani Gases Limited - Sukuk (February 02, 2017)* 500 - - 407 93 7,436 7,436 (0) 0.57% 1.47%
Electricity
WAPDA - TFC (September 27, 2013) 20,000 - - - 20,000 50,425 50,312 (113) 3.87% 9.93%
Financial services
Security Leasing Corporation Limited -
Sukuk Il (September 19, 2007) 5,000 - - - 5,000 5,577
Less: Provision for impairment (see note 9.3.1) (5,577)
- - - 0.00% 0.00%
Cable and electrical goods
TPL Trakker Limited - Sukuk (April 13, 2016) ** 20 - - 20 - - - - 0.00% 0.00%
Total debt securities - quoted as at June 30, 2018 420,210 420,807 597
Total debt securities - quoted as at June 30, 2017 663,674 671,364 7,690
Total as at June 30, 2018 506,665 506,522 (143)
Total as at June 30, 2017 892,564 904,875 12,311

*  The nominal value of these TFCs and Sukuks is Rs.100,000 each.

**  The nominal value of this Sukuk is Rs.1,000,000 each.

9.3.1 Due to continuous default on repayment of coupon by the issuer, the Fund has classified said investment as non-performing debt securities.

against.

9.3.2

Significant terms and conditions of term finance certificates outstanding at the year end are as follows:

Name of security Number of certificates Interest rate per annum Maturity

MCB Bank Limited 11,300 6M KIBOR + 1.15% June 19, 2022
Soneri Bank Limited 2,000 6M KIBOR + 1.35% July 08, 2023
Dawood Hercules Corporation Limited 190 3M KIBOR + 1.00% November 16, 2022
JS Bank Limited 9,000 6M KIBOR + 1.40% December 16, 2023
JS Bank Limited 1,000 6M KIBOR + 1.40% N/A

Habib Bank Limited 572 6M KIBOR + 0.50% February 19, 2026
Engro Fertilizers Limited 3,600 6M KIBOR + 1.75% June 19, 2019
Jahangir Siddiqui & Co. Ltd. 30,000 6M KIBOR + 1.40% June 18, 2022
Ghani Gases Limited 93 3M KIBOR + 1.00% February 02, 2023
WAPDA 20,000 6M KIBOR + 1.00% September 27, 2021

The Fund has suspended further accrual of mark-up there




9.4 Debt securities - Term Finance Certificates (TFCs) and Sukuks - 'Available-for-sale’
(face value of Rs.5,000 each unless otherwise stated)

Number of certificates Balance as at June 30, 2018
Market value
Purchased As at Market value as as a % of
As at July | during the | Sold / matured | June 30, Carrying Appreciation a % of net total
Particulars Note | 01, 2017 year during the year 2018 value Market value|| (diminution) assets investments
------------- (Rupees in '000) %
Quoted
Personal goods
Azgard Nine Limited - TFC (September 20, 2005) 21,150 - - 21,150 21,702
Less: Provision for impairment 9.3.1 (21,702)
- - - 0.00% 0.00%
Azgard Nine Limited - TFC (May 17, 2010) 10,000 - - 10,000 27,863
Less: Provision for impairment 9.3.1 (27,863)
- - - 0.00% 0.00%
Financial services
Trust Investment Bank Limited - TFC (July 04, 2008) 23,877 - - 23,877 44,499
Less: Provision for impairment 9.3.1 (44,499)
- - - 0.00% 0.00%
Total debt securities - quoted as at June 30, 2018 - - - 0.00% 0.00%
Total debt securities - quoted as at June 30, 2017 - - -
Unquoted
Household goods
New Allied Electronics Industries (Private)
Limited - TFC (May 15, 2007) 13,000 - - 13,000 13,068
Less: Provision for impairment 9.3.1 (13,068)
- - - 0.00% 0.00%
Chemical
Agritech Limited - PPTFC (January 14, 2008) 147,000 - - 147,000 558,988
Less: Provision for impairment 9.3.1 (558,988)
- - - 0.00% 0.00%
Agritech Limited - PPTFC (November 30, 2007) 58,000 - - 58,000 254,223
Less: Provision for impairment 9.3.1 (254,223)
- - - 0.00% 0.00%
Agritech Limited - Sukuk (August 06, 2008) 3,800 - - 3,800 14,453
Less: Provision for impairment 9.3.1 (14,453)

- - - 0.00% 0.00%



Number of certificates Balance as at June 30, 2018
Purchased | Sold / matured As at Market value as || Market value
As at July | during the |/ settled during | June 30, Carrying Appreciation a % of net as a % of
Particulars Note | 01, 2017 year the year 2018 value Market value|| (diminution) assets total
------------- (Rupees in '000) %
Personal goods
Azgard Nine Limited - PPTFC (December 04, 2007) 33,000 - - 33,000 49,870
Less: Provision for impairment 9.3.1 (49,870)
- - - 0.00% 0.00%
Financial services
Security Leasing Corporation Limited -
Sukuk II (September 19, 2007) 15,000 - - 15,000 16,451
Less: Provision for impairment 9.3.1 (16,451)
- - - 0.00% 0.00%
Security Leasing Corporation Limited -
PPTFC (March 28, 2006) 9.4.1 19,000 - 19,000 - - - - 0.00% 0.00%
Total debt securities - unquoted as at June 30, 2018 - - - 0.00% 0.00%

Total debt securities - unquoted as at June 30, 2017 - - B

9.4.1 Durnig the year, the Fund has received Rs.1.46 million as full and final settlement against the said term finance certificate.

Commercial paper 30 June 30 June
2018 2017
Note --- (Rupees in '000) ---
JS Global Capital Limited - 97,289
Pak Electron Limited - 97,958
- 195,247

Placements and term deposit receipts

Pre-IPO placement 9.6.1 77,778 83,611
Term deposit receipts - 260,000
Other placement 9.6.2 - 49,430
77,778 393,041
Less: Provision for impairment (77,778) (133,041)
- 260,000

9.6.1 This represents Pre-IPO disbursement to Cement Company (the Company) made on January 14, 2008. As per the requirement of the Trust Deed, the IPO was to take place within 270 days of the
initial disbursement, however, the Company has not yet arranged the IPO. Accordingly, the Management Company decided to suspend mark-up on this placement from October 29, 2008 and has recorded
full provision against the said placement (including principal and interest) in accordance with circular no. 33 of 2012 issued by the SECP.

During the year, the Company has paid Rs.5.83 million against the said disbursement. Accordingly, the Management Company has reversed the provision for impairment with the amount received.

9.6.2 Durnig the year, the Fund has received Rs.4.92 million as full and final settlement against the said placement with a Leasing Company.



9.7

9.8

Preference shares - 'Available-for-sale’

Balance as at
Number of shares June 30, 2018
Sold /
Purchased converted As at Market value ||Market value as
As at July | during the during the June 30, Carrying as a % of net a % of total
Name of security Note | 01, 2017 year period 2018 value Market value assets investments

--- (Rupees in '000) ---
Personal goods
Azgard Nine Limited 9.7.1 200,000 - - 200,000 - - 0.00% 0.00%

9.7.1 These represent cumulative, non-voting, convertible and redeemable preference shares having a face value of Rs.10 each and carrying profit at the rate of 8.95% per annum. These were due for
redemption on September 30, 2009 but due to default by the Company, the Fund has made full provision of Rs.11.25 million against the amount outstanding.

Details of non-compliant investments

Value of Provision Value of
investment | held / net investment
Type of before impairment after Value as a % of
Name of non-compliant investment investment Note provision made provision net assets Limit
----------- (Rupees in '000) %

9.8.1 Regulation 55 (5) of the NBFC Regulations issued by the SECP requires details of investments not compliant with the investment criteria specified for the category assigned to open-end collective
investment schemes to be disclosed in the financial statements of the Fund. Details of such non compliant investment is as follows:

JS Bank Limited Term finance 9.3 145,285 - 145,285 11.16% 10.00%
Jahangi Siddiqui & Co. Ltd. certificates 9.3 151,789 - 151,789 11.66% 10.00%

9.8.2 Circular No. 16 dated 07 July 2010 issued by the SECP requires details of investments not compliant with the investment criteria specified for the category assigned to open-end collective investment
schemes or the investment requirements of the constitutive documents of the Fund to be disclosed in the annual accounts of the Fund. The table below gives the details of such non compliant investments.

Azgard Nine Limited Preference share 9.7 850 (850) - 0.00% 10.00%
Type of
Name of non-compliant investment investment || Exposure type % of issue Limit
Trust Investment Bank Limited (July 04, 2008) Per issue 20.00% 10.00%
Agritech Limited (November 30, 2007) Term finance Per issue 19.00% 10.00%
New Allied Electronics Industries (Private) Limited (May 15, 2007) certificates Per issue 17.00% 10.00%
Agritech Limited (January 14, 2008) Per issue 11.00% 10.00%

Security Leasing Corporation Limited (September 19, 2007) Sukuk Per issue 13.00% 10.00%



10. ADVANCE TAX

1.

12.

13.

The income of the Fund is exempt from tax under clause 99 of Part | of the Second Schedule of the Income Tax Ordinance 2001 (ITO
2001). Further, the Fund is exempt under clause 47(B) of Part IV of Second Schedule of ITO 2001 from withholding of tax under
section 150, 150A, 151 and 233 of ITO 2001. The Federal Board of Revenue through a circular “C.No.1 (43) DG (WHT)/ 2008-Vol.lI-
66417-R” dated May 12, 2015, made it mandatory to obtain exemption certificates under section 159 (1) of the ITO 2001 from
Commissioner Inland Revenue (CIR). Prior to receiving tax exemption certificate(s) from CIR various withholding agents have deducted
advance tax under section 150, 150A and 151 of ITO 2001. The management is confident that the same shall be refunded after filing
Income Tax Return for Tax Year 2018.

June 30, June 30,
2018 2017
MARK-UP RECEIVABLE Note @ -——-- (Rupees in '000) ------
Mark-up receivable on:

- Government of Pakistan ijara sukuk - 36
- Term finance certificates and sukuks 8,862 12,682
- Deposit accounts 1.1 5,965 10,381
- Margin trading system (MTS) - 2,018
- Term deposit receipt (TDR) - 1,705
14,827 26,822

11.1 This includes receivable of Rs.0.11 (2017: Rs.0.25) million on balances maintained with United Bank Limited and Rs.2.36 (2017:
Rs.0.88) million on balances maintained with Khushhali Bank Limited (related parties).

DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Property - held for sale 121 - 12,000
Exposure deposit with National Clearing Company
Pakistan Limited (NCCPL) against MTS 6,615 186,658
Security deposit with NCCPL 3,000 74,500
Other receivables 357 1,989
9,972 275,147
Less: Provision for impairment - (12,000)
9,972 263,147

12.1 This represented property acquired in a partial settlement of a placement with a leasing company under the settlement agreement
dated July 12, 2012. The Securites and Exchange Commission of Pakistan vide its letter no. SCD/AMCW/MF/JD-
VS/UGIF/324/2011 has provided 'no objection' for this settlement transaction. The Fund was required to dispose of the property
within one year of the acquisition which has been further extended till June 30, 2018 by SECP vide its letter no.
SCD/AMCW/UBLFML/96/2017 dated October 10, 2017. During the year, the said property has been disposed off to a third party
at a net price of Rs.6.86 million.

PAYABLE TO THE MANAGEMENT COMPANY

Remuneration payable 13.1 1,823 6,457
Sales tax on management fee 13.2 237 839
Allocated expenses payable 13.3 239 902
Selling and marketing expenses payable 13.4 472 -
Sales load payable 19 -
Other payables 71 183
2,861 8,381

13.1 The Management Company is entitled to remuneration for services rendered to the Fund under the provisions of the amended
NBFC Regulations dated November 25, 2015, of an amount not exceeding 2 percent of the average daily net assets of the Fund.
The Management Company has charged remuneration at the rate of 1.5% (2017: 1.5%) of average annual net assets of the
Funds. The remuneration is paid to the Management Company on a monthly basis in arrears.

13.2 Sales tax at the rate of 13% (2017: 13%) on gross value of management fee is applied under the provisions of Sindh Sales Tax
on Services Act, 2011.

13.3 As per regulation 60(3)(s) of amended NBFC Regulations dated November 25, 2015, fee and expenses pertaining to registrar
services, accounting, operation and valuation services related to a Collective Investment Scheme (CIS) are chargeable to the
scheme, maximum up to 0.1% of the average annual net assets or the actual cost, whichever is lower. Accordingly, the
Management Company has charged 0.1% of the average annual net assets with effect from November 25, 2015, being lower.

13.4 Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan vide Circular No. 40 of 2016 dated December 30, 2016, has allowed Asset
Management Companies to charge Selling and Marketing expenses to its CIS's at a maximum cap of 0.4% per annum of net
assets of the Fund or actual expenses whichever is lower. Accordingly, the Management Company has charged 0.4% on daily
net assets of the Fund, being the lower amount.



14. PAYABLE TO THE TRUSTEE

15.

16.

17.

Remuneration payable 141 173 428
Sales tax on remuneration payable 141 23 56
196 484

14.1 The Trustee is entitled to a remuneration for services rendered to the Fund under the provisions of the Trust Deed and Offering
Document as per the tariff specified therein, based on the daily net asset value of the Fund. The remuneration is paid to the
Trustee monthly in arrears.

As per the Trust Deed and Offering Document, the tariff structure applicable to the Fund in respect of trustee fee for the year
ended June 30, 2018 is as follows:

Net assets value Tariff per annum

Up to Rs.1,000 million Rs.0.6 million or 0.17% p.a. of net assets of the Fund,
whichever is higher

Rs.1.7 million plus 0.085% p.a. of net assets of the Fund,
on amount exceeding exceeding Rs.1,000 million

Rs.5.1 million plus 0.07% p.a. of net assets of the Fund,
on amount exceeding exceeding Rs.5,000 million

Rs.1,000 million to Rs.5,000 million
On amount exceeding Rs.5,000 million
14.2 Sales tax at the rate of 13% (2017: 13%) on the remuneration of the Trustee is applied under the provisions of Sindh Sales Tax
on Services Act, 2011.
ANNUAL FEE PAYABLE TO THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION OF PAKISTAN (SECP)

This represents annual fee payable to SECP in accordance with the NBFC Regulations whereby the Fund is required to pay to SECP
an amount equal to 0.095% (2017: 0.095%) of the average daily net assets of the Fund.

TOTAL EXPENSE RATIO
Total Expense Ratio of the Fund is 2.28% as on June 30, 2018 (2017: 2.43%) and this includes 0.38% (2017: 0.45%) representing

Government Levy, Sindh Worker"s Welfare Fund and SECP Fee. This ratio is within the maximum limit of 2% prescribed under the
NBFC Regulation 60 (5) for a collective investment scheme categorised as an aggressive fixed income scheme.

30 June 30 June
2018 2017
Note == (Rupees in '000) -----
ACCRUED AND OTHER LIABILITIES
Provision for indirect duties and taxes 171 24,359 24,359
Auditors' remuneration 356 356
Brokerage payable 514 783
Withholding tax deducted at source payable 640 3,415
Capital gains tax payable 764 15,225
Provision for Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund (SWWF) 17.2 10,043 7,101
Legal and professional charges payable 83 72
Custodian fee payable 83 83
Transaction charges payable to NCCPL 38 -
Other payables 2,735 748
39,615 52,142

17.1 Provision for indirect duties and taxes (Federal Excise Duty on remuneration to the Management Company)

The Finance Act, 2013 enlarged the scope of Federal Excise Duty (FED) on financial services to include Asset Management
Companies (AMCs) with effect from June 13, 2013. As the asset management services rendered by the Management Company
of the Fund were already subject to provincial sales tax on services levied by the Sindh Revenue Board, which is being charged
to the Fund, the Management Company was of the view that further levy of FED was not justified.

On September 4, 2013, a Constitutional Petition was filed in the Honourable Sindh High Court (SHC) jointly by various Asset
Management Companies, together with their representatives of Collective Investment Schemes through their trustees,
challenging the levy of FED.

During the previous year, the SHC passed an order whereby all notices, proceedings taken or pending, orders made, duty
recovered or actions taken under the Federal Excise Act, 2005 in respect of the rendering or providing of services (to the extent
as challenged in any relevant petition) were set aside. In response to this, the Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue has filed a
Civil Petition for leave to appeal in the Supreme Court of Pakistan which is pending adjudication.



17.2

With effect from July 01, 2016, FED on services provided or rendered by Non-Banking Financial Institutions dealing in services
which are subject to provincial sales tax has been withdrawn by the Finance Act, 2016.

In view of the above, the Fund has discontinued making further provision in respect of FED on remuneration of the Management
Company with effect from July 01, 2016. However, as a matter of abundant caution, the provision for FED made prior to this
period has been maintained by the Fund which at June 30, 2018 aggregates to Rs.24.36 (2017: Rs.24.360) million. Had the
provision for FED not been recorded in the financial statements of the Fund, the net assets value of the Fund as at June 30, 2018
would have been higher by Rs.1.67 (2017: Re.0.36) per unit.

Provision for Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund (SWWF)

As a consequence of the 18th amendment to the Constitution of Pakistan, in May 2015 the Sindh Workers" Welfare Fund Act
(SWWF Act), 2014 had been passed by the Government of Sindh as a result of which every industrial establishment located in
the Province of Sindh, the total income of which in any accounting year is not less than Rs.0.5 million, is required to pay Sindh
Workers" Welfare Fund (SWWF) in respect of that year a sum equal to two percent of such income. The matter was taken up by
the MUFAP with the Sindh Revenue Board (SRB) collectively on behalf of various asset management companies (including the
Management Company of the Fund) whereby it was contested that mutual funds should be excluded from the ambit of the
SWWF Act as these were not industrial establishments but were pass through investment vehicles and did not employ workers.
The SRB held that mutual funds were included in the definition of financial institutions as per the Financial Institution (Recovery of
Finances) Ordinance, 2001 and were, hence, required to register and pay SWWF under the SWWF Act. Thereafter, MUFAP has
taken up the matter with the Sindh Finance Ministry to have CISs / mutual funds excluded from the applicability of SWWF which
is currently pending. However, as a matter of abundant caution, MUFAP has recommended to all its members to record a
provision for SWWF from the date of enactment of SWWF Act, 2014 (i.e. starting from May 21, 2015).

The provision for SWWF is now being made on a daily basis. Had the provision for SWWF not been recorded in the financial
statements of the Fund, the net assets value of the Fund as at June 30, 2018 would have been higher by Re.0.69 (2017:
Re.0.11) per unit.

30 June 30 June
2018 2017
Note ~  =-==--- (Rupees in '000) ------
18. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
18.1 CONTINGENCIES
There were no contingencies as at June 30, 2018 and June 30, 2017.
18.2 COMMITMENTS
Future stock contracts - 475,375
19. FINANCIAL INCOME
Mark-up on:
- Bank balances 111,862 100,549
- Term deposit receipts 12,736 5,769
- Government securities 8,809 86,846
- Commercial papers 4,753 4,516
- Term finance certificates 64,686 52,098
- Margin trading system (MTS) 5,272 5,245
208,118 255,024
Dividend income 76 -
208,194 255,024
20. AUDITORS' REMUNERATION
Annual audit fee 200 200
Half yearly review fee 115 115
Other certifications and services 130 130
445 445
Sales tax 36 36
Out of pocket expenses 67 78
20.1 548 559

21.

20.1 The figures presented for June 30, 2017, represents remuneration of predecessor auditors.

TAXATION

The Fund's income is exempt from Income Tax as per clause (99) of Part | of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001
subject to the condition that not less than 90% of the accounting income for the year as reduced by capital gains whether realised or
unrealised is distributed to the unit holders in cash. The Fund is also exempt from the provisions of section 113 (minimum tax) under
clause 11A of Part IV of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. The Management Company intends to distribute
cash dividend of at least 90% of the Fund's net accounting income available for distribution to its unit holders, accordingly, no provision

for taxation has been recognized in these financial statements.




22. TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES OUTSTANDING WITH CONNECTED PERSONS / RELATED PARTIES

Connected persons / related parties comprise of United Bank Limited (Holding Company of the Management Company), UBL Fund Managers Limited
(Management Company), Al-Ameen Financial Services (Private) Limited, being entity under the common management or directorship, Central Depository
Company of Pakistan Limited as trustee of the Fund, the directors key management personnel and other associated undertakings and connected persons.
Connected persons also include any person beneficially owing directly or indirectly 10% or more of the units in the issue / net assets of the Fund.

Transactions with connected persons essentially comprise sale and redemption of units, fee on account of managing the affairs of the Fund, other charges,
sale and purchase of investments and distribution payments to connected persons. The transactions with connected persons are in the normal course of
business, at contracted rates and at terms determined in accordance with market rates.

Remuneration payable to the Management Company and the Trustee is determined in accordance with the provision of the NBFC Rules, NBFC Regulations
and constitutive documents of the Fund respectively.

Details of transactions and balances at year end with related parties / connected persons, other than those which have been disclosed elsewhere in these
financial statements, are as follows:

Funds under Directors and Other connected
Management Associated common key persons / related
company companies Trustee management executives parties™*
(Rupees in '000)
June 30, 2018

Transactions during the year

Mark-up on bank accounts - 366 - - - -
Bank charges - 29 - - - -
Units issued (units in '000) 50,000 - - - 1 649,519
Units redeemed (units in '000) 264,853 485,830 - - 6,383 1,117,917
Sale of securities - - - 226,916 - -
Remuneration * 54,640 - 4,048 - - -
Allocated expenses by the

Management Company 3,224 - - - - .
Selling and marketing expenses 472 - - - - -
Listing fee - - - - - 25

June 30, 2017

Transactions during the year

Mark-up on bank accounts - 18,817 - - - 60
Bank charges - 29 - - - -
Units issued (units in '000) 328,000 1,267,631 - - 27,499 1,201,200
Units redeemed (units in '000) 121,258 981,756 - - 21,123 565,397
Cash dividend - 73,921 - - 289 4,797
Purchase of securities - 794,882 - 1,340,642 - -
Sale of securities - 258,681 - 845,461 - -
Remuneration * 72,024 - 5,010 - - -
Allocated expenses by the

Management Company 4,249 - - - - -
Listing fee - - - - - 50

Funds under Directors and Other connected
Management Associated common key persons / related
company companies Trustee management executives parties™*
(Rupees in '000)
June 30, 2018

Balances held

Units held (units in '000) - - - - 1,261 5,921
Units held (Rupees in '000) - - - - 112,630 528,868
Bank balances - 386,702 - - - -
Mark-up receivable - 2,472 - - - -
Securtity deposit - - 100 - - -
Remuneration payable® 2,060 - 196 - - -
Sales load and other payables 89 2 - - - -
Allocated expenses payable 239 - - - - -
Selling and marketing expenses payable 472 - - - - -

June 30, 2017

Balances held

Units held (units in '000) 2,475 13,215 - - 76 7,597
Units held (Rupees in '000) 210,131 1,121,850 - - 6,427 644,936
Bank balances - 152,868 - - - -
Mark-up receivable - 1,123

Securtity deposit - - 100 - - -
Remuneration payable* 7,296 - 484 - - -
Sales load and other payables 183 - - - - -
Allocated expenses payable 902 - - - - -

* Remuneration for the year is inclusive of sales tax.
** These include unit holders beneficially owing 10% or more of the units in the issue / net assets of the Fund.



23. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

231

23.2

The Fund's objective in managing risks is the creation and protection of Unit holders" value. Risk is inherent in the Fund's activities, but it is
managed through monitoring and controlling activities which are primarily set up to be performed based on limits established by the
Management Company, Fund's constitutive documents and the regulations and directives of the SECP. These limits reflect the business
strategy and market environment of the Fund as well as the level of the risk that Fund is willing to accept. The Board of Directors of the
Management Company supervises the overall risk management approach within the Fund. The Fund is exposed to market risk, credit risk
and liquidity risk arising from the financial instruments it holds.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes in market variables such
as interest rates, foreign exchange rates and other prices.

(i) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk arises from the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market interest rates on the fair value of financial
instruments and future cash flows. The interest rate environment is monitored on a regular basis and the portfolio mix of fixed and
floating rate securities is altered. The Fund's investment in fixed interest rate securities expose it to fair value interest rate risk and
investments in variable interest rate securities expose the Fund to cash flow inerest rate risk.

a) Sensitivity analysis of variable rate instruments

As at June 30, 2018, the Fund holds variable rate term finance certificates and sukuks which are classified as 'designated at
fair value through profit or loss' and bank balances, exposing the Fund to interest rate risk. In case of 100 basis points
increase / decrease in interest rates at year end, the net assets attributable to unit holders of the Fund and net income for
the year would be higher / lower by Rs.13.18 (2017: Rs.3.80) million.

b) Sensitivity analysis of fixed rate instruments
As at June 30, 2018, the Fund does not hold any fixed rate instruments and is not exposed to fair value interest rate risk.

Yield / interest rate sensitivity position for on balance sheet financial instruments is based on the earlier of contractual
repricing or maturity date. The composition of the fund investment may change over time. Accordingly, the sensitivity
analysis prepared as at June 30, 2018 is not necessarily indicative of the impact on the Fund's net assets of future
movements in interest rates.

June 30, 2018
Exposed to interest rate risk

More than
three
months
Interest rate Up to three and up to More than Not exposed to
(%) months one year one year interest rate risk Total
(Rupees in '000)
On-balance sheet financial
instruments
Financial assets
Bank balances 4.00 to 7.50 811,922 - - 50 811,972
Investments classified as
'‘Designated at fair value through profit or loss' - - 506,522 - 506,522
Mark-up receivable - - - 14,827 14,827
Deposits and other receivables - - - 9,972 9,972
811,922 - 506,522 24,849 1,343,293
Financial liabilities
Payable to the Management Company - - - 2,861 2,861
Payable to the Trustee - - - 196 196
Accrued and other liabilities - - - 3,773 3,773
- - - 6,830 6,830

On-balance sheet gap 811,922 - 506,522 18,019 1,336,463




23.3

June 30, 2017

On-balance sheet financial
instruments

Financial assets

Bank balances 3.75-7.25 2,891,134 - - 50 2,891,184

Investments classified as:
- 'designated at fair value through profit or loss' - - 1,869,705 - 1,869,705
- 'loans and receivables' 260,000 - - - 260,000
Mark-up receivable - - - 26,822 26,822
Receivable against settlement of spread transactions - - - 98,942 98,942
Receivable against margin trading system (MTS) 358,681 358,681
Deposit and other receivables - - - 263,147 263,147
3,151,134 - 1,869,705 747,642 5,768,481

Financial liabilities

Payable to the Management Company - - - 8,381 8,381
Payable to the Trustee - - - 484 484
Accrued and other liabilities - - - 2,006 2,006
- - - 10,871 10,871
On-balance sheet gap 3,151,134 - 1,869,705 736,771 5,757,610

There is no off-balance sheet financial instrument that exists as at year ended June 30, 2018 and June 30, 2017.
(ii) Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
foreign exchange rates. The Fund does not have any financial instruments in foreign currencies and hence is not exposed to such
risk.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Fund will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities. Liquidity
risk arises because of the possibility that the Fund could be required to pay its liabilities earlier than expected. The Fund is exposed to cash
redemptions of its redeemable units on a regular basis. Units are redeemable at the unit holder’s option based on the Fund‘s net asset
value per unit at the time of redemption calculated in accordance with the Fund‘s constitutive documents.

In order to manage the Fund"s overall liquidity, the Fund has the ability to withhold daily redemption requests in excess of ten percent of
the units in issue and such request would be treated as redemption requests qualifying for being processed on the next business day.
Such procedure would continue until the outstanding redemption requests come down to a level below ten percent of the units then in
issue. The Fund did not withhold any significant redemption during the period. Further, the Fund also has the ability to suspend redemption
of units with approval of Board of Directors of the Management Company in extraordinary circumstances.

The table below summaries the maturity profile of the Fund's financial liabilities. The analysis into relevant maturity groupings is based on
the remaining period at the end of the reporting period to the contractual maturity date.

Within 1 1to3 3to12 1to 5
month months months  years Total
June 30,2018 e (Rupees in '000) --------======munnmmun=ae
Financial liabilities
Payable to the Management Company 2,861 - - - 2,861
Payable to the Trustee 196 - - - 196
Accrued and other liabilities 3,443 330 - - 3,773
Total liabilities 6,500 330 - - 6,830
Within 1 1to 3 3to12 1to 5
month months months years Total
June 30,2017 e (Rupees in '000) --------=--====m=mmmmnm
Financial liabilities
Payable to the Management Company 8,381 - - - 8,381
Payable to the Trustee 484 - - - 484
Accrued and other liabilities 1,676 330 - - 2,006

Total liabilities 10,541 330 - - 10,871




23.4 Credit risk

23.5

23.6

Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss to the Fund by failing to discharge its
obligation. The Fund's policy is to enter into financial contracts with reputable counter parties in accordance with the internal guidelines,
offering document and regulatory requirements. The table below analyses the Fund's maximum exposure to credit risk:

June 30, June 30,
2018 2017
--- (Rupees in '000) ---

Bank balances 811,972 2,891,184
Term finance certificates and sukuks 506,522 904,875

All deposits with Banks, CDC and NCCPL are highly rated and risk of default is considered minimal.
The analysis below summarizes the credit quality of the Fund"s portfolio in total as on June 30, 2018 and June 30, 2017:

Bank balances by rating category

AAA 0.50% 15.79%
AA-to AA+ 8.61% 75.14%
A-to A+ 90.88% 5.53%
Others 0.01% 3.54%
Total 100% 100%

Term finance certificates by rating category

AAA 21.09% 14.36%
AA-to AA+ 46.75% 16.62%
A-to A+ 12.42% 57.89%
Others 19.74% 11.12%

100% 100%

Concentration of credit risk exists when changes in economic or industry factors affect the group of counterparties whose aggregate credit
exposure is significant in relation to the Fund’s total credit exposure. The Fund‘s portfolio of financial assets is broadly diversified and
transactions are entered into with diverse credit worthy counterparties thereby mitigating any significant concentration of credit risk.

Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide variety of causes associated with the processes, technology and
infrastructure supporting the Fund‘s operations either internally within the Fund or externally at the Fund's service providers, and from
external factors other than credit, market and liquidity risk such as those arising from legal and regulatory requirements and generally
accepted standards of investment management behavior. Operational risk arise from all of the Fund's activities.

The Fund's objective is to manage operational risk so as to balance limiting of financial losses and damage to its reputation with achieving
its investment objective of generating returns for investors.

The primary responsibility for the development and implementation of controls over operational risk rests with the board of directors. This
responsibility encompasses the controls in the following areas:

- requirements for appropriate segregation of duties between various functions, roles and responsibilities;
- requirements for the reconciliation and monitoring of transactions;

- compliance with regulatory and other legal requirements;

- documentation of controls and procedures;

- requirements for the periodic assessment of operational risk faced, and the adequacy of controls
and procedures to address the risk identified;

- ethical and business standards; and
- risk mitigation, including insurance where this is effective.
Unit holders' fund risk management

The Fund's capital is represented by redeemable units. The Fund is required by the NBFC Regulations, to maintain a minimum fund size of
Rs.100 million, to be maintained all the time during the life of the scheme. The units issued by the Fund provides an investor with the right
to require redemption for cash at a value proportionate to the unit holder's share in the Fund's net assets at the redemption date.

The Fund's objective in managing the unit holders' fund is to ensure a stable base to maximise returns to all investors and to manage
liquidity risk arising from redemption. In accordance with the risk management policies, the Fund endeavours to invest the subscriptions
received in appropriate investments while maintaining sufficient liquidity to meet redemption, such liquidity being augmented by disposal of
investments.



24. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
IFRS 13 - 'Fair Value Measurement' establishes a single source of guidance under IFRS for all fair value measurements and disclosures about fair value
measurement where such measurements are required as permitted by other IFRSs. It defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to

transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date (i.e. an exit price). Adoption of IFRS 13, has no affect on these
financial statements.

Financial assets which are tradable in an open market are revalued at the market prices prevailing on the statement of assets and liabilities date. The estimated fair
value of all other financial assets and financial liabilities is considered not significantly different from book value.

Level 1: Fair value measurements using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: Fair value measurements using inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as
prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: Fair value measurements using inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (i.e. unobservable inputs).

The table below analyse financial instruments measured at the end of the reporting half year by the level in the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value
measurement is categorised:

June 30, 2018

Carrying amount Fair value
Designated Loans and
fair value receivables
through | Other
profit or Available- financial
Note loss for-sale liabilities Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

(Rupees in '000)
Financial assets measured

measured at fair value
Term finance certificates and sukuks 241 506,522 - - 506,522 - 506,522 - 506,522

Financial assets not

measured at fair value 242
Bank balances - - 811,972 811,972
Mark-up receivable - - 14,827 14,827
Deposits and other receivables - - 9,972 9,972

- - 836,771 836,771

Financial liabilities not measured

at fair value 242
Payable to the Management Company - - 2,861 2,861
Payable to the Trustee - - 196 196
Accrued and other liabilities - - 3,773 3,773

- - 6,830 6,830

June 30, 2017

Carrying amount Fair value
Designated Loans and
fair value receivables
through | Other
profit or Available- financial
loss for-sale liabilities Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

(Rupees in '000)

Financial assets
measured at fair value

Equity securities 472,250 45,658 - 517,908 515,818 - - 515,818
Debt securities 904,875 - - 904,875 - 904,875 - 904,875
Government securities 251,675 - - 251,675 - 251,675 - 251,675
Commercial paper - 195,247 - 195,247 - 195,247 - 195,247
1,628,800 240,905 - 1,869,705 515,818 1,351,797 - 1,867,615

Financial assets not

measured at fair value
Bank balances - - 2,891,184 2,891,184
Term deposit receipts (TDR) - - 260,000 260,000
Mark-up receivable - - 26,822 26,822
Deposits and other receivables - - 263,147 263,147
Receivable against settlement of spread

transactions - - 98,942 98,942
Receivable against margin trading system (MTS) - 358,681 358,681

- - 3,898,776 3,898,776

Financial liabilities not measured
at fair value

Payable to the Management Company - - 8,381 8,381
Payable to the Trustee - - 484 484
Accrued and other liabilities - - 2,006 2,006
- - 10,871 10,871
During the year ended June 30, 2018, there were no transfers between level 1 and level 2 fair value measurements, and no transfer into and out of level 3 fair value
measurements.
241 Valuation techniques used in determination of fair values within level 2:

Investments in term finance certificates and sukus, issued by a company or a body corporate for the purpose of raising funds in the form of redeemable
capital, are valued on the basis of the rates announced by the Mutual Funds Association of Pakistan (MUFAP) in accordance with the methodology
prescribed by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan.

24.2 The Fund has not disclosed the fair values for these financial assets and financial liabilities, as these are either short term in nature or repriced periodically.
Therefore, their carrying amounts are a reasonable approximation of fair value.



25.

26.

26.

27.

28.

CORRESPONDING FIGURES
Certain prior year's figures have been re-arranged / re-classified, wherever necessary, to facilitate comparison

in the presentation in the current year. However, there are no material re-arrangements / re-classifications to
report.

SUPPLEMENTARY NON-FINANCIAL INFORMATION
The information regarding unit holding pattern, top ten brokers, members of the Investment Committee, fund

manager, meetings of the Board of Directors of the Management Company and rating of the Fund and the
Management Company has been disclosed in Annexure | to the financial statements.

GENERAL
26.1 Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand rupee.

26.2 Earnings per unit has not been disclosed as in the opinion of the Management Company, determination
of the cumulative weighted average number of outstanding units is not practicable.

NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE
The Board of Directors of the Management Company on July 02, 2018 approved a final distribution of
Rs.4.4223 per unit on the face value of Rs.100 each (i.e. 5.21%) amounting to Rs.64.45 million. The financial

statements of the Fund for the year ended June 30, 2018 do not include the effect of this distribution which will
be accounted for in the financial statements of the Fund for the year ending June 30, 2019.

DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

These financial statements were authorized for issue on August 28, 2018 by the Board of Directors of
the Management Company.

For UBL Fund Managers Limited
(Management Company)

--SD-- --SD-- --SD--
Chief Executive Officer Director Chief Financial Officer




U]

(i)

(iii)

SUPPLEMENTARY NON-FINANCIAL INFORMATION
AS REQUIRED UNDER RULES 6(D), (F), (G), (H), (I) AND (J)
OF THE 5TH SCHEDULE TO THE NON BANKING FINANCE COMPANIES
AND NOTIFIED ENTITIES REGULATIONS, 2008

PATTERN OF UNIT HOLDING

Number of Number of % of

Category unit holders  units held total
Individuals 1353 6,919,285 47.48
Insurance Companies 3 15,302 0.10
Others 21 3,493,581 23.97
Public Limited Companies 6 2,283,169 15.67
Retirement Funds 19 1,861,828 12.78

1,402 14,573,165 100
TOP TEN BROKERS BY PERCENTAGE OF COMMISSION PAID
Name %
Adam Securities (Private) Limited 30.78%
Multiline Securities (Private) Limited 23.15%
Aba Ali Habib Securities 10.83%
BIPL Securities Limited (Formerly: KASB Securities Limited) 10.24%
Pearl Securities Limited 8.72%
JS Global Capital Limited 6.47%
Next Capital Limited 4.24%
Bright Capital (Private) Limited 2.09%
Continental Exchange (Private) Limited 1.00%
Intermarket Securities 0.83%

THE MEMBERS OF THE INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

Experience
S.no [Name Designation in years |Qualification

1 Yasir Qadri Chief Executive Officer 22.10 MBA

2 |Syed Suleman Akhtar Chief Investment Officer 16.85 MBA, CFA

3 |Farhan Bashir Khan Head of Research 11.60 MBA
Acting Head of Risk &

4 Hadi Hassan Muki Compliance * 18.02 Bcom
Head of Investment

5 |Asim Wahab Khan Strategy & Equity 12.56 MBA, CFA
Head of Fixed

6 |Usama Bin Razi Income/Fund Manager 14.57 MBA

* Head of Risk - non voting observer

OTHER FUNDS MANAGED BY THE FUND MANAGER

UBL Liquidity Plus Fund

UBL Government Securities Fund

UBL Asset Allocartion Fund

UBL Capital Protected Fund 11l

UBL Retirement Savings Fund

Al Ameen Islamic Aggressive Income Fund
Al Ameen Islamic Asset Allocation Fund



(iv) ATTENDANCE AT THE MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE MANAGEMENT COMPANY

v)

During the year, seven meetings of the Board of Directors of the Management Company were held. The details of the attendance are as under:

September Total
August 23, 25, October 27, December | February 16, meetings
2017 2017 2017 06, 2017 2018 April 26, 2018| May 02, 2018 | attended
Directors:
Tariq Kirmani ** v v N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 2
Azhar hamid * N/A N/A v v v v v 5
Yasir Qadri v v v v v v v 7
Naz Khan * N/A N/A v v v v v 5
Shabbir Hussain Hashmi ** v v N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 2
Sharjeel Shahid * N/A N/A v v x v x 3
Zia ljaz v v v v x v x 5
Syed Furrukh Zaeem v v v v v v v 7
Mirza Muhammad Sadeed Hassan Barlas v v v v x v v 6
Fawaz Taj Siddiqui **** v v v v v N/A N/A 5
Umair Ahmed v v v v v v v 7
S.M. Aly Osman **** N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A v v 2

* Elected at EOGM held on September 29, 2017
** Independent Director's have completed three consecutive term
*** Mr. Zulfigar Alavi resigned on August 07, 2017.

**** Mr. Fawaz Taj Siddiqui resigned and appointment of Mr. S.M. Aly Osman effective from April 2, 2018 as Company Secretary

RATING OF THE FUND AND THE MANAGEMENT COMPANY

JCR - VIS has assigned a "AM1" asset manager rating to the Management Company dated December 29, 2017.




USF

UBL Stock Advantage Fund

INVESTMENT OBJECTIVE

USF is an open-end Equity Fund, investing primarily in equities listed on the KSE. The Fund seeks to maximize
total returns and outperform its benchmark by investing in a combination of

securities offering long term capital gains and dividend yield potential.

Management Company UBL Fund Managers Limited

Trustee Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
99-B, Block-B, S.M.C.H.S., Main Shahra-e-Faisal,
Karachi. Tel: (9221) 111-111-500

Distribution Company United Bank Limited

(for detail of others, please visit our website: www.ublfunds.com.pk)

Auditors Deloitte- M. Yousuf Adil Saleem & Co.

Bankers United Bank Limited
Bank Alfalah Limited
Habib Bank Limited
MCB Bank Limited
Samba Bank Limited

Silk Bank Limited

Sindh Bank Limited

The Bank of Punjab
National Bank of Pakistan

Management Co. Rating AM 1 (JCR-VIS)




Fund Manager’s Report — UBL Stock Advantage Fund (USF)

i) Description of the Collective Investment Scheme category and type
Equity / Open-end

ii) Statement of Collective Investment Scheme’s investment objective
USF is an open-end Equity Fund, investing primarily in equities listed on the KSE. The Fund seeks to
maximize total returns and outperform its benchmark by investing in a combination of securities offering
long term capital gains and dividend yield potential.

iii) Explanation as to whether the Collective Investment Scheme achieved its stated objective
The Collective Investment Scheme achieved its stated objective.

iv) Statement of benchmark(s) relevant to the Collective Investment Scheme
KSE-100 Index

)] Comparison of the Collective Investment Scheme’s performance during the period compared
with the said benchmarks

Monthly Yield Jul'l7? Aug'l7 Sep'l7 Oct'l7 Nov'l7 Dec'l7 Jan'l8 Feb'l8 Mar'l8 Apr'l8 May'l8 Jun'l8 FYTD
USF -1.40%  -9.07% 0.88% -5.19% 0.57% 1.13% 7.57% -1.80% 5.54% -0.53% -5.01% -2.16% -10.13%

Benchmark -1.19% -10.44%  2.92%  -6.58% 0.99% 1.15% 884%  -1.84% 537% -0.16% -581% -2.18% -10.00%

Description of the strategies and policies employed during the period under review in relation to
the Collective Investment Scheme’s performance

During the period under review, the Fund generated a negative return of 10.13%. Majority exposure of
the equity-portfolio was concentrated in Commercial Banks (25%), Oil & Gas Exploration Companies
(18%) and Fertilizer (11%) sectors at the end of FY18.

vi) Disclosure of the Collective Investment Scheme’s asset allocation as at the date of the report
and particulars of significant changes in asset allocation since the last report (if applicable)

Asset Allocation (% of Total Assets) Jun-17 Jun-18

Equities 87% 90%
Cash 13% 8%
Others 0% 1%
International Investments 0% 0%
Leverage Nil Nil

FMR - USF



vii)

viii)

FMR - USF

Analysis of the Collective Investment Scheme’s performance

FY'18 Return: -10.13%
Standard Deviation (12m trailing): 16.40%
Sharpe Ratio (12m trailing): (0.99)

Changes in total NAV and NAV per unit since the last review period or since commencement (in
case of newly established Collective Investment Schemes)

Net Asset Value NAYV per unit
01-Jul-17 ‘ 30-Jun-18 Change 01-Jul-17 ‘ 30-Jun-18 Change
Rupees (000) % Rupees %
7,871,923 ‘ 6,891,411 (12.46) 76.23 ‘ 68.51 (10.13)

Disclosure on the markets that the Collective investment Scheme has invested in including
review of the market(s) invested in and performance during the period

Stock Market Review — FY18

In the aftermath of distressing events in FY18, the KSE-100 index posted a cumulative loss of 10%
after a prolonged period of 8-years. Market's decline was largely driven by a series of tensed political
events, burgeoning concerns on macro-economic front along with continued sell-off by foreign investors
(USD289mn). With growing uncertainties, market participants remained cautious, keeping average
market-traded volumes depressed (84mn).

The benchmark index commenced the year with high hopes but soon suffered foreign outflows post
MSCI inclusion. A series of setbacks augmented uncertainties during 1HFY18, keeping the equity
market in a jittery position and pushing the index to a low of 37,919 points. The primary highlights
among these were disqualification of sitting PM followed by barring of Finance Minister to run office;
leaving little room to focus on economy. This was followed by a 21-day protest by TLP against the
government pushing the regime into isolation. Without any proper economic manager in place, the
country stood open to increasing hazards on the macroeconomic fronts.

With political tensions, concerns on external account started to unearth as support from low oil prices
started to fade away. In the 3QFY18, some positive triggers like appointment of Finance Minister,
smooth senate elections, announcement of tax amnesty scheme along with introduction of essential
policy action prompted interest by market participants, leading to inflow of USD 31mn.

However, the concerns on macroeconomic front remained strong, requiring further use of policy
actions. The full year FY18 current account deficit augmented to ~USD18bn (+43%YoY) further
weighing down investor sentiment. Moreover, fiscal deficit came in much higher at ~7%. Mushrooming
twin-deficit financing requirements weakened foreign reserves position. SBP’s reserves were down to
~USD10bn at end of FY18, further deteriorating investor confidence.



Xi)

xii)

xiii)

Xiv)

FMR - USF

On the international front, US Fed continued on its monetary tightening policy by 25bps to 2% during
FY18. We expect this stance to continue in CY18. International oil prices mounted to a 4-year high of
USD80/bbl amid better co-operation between member OPEC and Non-OPEC countries. Overall,
commodity prices also rallied upwards with growing demands from importing countries. Escalation of
ongoing trade-war is expected to push oil prices downhill. This will be favorable for a high energy
importing country like Pakistan. Moreover, a stable government will also resume work on the multi-
billion CPEC project.

Going forward, remedial measures taken by central bank combined with entry into the IMF program will
enable corrective measures and stabilize economy over medium term. Moreover, subsiding political
tensions, steep discount (~24% from its peak) along with a high eamings-yield offering (~12%) is
expected to strengthen investor sentiment and bring investor’s interest back in the local equity market.

Disclosure on distribution (if any), comprising:-
During the year no distribution has been made.

Description and explanation of any significant changes in the state of affairs of the Collective
Investment Scheme during the period and up till the date of the manager’s report, not otherwise
disclosed in the financial statements.

There were no significant changes in the state of affairs of Collective Investment Scheme during the
period that has not been disclosed in the financial statements.

Breakdown of unit holdings by size

Number of
Range of Units Investors
USF
0.0001 - 9,999.9999 4205
10,000.0000 - 49,999.9999 354
50,000.0000 - 99,999.9999 70
100,000.0000 - 499,999.9999 83
500,000.0000 & Above 34
Total 4746

Disclosure on unit split (if any), comprising:-
There were no unit splits during the period.

Disclosures of circumstances that materially affect any interests of unit holders
Investments are subject to market risk.



Xv) Disclosure if the Asset Management Company or its delegate, if any, receives any soft
commission (i.e. goods and services) from its broker(s) or dealer(s) by virtue of transactions
conducted by the Collective Investment Scheme.

No soft commissions are received by the AMC from its brokers or dealers by virtue of transactions
conducted by the Collective Investment Scheme.

FMR - USF



PERFORMANCE TABLE

UBL Stock Advantage Fund

2018

NET ASSETS AS AT 30 JUNE - Rupees in '000 6,891,411
NET ASSETS VALUE PER UNIT AT 30 JUNE - Rupees *
Class A units - Offer 70.45

- Redemption 68.51
RETURN OF THE FUND - %
Total Return of the Fund (10.13)
Capital Growth (per unit) (10.13)
Date of Income Distribution -
Income Distribution -
AVERAGE ANNUAL RETURN - %
One Year (10.13)
Second Year 10.01
Third Year 11.34
Since inception 23.88
OFFER / REPURCHASE DURING THE YEAR- Rupees *
Highest price per unit - Class A units - Offer 79.08
Highest price per unit - Class A units - Redemption 76.90
Lowest price per unit - Class A units - Offer 64.45
Lowest price per unit - Class A units - Redemption 62.68
* Front-end load @ 2.5% is applicable
PORTFOLIO COMPOSITION - %
Percentage of Net Assets as at 30 June
PORTFOLIO COMPOSITION BY CATEGORY - %
Bank Balances 8.00
Others 2.00
Equity securities 90.00
PORTFOLIO COMPOSITION BY MARKET - %
Equity market 100.00
Note:

- The Launch date of Fund is 04 August 2006.

DISCLAIMER

2017

7,871,923

78.39
76.23

30.15
21.39
23-Jun-17
5.50

30.15
22.08
22.07
21.09

94.05
91.46

64.55
62.77

13.00

87.00

100.00

2016

3,672,235

64.86
62.78

14.01
10.49
27-Jun-16
2.00

14.01
18.03
22.51
19.95

69.06
66.85

56.77
54.95

10.00
1.00
89.00

100.00

Past performance is not necessarily indicative of future performance and that unit prices and investment returns may go down, as well as up.
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TRUSTEE REPORT TO THE UNIT HOLDERS
UBL STOCK ADVANTAGE FUND

Report of the Trustee pursuant to Regulation 41(h) and clause 9 of Schedule V of the Non-
Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008

We Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited, being the Trustee of UBL Stock
Advantage Fund (the Fund) are of the opinion that UBL Fund Managers Limited being the
Management Company of the Fund has in all material respects managed the Fund during the year
ended June 30, 2018 in accordance with the provisions of the following:

(1) Limitations imposed on the investment powers of the Management Company under the
constitutive documents of the Fund;

(11) The pricing, issuance and redemption of units are carried out in accordance with the
requirements of the constitutive documents of the Fund; and

(iii) The Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulations) Rules, 2003, the
Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 and the
constitutive documents of the Fund.

Aftab Ahmed Diwan
Chief Executive Officer
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited

Karachi: September 13, 2018
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH LISTED COMPANIES (CODE OF CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2017 BY UBL FUND MANAGERS LIMITED

NAME OF FUND: UBL STOCK ADVANTAGE FUND
YEAR ENDING: JUNE 30, 2018

The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) through its letter dated April 18, 2018 to
Mutual Funds Association of Pakistan (MUFAP) has exempted the open-end collective investment schemes
from the requirements of the Code of Corporate Governance. However, the Board of Directors of UBL Fund
Munagers Limited (the Management Company) of UBL Stock Advantage Fund (the Fund), for the purpose of
establishing a framework of good governance whereby a Fund is managed by best practice of Corporate
governance, has voluntarily opted to comply with the relevant provisions of the Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations 2017 (The Code).

The Management Company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:
l. The total number of directors are seven as per the following:
a. Male: Six Directors;
b. Female: One Director.
2. The composition of the Board is as follows:

Category Name
Mr. Azhar Hamid
d .
Independent Directors Ms. Naz Khan
Executive Directors Mr. Yasir Qadri

Mirza Muhammad Sadeed Hassan Barlas
Mr. Sharjeel Shahid

Mr, Zia Jjaz

Syed Furrukh Zaeem

Non - Executive Directors

3. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than five listed
companies, including this company.

4. The Management Company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps

have been taken to disseminate it throughout the company along with its supporting policies and
procedures.

5. The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant
policies of the Management Company. A complete record of particulars of significant policies along
with the dates on which they were approved or amended has been maintained. The Management
Company has placed the Whistle Blowing Policy, Proxy Policy and the Principles of the Code of
Conduct (Statement of Ethics and Business Practice) on its website.

6. The Board of directors have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors
in accordance with the Act and these Regulations.

7. The Board has a formal and effective mechanism in place for an annual evaluation of the Board’s own
performance.

UBL FUND MANAGERS LIMITED

v, +92 21111 825 242
& info@ublfunds.com
@ 4™ Floor, STSM Building, Beaumont Road, Civil Lines, Karachi. www.ublfunds.cam
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8. The Chairman of the Board is an Independent director. All the powers of the Board have been duly

exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been taken by Board as empowered by the relevant
provisions of the Act and these Regulations.

9. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director
elected by the Board for this purpose, The Board has complied with the requirements of Act and the
Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting of Board.

10. Following directors and executive have acquired the prescribed Director Training Program (DTP)
certification:

Directors
Mirza Muhammad Sadeed Hassan Barlas

Mr. Yasir Qadri

Mr. Zia Jjaz

Ms. Naz Khan

Syed Furrukh Zaeem

Executive
f. S.M. Aly Osman

11. The Board has approved appointment of CFO, Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit,
including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and complied with relevant
requirements of the Regulations.

12. CFO and CEO duly endorsed the financial statements before approval of the Board.

13. The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below. The Board Audit Committee

and the Board Human Resource & Compensation Committee are chaired by separate Independent
directors:
a. Board Audit Committee

i. Ms. Naz Khan (Chair);
ii. Mirza Muhammad Sadeed Hassan Barlas;
ili. Mr. Sharjeel Shahid;
iv. Mr. Zia Jjaz.
b. Board Human Resource & Compensation Committee
i. Mr. Azhar Hamid (Chairman);
ii. Mr. Yasir Qadri;
iii. Mr. Zialjaz;
iv. Ms. Naz Khan;
v. Syed Furrukh Zaeem.
c¢. Board Risk & Compliance Committee
i. Mirza Muhammad Sadeed Hassan Barlas (Chairman);
ii. Mr. Azhar Hamid;
ili. Mr. Sharjeel Shahid;
iv. Mr. Yasir Qadri;
v. Syed Furrukh Zaeem.

g A 0e op

UBL FUND MANAGERS LIMITED

. +22 21111 825 262
& Info@ublfunds.com
@ 4" Floor, STSM Building, Beaumnont Road, Civil Lings, Karachi. www.ublfunds com
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14. The Terms of Reference of the aforesaid Committees have been formed, documented and ad vised to
the Committee for compliance.

15, The frequency of meetings of the Committee were as per following;
a. Board Audit Committee : Quarterly Meeting
b. Board Human Resource & Compensation Committee: Quarterly Meeting
c. Board Risk & Compliance Committee: Quarterly Meeting

16. The Board has set up an independent and effective internal audit function and the audit personnel are

suitably qualified and experienced for the purpose and are conversant with the policies and procedures
of the Management Company.

17. The statutory auditors of the Fund have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating
under the quality control review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP)
and registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they or any of the partners of the firm,
their spouses and minor children do not hold units of the Fund and that the firm and all its partners are
in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as
adopted by the ICAP.,

18. The Board Audit Committee recommends to the Board of directors the appointment of external
auditors, their removal, audit fees, the provision of any service permissible to be rendered to the
company by the external auditors in addition to audit of its financial statements.

19. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other
services except in accordance with the Act, these regulations or any other regulatory requirement and
the auditors have confirmed that they have observed [FAC guidelines in this regard.

~.20. We confirm that any other significant requirements of the Regulations have been complied with,

Karachi,
Dated: August 28, 2018

UBL. FUND MANAGERS LIMITED

& +92 21111 825 262

&% Info@ublfunds.com

Q@ 4" Floor, STSM Building, Beaumont Road, Civil Lines, Karachi www.ublfunds com
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TO THE UNITHOLDERS® OF UBL STOCK ADVANTAGE FUND

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors
(the Board) of UBL Fund Managers Limited {the Management Company) for UBL Stock Advantage
Fund (the Fund) for the year ended June 30, 2018 in accordance with the requirements of Regulation
40 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of the Management
Company of the Fund. Our responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the
status of the Management Company’s compliance with the provisions of the Regulations in respect of the
Fund and report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the
Regulations. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Management Company's parsonnel and
review of various documents prepared by the Management Company to comply with the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements, we are required to obtain an understanding of the
accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit
approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board's statement on internal control covers all
risks and controls or to form an apinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the
Management Company’s corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Management Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon
recommendation of the Audit Committee, place before the Board for their review and approval, the Fund’s
related party transactions and also ensure compliance with the reguirements of section 208 of the
Companies Act, 2017, We are only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the
extent of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board upon recommendation of the
Audit Committee. We have not carried out procedures to assess and determine the Management
Company's process for identification of related parties and that whether the related party transactions
were undertaken at arm’s length price or not.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that the
Statement of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Management Company's compliance, in all
material respects, with the requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Fund for
the year ended June 34, 2018.

M ¥ [
Eharteirzl Eéﬂuiﬂ% ‘LLN[ M”(

Date: September 17, 2018

Place:Karachi e
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To The Unit Holders of UBL Stock Advantage Fund

Report on

Opinion

the Audit of the Financial Statements

Deloitte Yousuf Adil
Chartered Accountants

Cavish Court, A-35, Block T & 8
KCHSW, Shahrah-e-Faisal
Karachi-75350

Pakistan

Tel:  +92(0) 21 34534 G404-7
Fax; +92(0) 21- 2454 1314

www. deloitie.com

We have audited the financial statements of UBL Stock Advantage Fund (the Fund), which comprise the
statement of assets and llabllities as at June 30, 2018, and the related income statement, statement of
comprehensive income, statement of movement in unit holders’ fund and statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the finandal statements, Induding a summary of significant accounting palicies.

In 6ur opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Fund as at June 30, 2018, and of its finandal performance, cash flows and transactions for the year then ended
in accordance with accounting and reporting standands as applicable in Pakistan,

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (I5As) as applicable in Pakistan.
Qur responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Fund in accordance with the

International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adoptad by

the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Cade) and we have fulfilled our other gthical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the financal statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinfon
on these matters,

S.MNo.

1.

lfév audit matters
Valuation and existence of investments

As disclosed in note S to the finandial
staternents, Investments amounted to Rs.
6,413.217 million as at June 30, 2018.

The total Investment amount is the most
significant account balance on the statement of
assets and liabilities. This is 8 main driver of the
Fund's performance and thus risk exists on this
balance. The Fund invests principally in listed
equity secunties and there is a risk that
appropriate quoted prices may not be used to
determine fair value,

| How the matters were addressed in our
| audit

In auditing the valuation and existence of
investments, we assessed the processes and key
controls relating to existence and valuation. In
addition, (1) we performed valuation testing on
sample of investments held a5 at June 30, 20115
by verifying the prices quoted on the Pakistan
Stock Exchange Limited, and (2) we performed
existence testing of sampie of investments held
as at June 30, 2018 by independently matching
the securities held by the Fund as per internal
records with the securities appearing in the
Central Depasitory Company (CDC) account and
imeestigated any reconciling items

Membar of
Deloitte Touchs Tohmatsu Limited
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2.

Key audit matters

In addition, there is a risk that the Fund may
have included investments in its financial
statements which are not in the ownership of the
Fund and thereby increasing the uncertainty In
respect of existence of investments recorded as
at year end,

The disclosure regarding the investments are
included in notes 3.2 and 5 to the financial
staternents.

Impairment of available for sale
Investmeants

The Fund invests a significant portion of it funds
in financial Instruments that comprise available
far sale investmeants In equity securities, As at
June 30, 2018, investments in equity securities
classified as available for sale amounted to Rs.
3,491.550 million. These investments are
measured at fair value with the corresponding
fair value changes recognized in other
comprehensive income. The valuation is
performed by the Management Company using
the quoted market prices at the stock exchange.

The Management Company performs an
impairment review of its available for sale
investments annually and records impairment
charge when there has been a significant or
profonged decline in the falr value of investments
below their cost. In determining "significant’ or
‘prolonged’, Management Company evaluates,
among other factors, historical share price
movements and the duration and extent to
which the fair value of an investment is less than
its cost.

There is a risk that Management Company may
not calculate the iImpalrment charge accurately
a< high degree of judgement is involved in
determining "significant” or *prolonged’ dedline.

The Fund's disclosures related to financial
Investments are included in notes 3.2 and 5.

Duloitte Yousuf Adil
Chartered Accountants

How the matters were addressad in our
audit

In auditing the impairment of available for sale
investments, we assessed the processes and key
controls relating to valuation of available for sale
investments. [n addition, we performed valuation
testing on a sample of investments held as at
June 30, 2018, reviewed the Fund's impairment
policy, and assessed the adequacy of impalrment
charge on avallable far sals Investments at year-
end.

Member of

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited
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Key audit matters

Change in accounting policy as a result of
amendments in Non-Banking Finance
Companies and Notified Entities Regulation,
2008

As disclosed In note 3,11, to the financial
ctaternents, on August 03, 2017, the Securities
and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP)
Issyued SRO no, 7506(1)/2017 whereby certain
amendments were made in the Non-Banking
Finance Companies and Motified Entities
Regulation, 2008 (the NBFC Regulations). Such
amendments introduced definition of Element of
Income, and required certain additional
disciosures in the income statement and
statermont of movement In unit holders” fund
together with removal of requirement to present
distribution statement separately.

The abovementioned amendments require
significant changes in the calculation, accounting,
presentation and disdosure of the "Element of
Income’ in the financial statements, which have
been applied as a change in accounting policy
prospectively in accordance with the clarification
lssued by the SECP. Considering the significance
of the abowve factors, we have treated these
changes as Key Audit Matter.

Deloitte Yousuf Adil
Chartered Accountants

' How the matters were addressed in our
| audit

In auditing the impact of change in accounting
policy, we enquired from management abaut the
resulting changes in the financial statements,
processes and controls. Subsequently, We also
assessed the processes and controls implemented
by management to address this change.

In addition, we checked adequacy of presentation
and disclosure requirements including element of
income in the financial statements as per the
requirements of Schedule V of the NBFC
Requlations.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

Management Company Is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon,

Our ppinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thareon.

In connection with aur audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the ather information and, in
doing sa, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or olir
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears o be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have naothing to report In this regard.

Responsibilities of Management Company and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management Company is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements. in
accordance with accounting and reparting standards as applicable in Pakistan, and for such internal control as
the Management Cormpany determines is necessary to enable the preparation of finandal statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, Management Company is respansible for assessing the Fund's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless Management Company either intends to liguidate the Fund or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Mermiber of
Daloltte Touche Tohmatsu Limited
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Board of Directors of the Management Company are responsible for overseeing the Fund's financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financlal statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whethér due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditer’s report that Includes our
opmion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted In
accordance with [SAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a matenal misstatement when it cxists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements,

As part of an audit In accordance with 1SAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

= Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
arror, design and perform audit procedures: responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may invalve collusian,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

»  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Managemeant Company's internal control,

« Evaluate the appropriatenass of accounting policies used and the reasonablenass of accounting estimatas
and related discosures made by Management Company.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of Managemant Company’s use of the golng concern basis of accaunting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Fund’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention In our auditor’s report to the
related disclasures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify aur oplnion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Fund o cease to continue as a going concem.

+« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosuras, and whether the financlal statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves 